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Chancellor’s Foreword 
The University Council and the senior management of the University continue to work together to 
ensure that the University achieves its goals.  2007 saw the implementation of a new strategic 
direction, one which built upon the strengths of the past, but looked forward to more active 
engagement by the University with its many and diverse communities. 

As part of this shift in emphasis, Council undertook a number of workshops during the year.  Early in 
the year, Council worked with the University’s senior management to agree on goals for the University 
for 2007.  From the extensive work program which the University had set itself, we agreed eight 
critical goals dealing with academic outreach, teaching quality, attracting and retaining students, the 
student experience, research outcomes, attraction and retention of staff, leadership capacity and 
financial strength.  Achievement against these goals was reviewed by Council mid-year and at the end 
of 2007, with the University making good progress.   

At its July workshop, Council focused on ‘Engagement’, receiving information about the many projects 
underway, and providing input into the development of the University’s Engagement Plan.   

Council continued its governance reform program, approving a revision of the Corporate Governance 
Statement and a revised evaluation program for Council.  In October 2007, Council undertook a self-
review exercise, the outcomes of which will provide a starting point for the 2008 professional 
development program.  ECU continued to comply with the National Governance Protocols and reported 
its compliance to the Commonwealth Minister for Education, Science & Training.  Importantly, 
however, Council is actively engaged in an ongoing process of review and improvement – making it even 
more effective in guiding and supporting the University in its endeavours. 

Council retains great confidence in the ability of the University’s Senior Leadership Team.  Committees 
of Council are actively involved in oversight of the University, particularly in Resources, Quality and 
Audit and Governance areas.  Council monitored the key financial and performance indicators during 
the year, receiving regular reports from the Senior Leadership Team.  The Budget for 2008 was 
approved at the December 2007 meeting of Council, providing a sound financial basis to support the 
strategic goals of the University for 2008. 

It is an honour to serve as Chancellor of Edith Cowan University and to work with outstanding students, 
staff and Council members.  As will be seen from the Annual Report, our students, staff and graduates 
continue to achieve great results.   

The University has much of which to be proud. 

 
 

 
 
Hon Hendy Cowan 
Chancellor 
13 March 2008 
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Vice-Chancellor’s Commentary 
For Edith Cowan University (ECU), 2007 was a year of substantial advances and many exceptional 
achievements by our students and staff.  Particularly outstanding was the success of a team of ECU 
advertising students who, in competition with 29 other entries from 22 countries, won the prestigious 
International Advertising Association’s Dentsu InterAd Xl Global Student Competition.  The team 
presented its winning advertising campaign to the United Nations in New York in July 2007.  To have 
our students judged “best in the world” is an achievement which is a source of immense pride for the 
ECU community.  
ECU’s new Mission and Vision commits us to value-add to our communities, particularly by providing 
opportunities for students from diverse backgrounds to experience and succeed in higher education.  
During 2007, ECU’s alternative entry pathways continued to open the door to a significant number of 
talented and motivated individuals, who might otherwise have been excluded from university-level 
education.  In adopting the value of Personal Excellence, ECU recognises the potential of all of our 
students and staff to achieve to high standards, if given appropriate opportunities and support.   
The strong commitment of our staff to teaching and learning was reflected in a major achievement this 
year - the University’s success in the Federal Government’s Learning and Teaching Performance Fund.  
As a result of our performance, ECU will receive a grant of $1.58m in 2008, which will be used 
strategically to make further improvements to outcomes for our students. 
Our research staff continued to make significant contributions in areas of high social impact.  Examples 
include: Professor Donna Cross, who was recognised for her landmark research on bullying; Professor 
Kamal Alameh, who won the Early Stage category of the Western Australian Inventor of the Year for his 
work on very high speed digital communication; and Professor Ralph Martins, whose research into 
newly identified genes linked to Alzheimer's disease, continues to add to the understanding of an 
illness which is of great community concern. 
During 2007, ECU’s innovative building program continued, with the completion of the Health and 
Wellness Building on our Joondalup Campus and significant progress was made on the Business and Law 
Building (to be completed in 2008) on our Mount Lawley Campus.  The completion of these two 
buildings will enable the University to finalise its exit from the Churchlands Campus, completing our 
ten-year program of campus consolidation. 
It was a pleasure for me to announce a number of outstanding staffing appointments during 2007.  
These appointments included: Professor Arshad Omari who was appointed Deputy Vice-Chancellor 
(Academic); Professor Ronald Oliver who was appointed Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Teaching & Learning); 
Professor Brenda Cherednichenko who was appointed Executive Dean (Education & Arts) and Pro-Vice-
Chancellor (Equity & Indigenous); and late in 2007, Professor John Finlay-Jones who was appointed 
Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research) Designate. 
Professor Patrick Garnett, Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research & Operations), retired on 31 December 
2007, after 34 years of distinguished service with ECU and its predecessor organisations.  Professor 
Garnett has made outstanding contributions to the strategic direction and reputation of the University 
through his exemplary and sustained service.  On behalf of the ECU community, I congratulate Patrick 
on his outstanding career achievements, I thank him for his many contributions to the University and I 
wish him all the best for the future. 
I thank our Chancellor, the Hon Dr Hendy Cowan, for his exemplary leadership and support.  Along with 
the rest of the University community, I welcome his unanimous re-election as Chancellor for a further 
three-year term, commencing 1 January 2008.  I also thank all other members of the University Council 
and of Council Committees/Boards for their service to ECU.  
Finally, I thank all members of the broader University community for their efforts during the year.  I 
acknowledge the hard work and commitment evident within the ECU community, which has enabled us 
to achieve so much together during 2007.  I urge all of you to continue your pursuit of Personal 
Excellence in the year ahead, and I wish you on-going success. 

 
Vice-Chancellor 
13 March 2008 
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About ECU 
Edith Cowan University (ECU) is a large multi-campus institution providing higher education and 
vocational education and training courses to communities in Western Australia and beyond.   

ECU has almost 21,000 enrolled students; approximately 16,000 undergraduates and 5000 
postgraduates.  The University educates Australian students, as well as a significant cohort of 
international students.  In 2007, ECU had more than 4000 International On-shore and International Off-
shore students originating from approximately 90 countries.  

For more than a century ECU, through its forerunner organisations, has been Western Australia’s major 
provider of teacher education.  ECU was established as a university in 1991 and has since developed 
innovative and practical courses across a wide range of disciplines, established a vibrant research 
culture and attracted quality research partners and researchers, many working at the cutting edge of 
their fields. 

The University has three metropolitan campuses in Mount Lawley, Joondalup and Churchlands and 
serves Western Australia’s South West region from a campus in Bunbury, 200 km south of Perth. 

ECU offers high quality education across a broad discipline range including Education, Nursing, Finance, 
Business, Computing, Communications, Biomedical Sciences, Electronic Engineering and the Creative 
and the Performing Arts.  More than 390 courses are offered through four faculties:  

• Business and Law; 

• Computing, Health and Science; 

• Education and Arts (which incorporates the Western Australian Academy of Performing Arts); 
and  

• Regional Professional Studies. 

In addition, the University has a number of administrative service centres which support the 
University’s core activities of teaching and research through the provision of professional expertise in 
areas such as Information Technology, Facilities’ Management, Risk Management and Audit, 
Governance, Planning, Finance, Student Support, International and Research. 

Consistent with its Mission, ECU engages with private and public sector organisations, locally and 
overseas, in designing study programs which are relevant to the communities it serves.  Research is 
undertaken in collaboration with industry and is valued for its high social, economic, environmental 
and cultural impacts.  

 

Edith Cowan University is a body corporate established under the Edith Cowan University Act 1984 
(WA).  It is domiciled in Australia.  ECU has one subsidiary company, ECU Resources For Learning Ltd, 
which is wholly-owned by ECU. 
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Mission, Vision, Values and Strategic Priority Areas 
At its December 2006 meeting, Council approved ECU’s new strategic direction as outlined in a 
Statement of Strategic Priorities entitled: Edith Cowan University: Engaging Minds; Engaging 

tors to 

luing individual differences and diversity. 

nce and reasoning. 

2020 can be viewed at: 

Communities.  Towards 2020.  This document includes the following Mission, Vision and Values for 2007 
and beyond. 

 

Mission 
To further develop valued citizens for the benefit of Western Australia and beyond, through teaching 
and research inspired by engagement and partnerships.   

 

Vision 
For our staff, students and graduates to be highly regarded as ethical and self-reliant contribu
more prosperous, inclusive and sustainable communities. 

 

Values 
We value:     

integrity — behaving ethically and pursuing rigorous intellectual positions. 

respect — va

rational inquiry — motivated by evide

personal excellence — striving to realise potential and performing at exacting international standards. 

 

Edith Cowan University: Engaging Minds; Engaging Communities.  Towards 
http://www.ecu.edu.au/GPPS/ppas/strategic_plan.html. 

 

 

ECU’s Strategic Priority Areas 

ally beneficial engagement with its many communities.  The following 
four strategic priority areas have been developed to help achieve this strategic direction, which are: 

• Engaging and serving our communities; 

• Providing a supportive and stimulating learning community; 

• Developing research focus, depth and impact; and 

• Building organisational sustainability. 

 

These four strategic priority areas have been used to structure the report on operations in this Annual 
Report (see page 19). 

 

 

ECU’s new strategic direction emphasises a future which is inclusive of all parts of society and which 
commits the University to mutu
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ECU Governance Structure 

Council Membership 
(as at 31 December 2007) 

 
Chancellor  
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Hon Hendy Cowan  01.03.2007 – 28.02.2010 
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18.08.2005 – 17.08.2008 
01.01.2005 – 17.08.2005 
22.03.2007 – 21.03.2010 
12.09.2007 – 11.09.2010 
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fessor Patrick Garnett 
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Vice-President (Resources) & Chief Financial Officer Snell 
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University Committees  
Figure 2: University Committees as at 31 December 2007  
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The Work of the University Council 
Edith Cowan University’s enabling Act provides that the Council is the governing authority of the 
University.  The fundamental responsibilities of the Council are to determine the strategic direction 
and governance framework of the University.  The Council is chaired by the Chancellor and consists 
of the Vice-Chancellor (ex-officio) and members drawn from the community and the University’s 
alumni, staff and students.  Council members fulfil an important duty for the University and the 
community and do so on an honorary basis. 

ECU’s Council addressed key strategic and governance tasks and fulfilled a demanding work program 
in 2007.  The Council met on eight occasions during 2007 under the chairmanship of its Chancellor, 
the Hon Hendy Cowan.  It held six regular meetings, and two workshops.  The first workshop of the 
year was held in February and had as its topic: Goal Setting for 2007, thus identifying the key goals 
of the University to be monitored by Council.  The second workshop took place in July and focused 
on ‘Engagement’ and provided an opportunity for Council to gain insights into the many projects 
underway, and to shape the University’s direction in relation to this key strategic priority.  A 
number of Council members also attended an Engagement seminar, run by the University and 
facilitated by a recognised international leader in university engagement. 

At its December meeting, Council unanimously elected the Hon Hendy Cowan as Chancellor for a 
further three-year term. 

The major activities of Council in 2007 fell into four categories: 

• strategic direction of the University; 

• self-governance of the Council; 

• governance of the University; and 

• compliance. 

 

Strategic Direction of the University 

To inform and enhance Council’s role in shaping the strategic direction of the University, discussion 
on key strategic issues was included in the Council’s meeting and work program for 2007.  The 
strategic issues topics were: Equity Profile; Student Journey/ Student Experience; Key success 
factors in higher education; Academic Governance, Quality and Standards and the role of the 
Academic Board; and Internationalisation at ECU. 

Council also considered the operations of the ECU Foundation, with an ECU Foundation Board being 
re-established to help develop a new approach to fundraising at ECU. 

At its ember 2007 meeting, Council considered and approved the Budget for 2008.   

 

Self-Governance of the Council 

During 2007, Council continued to implement its governance reform program.  The following 
s were resolved by Council during the year: 

 revised Corporate Governance Statement; 

 l Council members were required to sign the Code of Conduct; 

 revised process for Council Evaluation was approved; and 

 review of Council and individual members’ performance was undertaken in October 2007.  
is included the completion of a questionnaire, the responses to which were analysed by 
 external consultant.  Findings of the evaluations were relayed to Council at its 6 

ecember meeting and will inform professional development activities for 2008. 

r ce of the University 

o il activities relating to the governance of the University included: 

Dec

a 

al

a 

a 
Th
an
D

nan

unc

governance matter

•

•

•

•
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• regular meetings of all Council committees occurred during the year.  Reports from these 
committees were subsequently provided to Council to keep it informed of activities across 
the academic and operational areas of the University;  

• the Vice-Chancellor provided a mid-year and end-of-year report on the achievements of the 
University in relation to its Key Performance Indicators; and 

• in June an ice-Chancellor reported on progress against the key goals 
of the Uni sity, as identified by Council early in the year.    

 
Compliance  

Key Council activit s related to compliance included approval of measures that ensure compliance 
with the National vernance Protocols and Higher Education Workplace Relations Requirements.  
The 2006 Annual Report was approved by Council at its 22 March 2007 meeting.  Monitoring of the 
University, through the Resources Committee and Quality and Audit Committee, provided assurance 
to Council that the University has appropriate risk management, financial and quality controls in 
place. 

 

Attendance by Council Members at Council Meetings 

Council held six regular meetings during the year.  The bracketed figure indicates the potential 
number of attendances for members whose term of office did not cover the full year. 

Hon Hendy Cowan (Chancellor)    6 

Mr Steve Abbott (Pro-Chancellor)   6 

Dr Norman Ashton        6 

Ms Jenni Ballantyne       1 (2) 

Ms Marilyn Beresford       2 (2) 

Mr Richard Cairnes        2 (2) 

Ms Leslie Chalmers       

Mrs Helen Charlesworth      4 

Mr Kempton Cowan       5 (6) 

Professor Kerry Cox (Vice-Chancellor)  6 

Mr Neil Douglas         5 

Ms Nerissa Eaton        3 (3) 

Mr Simon Holthouse       2 (2) 

Mr Jerry Koh          4 (4) 

Justice Rene Le Miere       6 

Mrs Karen Macdonald       4 

Ms Denise McComish       3 

Ms Natalie Moir         2 (2) 

Dr Alan Needham        1 (1) 

Professor Ron Oliver       4 

Professor Arshad Omari      4 (4) 

Mr James Pollard        3 (4) 

Ms Diana Tan         1 (2) 

Mr Serge Walberg        3 (4) 

d December 2007, the V
ver

ie
 Go
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Highlights of 2007 

Student Achievements 
• ECU Advertising Students World Winners - A Group of ECU Advertising Students were the 

worldwide winners of a United Nations’ competition to produce a comprehensive marketing 
communications plan for the United Nations’ Millennium campaign.  The School of 
Communications & Contemporary Arts student team of Samantha Hassall, Stephen Burge, 

ions and Contemporary 

 their housing and architecture website.  

t Claire Tonkin won the Australian 
 for her short film Button. 

r the second consecutive year, an ECU Japanese language 
student won the WA Japanese Speech Contest.  ECU’s Peter Polmeartagami won the Open 

 with a five minute speech on homelessness.  

tudents Win Five Top Tertiary Awards – ECU students received five of the 13 
national tertiary awards for journalism, known as the “2007 Ossie Awards for Journalism 
Students”, which recognise high achievement in journalism at 26 universities in Australia.  

dent Publication for the second year in a row.  

 1913-1983. 
d.    

 Deanne Leber, ECU PhD Writing student, was nominated for the Western Australian 
remier’s Prize.   

tern Australian Citizen of the Year 

ic Relations student Chloe 
ard at the Public Relations 

on a 
major award at the Sir Harry Gibbs National Constitutional Law Mooting Competition held in 

ent, Sanjeev Hiremath 
was awarded the Duane Sterling ambassadorial scholarship from the Rotary Foundation. 

Donny McDermid, Francis Yang Mu Jia, David Schultink, Bryan Chiang Lip Wai, Anne Hallam, 
Holly Gibson, Amber Micallef and Annika Van Grootel, were assisted by advertising lecturer 
Diane Slade and presented their campaign to the UN’s Under-Secretary-General for 
Communications and Public Information and executives from Dentsu in September 2007.   

• Indigenous Students Honoured - Regional students Travis McGuire and Anthony Gregory 
were recognised for their academic excellence and their contribution to the community 
with the award of ECU’s 2007 Vice-Chancellor’s Indigenous Australian Scholarships. 

• WA Web Award 2007 - Students from ECU’s School of Communicat
Arts won the WA Web Award 2007 Student category.  Daniel Roffman, Alex MacRae, Moe 
Aung, Keith Atkinson, and Andrew Ellis formed the group Risbec Design and Drafting, and 
won the award for

• Prestigious Writing Award - ECU Media Studies studen
Writer’s Guild Industry Award (AWGIE)

• Japanese Speech Contest - Fo

Division section of the competition

• Journalism S

3rd Degree won Best On-line Stu

• Student Publication Achievements: 

- Amanda Curtin’s PhD novel, Ellipsis was given a Special Commendation by the State 
Records Office at the 2007 Margaret Medcalf Awards for outstanding achievement in the 
use of the State Archives collection.  

- PhD graduate, Simone Lazaroo, won the Western Australian Premier's Book Award in the 
fiction category for her novel, The Travel Writer.   

- Sally Clarke’s PhD biography In The Space Behind His Eyes. Donald R. Stuart
A Biography was short-listed for the Western Australian Premier's Book Awar

-
Premier’s Book Awards – P

• ECU Graduate wins a Western Australian Citizen of the Year Award - WAAPA graduate, 
Duncan Rock, won the Youth Arts Award at the Wes
Awards. 

• ECU Graduate receives PR Student of the Year Award - Publ
Holland was awarded the WW Mitchell Student of the Year Aw
Institute of Australia State Awards. 

• National Script Pitching Competition - Three ECU students were selected as finalists in the 
Western Australian round of the national Holding Redlich Pitching Competition.  Lucinda 
Marty, Julie Speight and Mark Willig competed against 21 Western Australian writers. 

• National Law Competition - ECU law students Katie McKenzie and James Graham w

Melbourne. 

• Rotary Scholarship – ECU’s Electron Science Research Institute stud

13 
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Staff Achievements 
• ECU Researcher Named Inventor of the Year - Professor Kamal Alameh won the Early 

uters.  It facilitates higher 

fessor Quentin Beresford 
won the non-fiction category of the Western Australian Premier's Book Awards for his book 

stern Australian Aboriginal leader Rob Riley. 

Conference Travel Awards - Professor Ross Dowling won a prestigious $10,000 Perth Airport 
Tourism and Aviation Scholarship. 

U’s Senior Lecturer in Exercise and Sports 

 Senior Le r in Music Education Geoff Lowe, was presented with 
u tr an Publishers Association for his book The Jazz and Rock 

fessor Judith Rivalland was recognised for her 
outstanding contribution to literacy education with a National Literacy and Numeracy Week 

alia's best - Mr Travis Kelleher received $25,000 in 
 University Teaching. 

ognised for their contribution to high quality teaching 

 Brady (joint citation)  

arvey, Associate Professor Glenda Campbell-Evans 

At the 16th annual Western Australian Information 
Awards (WAITTA) in March 2007 Mr Garry Trinder, of 
ation Science, was awarded the prestigious WAITTA 

r Margaret Sims received the honour of being 
ry on early childhood, Life at 1.   

ow of the Association for the Advancement of 
ver was made a Fellow of the Association for the 

CE). 

iate Professor Daryoush Habibi, Head of School, 
 Engineers.  Professor Tony Watson was 

lia, the highest level of membership awarded to 
sion. 

Stage category of the Western Australian Inventor of the Year for his High-Speed Inter-Chip 
Optical Interconnect.  This invention uses micro-lenses in a novel way to substantially 
increase the speed and performance of home and office comp
rates of data transfer at lower cost and reduced energy consumption. 

• The Western Australian Premier’s Book Awards - Associate Pro

on We

• Professor Donna Cross named in the “Smart 100” list - Professor Donna Cross, Professor of 
Child and Adolescent Health, was included in the Bulletin’s “Smart 100” List.  The “Smart 
100” recognises 100 of the most innovative and creative people working in various industries 
across Australia.  Professor Cross was recognised for her work on child health promotion, 
particularly her research in prevention of bullying, depression and obesity. 

• 

• Outstanding Young Investigator Award - EC
Science, Dr Mike McGuigan was awarded the “Outstanding Young Investigator” for 2007 by 
the National Strength and Conditioning Association at its annual conference in Atlanta, 
Georgia. 

• Publishing Award - ECU cture
a prestigious award by the A s ali
Resource. 

• National Literacy Award - ECU’s Pro

Minister’s Award. 

• ECU lecturer recognised as one of Austr
the 2007 Carrick Awards for Australian

• Carrick Citations – ECU staff were rec
and learning in the higher education sector: 

- Dr Jan Gray and Dr Danielle

- Dr Bridget Leggett, Dr Michael H
(group citation) 

- Associate Professor Joseph Luca 

- Professor Judith Rivalland 

- Associate Professor Susan Stoney 

• ICT Achiever of the Year 2006 - 
Technology and Telecommunications 
the School of Computer and Inform
“Achiever of the Year” 2006 Award. 

• LOGIE Nomination - Associate Professo
nominated for a Logie for her documenta

• First Australian to be named Fell
Computing in Education - Professor Ron Oli
Advancement of Computing in Education (FAA

• Acclaim by Engineers Australia - Assoc
Engineering and Mathematics, was made a Fellow of
made a Companion of Engineers Austra
individuals outside the engineering profes

14 
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• Book Launch - Associate Pro
University’s Dr Wayne Erring

fessor Peter van Onselen co-authored with Australian National 
ton a biography called John Winston Howard. 

ar Award - Dr Magdalena Wajrak was named the inaugural 
Educator of the Year by the Royal Australian Chemical 

 included the Vice-Chancellor’s 2007 Distinguished Oration by 

mmunicates, involves and 

entation by 

arded 
tion Award.   

le work experience and assisted the 

h to Go Kids, Cancer Survivors and Healthy 
Ageing.   

iman and Dr Meghan Thomas on the issues surrounding the use of stem cells in 
research and for therapeutic intervention for those with debilitating diseases. 

in the Square Kilometre Array Project.  The lecture 
showcased a ground-breaking optical interconnect technology developed by ECU’s Professor 

r Lyn 

• Chemistry Educator of the Ye
Pearson Education Chemistry 
Institute. 

• Professor Patrick Garnett, Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research & Operations) retired from 
ECU at the end of 2007, having served for 34 years with the University and its predecessor 
organisations.  University Council awarded Professor Garnett the title Emeritus Professor 
and conferred the degree of Doctor of Education honoris causa for Professor Garnett’s 
outstanding contribution to the strategic directions and reputation of the University through 
exemplary and sustained service. 

 

 

Engaging and Serving Our Communities 
• The Governor of Western Australia, His Excellency Dr Ken Michael AC, visited ECU's 

Joondalup Campus in November, touring the new Library and Technology Centre and the 
new Health and Wellness Centre. 

• On-campus addresses in 2007  
Sam Walsh, Chief Executive of Rio Tinto Iron Ore, who gave an inspiring presentation 
entitled: Global discussions, local conversations – how business co
engages.  The presentation was attended by over 120 representatives from local 
government, business and mining sectors and the ECU community. 

• Other public addresses on issues of relevance to the community included a pres
the Commissioner of Corruption and Crime, the Hon Len Roberts-Smith RFD, QC. 

• The Vice-Chancellor hosted three dinners with school principals from the Joondalup, 
Mount Lawley and South West areas during the year. 

• Community Policing Award - ECU, in partnership with the City of Gosnells, was aw
the National Community Crime Preven

• ECU Hosts Rural Clinical School in Bunbury - The Commonwealth Department of Health 
and Ageing allocated $1m for the housing of the Rural Clinical School at ECU’s South West 
Campus. 

• ECU Law Students Serve Local Communities - ECU Law students, under the supervision of 
legal practitioners and University staff, gained invaluab
local community, following the opening in May 2007 of the Northern Suburbs Community 
Legal Centre in Joondalup.  

• The Vario Wellness Clinic at ECU – This new centre for community health offers a number 
of programs including: Diabetes Wellness, Weig

• Leadership in Stem Cell Research - A public forum was held at ECU’s Joondalup Campus by 
Dr Mel Z

• Square Kilometre Array (SKA) Project - ECU hosted a successful public lecture entitled: 
What is needed for Australia to w

Kamal Alameh, Director of the Western Australian Centre of Excellence for MicroPhotonic 
Systems as a potential enabling technology for the SKA project.  Guest speakers included 
Hon Fran Logan, Minister for Energy, Resources, Industry and Enterprise, Professo
Beazley, Chief Scientist for Western Australia and Professor Peter Quinn, Premier’s Fellow.  

 

15 



Edith Cowan University Annual Report 2007 

Providing a Supportive and Stimulating Learning Community 

s operations with the 

scholarships and 

re for Learning and Teaching (CLT) - The CLT will actively promote and enhance 

e-Art Teaching Facilities – The building program continued with new facilities 

underway for the new Business and Law Building on the Mount Lawley 

ith a more than nine per cent 

g (VCAET) – Five staff received this 

culty of Business and Law (Accounting, Finance and Economics); 

ucation and Arts (Communications and Contemporary 

 Faculty of Education and Arts (Communications and 

mputing, Health 

• Learning and Teaching Performance Fund – ECU was one of 23 universities (from a total of 
38 institutions) to be recognised for teaching quality.  ECU will receive a grant of $1.58m in 
2008 which will be used strategically to make further improvements to outcomes for 
students. 

• ECU-Emirates University Centre Opened in Dubai - ECU expanded it
Emirates Group with the opening of the ECU-Emirates University Centre at Dubai airport. 

• Enrolled Nurse Work Program - ECU launched an Enrolled Nurse Registration Pathway 
Program, the first in Western Australia.  

• Combating Teacher Shortages in Western Australia - ECU developed an innovative 
approach towards addressing teacher shortages in Western Australia through the 
introduction of a special two-year teaching degree. 

• New Suite of ECU-funded Scholarships – ECU introduced a new range of 
prizes recognising excellence and achievement, as well as a new suite of equity-based 
scholarships, to attract and retain talented students to ECU. 

• ECU Centre to Improve Teaching in the Asia-Pacific Region - Teaching quality in the Asia-
Pacific Region received a major boost, thanks to a new partnership between ECU and the 
philanthropic Sampoerna Foundation. 

• New Cent
the quality of the student experience at ECU by building its capacity to deliver world-class 
educational outcomes.  

• State-of-th
designed to enhance the quality of the learning experience for ECU students.  First-class 
facilities for ECU’s health and wellness programs were completed on the Joondalup Campus.  
A 350-seat lecture theatre was close to completion at the Joondalup Campus and 
construction was 
Campus.   

• 2007 saw an increase in international student numbers w
increase in enrolments overall and an almost 30 per cent increase in International Off-shore 
enrolments.   

• Vice-Chancellor’s Awards for Excellence in Teachin
award: 

- Mr Ray Boffey, Fa

- Dr Trevor Cullen, Faculty of Ed
Arts); 

- Associate Professor Joseph Luca,
Contemporary Arts); 

- Dr Maria Northcote, Faculty of Education and Arts (Education); and 

- Miss Diane Slade, Faculty of Education and Arts (Communications and Contemporary 
Arts). 

One VCAET group award was made to: Associate Professor Gavin Leslie, Ms Kerry 
Southerland, Ms Fenella Gill and Ms Lucia Gillman, from the Faculty of Co
and Science (Nursing, Midwifery and Postgraduate Medicine). 
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Developing Research Focus, Depth and Impact 
• Research income for 2007 was $9.79 million.  136 research projects were awarded funding 

which will generate $10.8m in research income over the next four years. 

• New Professorial Chairs - 12 new professorial chairs were advertised in September 2007. 

category, for his High-Speed Inter-Chip Optical Interconnect. 

• ARC Grant - Professor Kamal Alameh was successful in the ARC Grants, winning $327,500 for 
scrimination sensor for precision 

hrough AusIndustry. 

received $30,000 

l for business-to-business electronic 

lliative Care - The Western Australian 

Australian Marine Science Institute Joint Venture Agreement was signed at 

r cent of young people who are bullied have been bullied with 

ipates, was officially opened by the Western Australian Chief Scientist Professor 

er's disease.  

• Memorandum of Understanding Signed to Support ECU’S Work in Microphotonics - An 
MOU was signed between Shenzhen Institute of Advanced Technology, a world class research 
institute engaged in the development of chip-to-chip optical interconnects and ECU’s 
Centre of Excellence for Microphotonics Systems. 

• ECU Amongst Top Western Australian Inventors - Professor Kamal Alameh was named 
winner of the 2007 Western Australian Inventor of the Year Award - the Early Stage 

his project: Automated photonic multi-spectral weed di
agriculture. 

• AUSINDUSTRY Grant for Small and Medium Enterprise Research Centre - The Small and 
Medium Enterprise Research Centre was successful in gaining $337,000 for the Green 
Advantage for Small Business project t

• Linkage Grants - Two ECU research teams were successful in gaining Linkage Grant funding.  
Dr Judith Cockram and Professor Mark Rapley received $60,000 to investigate the cost of 
meeting the need for support services for people with intellectual disabilities.  Associate 
Professor Paul Newhouse, Professor Mark Hackling, Professor Ron Oliver, Associate Professor 
Cher Ping Lim, Dr Jeremy Pagram, Dr Dawn Penney and Dr Russell Waugh 
to investigate the feasibility of using digital representations of work for authentic and 
reliable performance assessment in senior secondary school courses. 

• Discovery Research Grant - Professor Craig Standing was awarded $202,000 over three 
years to investigate a strategic evaluation mode
marketplace participation. 

• The Western Australian Centre for Cancer and Pa
Centre for Cancer and Palliative Care was officially launched. 

• ECU Partnership in Western Australian Marine Science Institute Joint Venture - The 
Western 
Parliament House on 21 March 2007. 

• Professor Donna Cross Leads Landmark Research on Bullying - Professor Donna Cross 
announced findings of research by the Child Health Promotion Research Centre (CHPRC), 
which show that about 25 pe
the use of technology (such as mobile phone text messages and emails). 

• Nanoscale Characterisation Centre - This State Government Centre of Excellence, in which 
ECU partic
Lyn Beazley. 

• Hokkaido University and ECU: Partnering to Combat Alzheimer's - Japan's Hokkaido 
University and ECU commenced a joint research project into Alzheim
Hokkaido's Professor Toshiharu Suzuki and his team will work with ECU's Professor Ralph 
Martins to conduct research into newly identified genes linked to Alzheimer's disease. 

 

 

17 



Edith Cowan University Annual Report 2007 

Building Organisational Sustainability 
• Leadership capacity at the University was enhanced with a number of key leadership 

appointments in 2007, including the appointment of Professor Brenda Cherednichenko as 
the Executive Dean for the Faculty of Education & Arts, Professor Ronald Oliver as the Pro-
Vice-Chancellor (Teaching & Learning), Professor Arshad Omari as Deputy Vice-Chancellor 

 of 

ellent outcome was due to the significant staff 

 Best Building in the Royal Australian 

us – Sport and recreation at 

in a new “recreation hub” – a focal point for sports, 

e Joondalup Campus.  The building will house the Vario Health 

gst the Best in Using Energy Efficiently – ECU’s energy usage per student and 

Education Facilities Management Association. 

 and fit-out of its Nursing facilities.  In total ECU has received more than $5.2m 

puses to accommodate relocation of activities from the Churchlands Campus. 

enance of the University’s assets from 2008 onwards.  

and Professor John Finlay-Jones as Deputy Vice-Chancellor with responsibility for research. 

• The University’s 2007 Operating Result was $20.1m which included $10.6m gain on sale
assets relating to the Churchlands stage 1 and stage 2 development.  The 2007 operating 
result excluding the gain on sale of assets was $9.5m, which compares favourably to the 
reforecast budget of $6.0m.  This exc
commitment to manage resources effectively within the available funding.   

• Design Awards for ECU’s New Library and Technology Centre – ECU’s striking new 
complex received wide recognition and was voted
Institute of Architects (WA)’s 2007 Public Architecture Awards, as well as receiving the 
Royal Institute of British Architects’ International Award. 

• Sports and Recreation Facilities at the South West Camp
Bunbury was given a major boost with the announcement that ECU had successfully secured 
$2.2m of Commonwealth funds in two separate competitive funding rounds to build a 
recreation centre and outdoor courts 
recreation and social activities on the South West Campus precinct. 

• Health and Wellness Building – 2007 saw the occupation of the new $35m Health and 
Wellness Building on th
Institute as well as the School of Nursing, Midwifery and Postgraduate Medicine. 

• ECU’s Internet Presence - A review and significant redevelopment of the ECU website was 
initiated in 2007.  The review recommended that the University re-assess its use of the web 
and apply a stronger governance model.  The redesign will deliver a web experience more 
consistent with users’ individual needs. 

• ECU Amon
per square metre is well below usage levels of other Western Australian universities and the 
average for the Australian university sector as a whole, according to the latest 
benchmarking survey from the Tertiary 

• Nursing Facilities – In 2007 ECU received additional Commonwealth funding support for the 
building
towards the $14.0m costs of developing these facilities. 

• Ch urchlands Exit Nearing Completion – Good progress was made towards the completion of 
ECU’s campus consolidation strategy, with major new projects at the Joondalup and Mount 
Lawley cam

• A new five-year Asset Management Plan was developed in 2007, which will support the 
quality, growth and maint
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Report on Operations 

Engaging and Serving Our Communities 
ECU’s strategic direction gives a particular emphasis to engagement and the positive impact on the 
communities served by the University.  In the long-term, ECU seeks to be recognised for its range 

s local communities by promoting 

comprehensive, trans-disciplinary alliance of ECU’s 

cer 

entre.  The clinic is the primary 

ff and 
community members.  After reviewing the health assessments, the highest ranking health 
issues were identified, from which the students developed health promotion activities which 
were subsequently delivered to both mine employees and community members, in 
collaboration with community based health programs. 

• Child Health Promotion Research Centre – The Centre has established collaborative 
partnerships with the Western Australian Primary Principals Association, the Office of Road 
Safety, the Western Australian Police Service and the Department of Education and Training 
to deliver improved child health outcomes through a range of projects.   

• Shark Patrol Flights - On behalf of the Fisheries Department, ECU conducts shark patrol 
flights along the coast each summer.  Patrols are flown by ECU students who are qualified 
pilots and trainee pilots act as observers, looking for sharks and other marine life.  The 
patrols run between Two Rocks and Mandurah for up to eight hours each day, providing a 
valuable service to the community and benefiting students by providing work-based learning 
in Aviation studies. 

and quality of engagement activity, which will be a point of differentiation for ECU, producing 
mutual benefits and productive relationships with the University’s various communities.  

In 2007, ECU’s goals in this Strategic Priority Area were: 

• to build a reputation for academic outreach, research and creative output which impact and 
serve the needs of ECU’s communities; 

• to ensure that ECU’s curriculum reflects its commitment to engagement; 

• to promote broad understanding of ECU as an “engaged university”; and 

• to enhance the physical and cultural development of it
access to ECU resources and skills. 

In July 2007, a Council workshop was held focusing on the theme of Engagement.  This provided an 
opportunity to highlight some of the excellent engagement activities which were occurring across 
the University. 

A summary of ECU’s engagement activities is provided below. 

 

Academic Outreach, Research and Creative Output 
ECU seeks to build a reputation for academic outreach, research and creative output which impact 
and serve the needs of ECU’s communities.  Some 2007 highlights are listed below. 

• The Vario Institute – The Institute is a 
research capabilities, which aims to improve health and wellness outcomes within the 
community.  The Institute combines the knowledge, skills and resources of researchers in a 
range of disciplines, including exercise and sports science, nutrition and psychology, to 
undertake research and develop programs that generate significant health improvements 
within the community.  Current projects include: Diabetes Wellness Program, Can
Survivor Program, Weigh to go Kids and Healthy Ageing. 

• ECU Psychological Services Centre – This Centre provides services to the community at a 
teaching clinic located in Lakeside Joondalup Shopping C
training centre for postgraduate students in the School of Psychology at ECU.  Counsellors 
are graduate psychologists undergoing specialist advanced training at the Masters or 
Doctoral level and are closely supervised by ECU staff members. 

• Pilbara Health Challenge - In August 2007, 20 Nursing students and their supervisors visited 
Tom Price and Paraburdoo to complete health assessments on Pilbara Iron mine sta
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• Northern Suburbs Community Legal Centre – Based in Joondalup, the Centre was launched 
by the State Attorney General in May 2007 and is a joint initiative of ECU and the Northern 
Suburbs Community Legal Centre.  It aims to make the law accessible to the communities of 
the northern suburbs and provide an opportunity for law students to gain experience and 
practical skills in the legal field and reach out to local communities.  The Centre provides 
legal information and advice for the community in the areas of family and criminal law, 
domestic violence and some areas of civil law. 

 ECU launched a collaborative partnership with 
ce-Chancellor hosted three dinners with school 
 Lawley areas.  In addition, 2007 saw the 
rships and awards for a selection of over 160 

wide event in December 2007 to 
collaborative links between ECU 
s and the community. 

 ECU Industry Collaboration Scheme – This scheme secures new research partnerships for 
the University and funding in 2007 was increased by almost 30 per cent to $500,000 per 
annum.  Historically, more than half of the partners coming into the ECU Industry 
Collaboration Scheme are new partners for the University. 

• Practical Employee Management Skills Workshops – Workshops were held in Perth, 
Denmark, Mount Barker, Katanning and Jerramungup and attended by 470 small business 
owners who received information and advice on basic HR skills such as recruitment, 
selection and employee training. 

• ECU Alumni, Donors and Friends -  Alumni and development initiatives include: 

- re-establishment of the ECU Foundation Board and commencement of a review by 
the Vice-Chancellor of future fundraising strategies and governance arrangements; 

- donations to the ECU Arts Collection totalling $320,000, including donations of art 
by one single donor totalling $200,000; 

- ECU continued its campaign to seek community investment and support for the 
Vario Health Institute, producing a DVD and brochure, as well as assisting in other 
profiling opportunities; 

- ECU Alumni relationships were further enhanced through social events, reunions and 
networking opportunities.  A special campaign to gather staff Alumni information 
resulted in 415 responses to update contact details; and   

- the Path of Honour program welcomed 23 new inductees bringing the total number 
of Path of Honour tiles to 115.  A Path of Honour ceremony in November proved to 
be a moving and inspirational experience for all involved.  

 

Engagement in the Curriculum 
In 2007, ECU continued to build effective relationships with key external stakeholders, including key 
industry groups, employers and professional bodies.  ECU’s Academic Profile reflects its strong 
relationships with external stakeholders, particularly in the areas of health, education, arts and 
entertainment, law, policing and small business.  

ECU’s challenge in 2007 and beyond is to ensure that all parts of the curriculum reflect its 
commitment to engagement.  In 2007 there was progress in a number of areas as shown below. 

• Strategies for enhancing engagement in teaching and learning - A project is underway to 
identify and implement strategies to fully incorporate engagement into the curriculum and 
establish engagement as a critical component of program delivery for courses at ECU. 

• Consultative Committees – Through the operation of ECU’s consultative committees, 
representatives of business and industry are able to influence course design in all 
disciplines.  In 2007, 34 committees went through a process of re-invigoration and one 

• Strengthening relationships with schools –
Clarkson Community High School and the Vi
principals from the Joondalup and Mount
introduction of Year 11 and Year 12 schola
schools throughout Western Australia. 

• Research@ECU Engagement event - ECU held a University-
showcase ECU’s research excellence and to build potential 
and business, industry, the professions, government agencie

•
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hed.  This process will continue in 2008, with a further 

experiences, are integral to many 
ine, Psychology and Planning.  

 In collaboration with the Emirates Group, 

al Civil Aviation Authority. 

are working with 
nterventions. 

siness.  Six students were employed by a 

ngaged University” 
d one community partner may have 

nks with a number of different areas of ECU, for a range of purposes.  Nevertheless, the 
g links to the northern corridor of 
agement partners include: 

on, Employment 

ralian, CPA Australia, Nurses Board 

ies and building links with businesses 

•

isation can fit into more than one category depending on the 
engagement activity.  

additional committee was establis
four new committees planned. 

• Practicums, giving students practical workplace learning 
course programs including in Education, Health, Paramedic

• New engineering courses and practicums have been developed as a result of 
collaborations with WA Main Roads, the Water Corporation, KBR, Western Power and Wood 
& Grieve, which identified areas of civil and mechanical engineering not taught in the 
State’s universities. 

• ECU-Emirates Education and Research Centre -
ECU has established the ECU-Emirates Education and Research Centre in Dubai.  Through 
the Centre, ECU facilitates the delivery of specialised security programs and research.  The 
programs are affiliated with the Internation

• Postgraduate students in the Child Health Promotion Research Centre 
community agencies to develop and assess community health promotion i

• Final year students in Interactive Media Development are working with local industry and 
community groups to apply new technologies to bu
mining company as a direct result. 

 

ECU as an “E
ECU’s relationships are multi-layered, diverse and complex an
li
University’s engagement profile reflects its locations with stron
Perth and the South West region of Western Australia.  ECU’s eng

• Local, State and Federal Government – e.g.: local government organisations, the Western 
Australia Department of Health, the Commonwealth Department of Educati
and Workplace Relations, local politicians; 

• Other Education Providers – e.g.: West Coast TAFE, South West Regional College of TAFE, 
High Schools, Primary Schools, PIBT; 

• Employers – e.g.: Department of Education and Training, Water Corporation, BHP, Ernst & 
Young, Department of Environment and Conservation; 

• Professional Bodies – e.g.: Law Society of Western Aust
of Western Australia, Institute of Hospitality, Engineers Australia, Child Care Licensing 
Board, Australian Human Resources Institute, Australian Computer Society; and 

• Community – e.g.: community groups, Indigenous Australians, Alumni. 

 

ECU seeks to promote broad understanding of itself as an “engaged university”.  Some 2007 
strategic developments are outlined below. 

• An Engagement Plan was drafted to guide engagement activities.   

• An Engagement Reference Group, chaired by the Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Engagement) was 
established, charged co-ordinating engagement activit
and professional bodies. 

• An Engagement Scorecard was developed as a basis for measuring progress and success in 
engagement.  

 ECU has contributed to sector-wide debate on measuring engagement and the 
establishment of benchmarks, through its participation in the National Engagement 
Benchmarking Project led by the Australian Universities Community Engagement Alliance.  

• ECU has defined the types of organisations with which it expects to engage, by 
categorising these organisations according to interest and influence and recognising that in 
some cases an organ
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s to introduce two new student awards in 2008: the 

ments are shown below. 

 of a shared Sport and Fitness Centre, the construction of 
elopment of joint MLSHS / ECU programs and many 

 

ed by over 400 people.  WAAPA also provided rehearsal facilities for the Western 

ancellor’s 2007 Distinguished Oration was by Rio Tinto Iron Ore Chief 

stem cell research and 
Alzheimer’s disease. 

h included programs delivered by the Vario Wellness Clinic @ 
ight training for overweight children, help cancer survivors 

alup 
Campus. 

This 

Coast TAFE, develops strategies and programs which, through collaboration and 

• The South West Engagement Plan was implemented in 2007, through links with key 
industry, government and community organisations.  This included a collaboration with the 
South West Development Commission and local government to host the Regional Futures 
Conference in early 2007. 

• Early Career Development Program - ECU’s School of Nursing, Midwifery and Postgraduate 
Medicine has engaged with 31 students from 12 secondary schools as part of this State 
Government-funded scheme.  

• ECU has introduced incentives and rewards for effective engagement by staff, including 
recognition for engagement in the University’s Promotions Policy and in the criteria for 
Vice-Chancellor’s Awards to staff.  

• Student Awards - The University plan
Student Award for Outstanding Contribution to University Life; and the Student Award for 
Engagement.   

 

Physical and Cultural Development of Local Communities 
ECU seeks to enhance the physical and cultural development of its local communities by promoting 
access to ECU resources and skills.  Some 2007 Engagement achieve

• Mount Lawley Educational Precinct - ECU and Mount Lawley Senior High School (MLSHS) 
have a memorandum of understanding to share resources, facilities and curricula and to 
provide enhanced opportunities for students.  The two institutions have collaborated in 
sharing facilities, the construction
a shared multi-level car park, the dev
other initiatives.   

• The Western Australian Academy of Performing Arts (WAAPA) continues to play a key role 
in generating and maintaining numerous partnerships and close associations.  In 2007 WAAPA
produced over 200 public performances and held corporate workshops and audition master 
classes in acting, arts management, broadcasting, dance, music theatre and music, 
attend
Australian Youth Orchestra and Western Australian Youth Jazz Orchestra and both 
organisations collaborated with WAAPA on a number of projects.  

• The Vice-Ch
Executive, Sam Walsh, who spoke on the value of communications in business to a diverse 
group of staff, students, businesses and the wider community at ECU’s Joondalup Campus. 

• ECU also hosted many other public lectures and on-campus public addresses, including by 
the Hon Len Roberts-Smith RFD, QC, newly appointed Commissioner for Corruption and 
Crime, who gave his first public address at Mount Lawley in October.  Lectures on issues of 
relevance to the community were held on subjects such as 

• Community initiatives in healt
ECU to fight diabetes, provide we
and improve health for the elderly. 

• ECU hosted the Creating Safe and Happy Schools – Free from Bullying Conference, part of 
the National Safe Schools Week.  

• ECU is working with Twin Cities FM and the Lotteries Commission to relocate the 
community radio station from the City of Wanneroo Works Depot to ECU’s Joond

• Perth International Film Festival movies were again screened at the Joondalup Pines 
Picture Garden attracting strong community support from more than 16,500 attendees.  
event has become part of Western Australia’s annual cultural calendar. 

• The Joondalup Learning Precinct (JLP), which began in 2002 with the establishment of the 
Western Australia Police Academy on a site adjacent to the campuses of ECU and West 
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was reinvigorated and now formally includes the City of 

13 

engagement, add value to the member institutions, their staff and students and the wider 
community.  In 2007 the JLP 
Joondalup.  The JLP Board met monthly in the latter part of 2007. 

• The JLP Centre for Leadership’s Leading Edge program continued in 2007 with 
participants recruited from six organisations in the state and local government sector: 
Western Australian Police Service, Department of Housing and Works, Disability Services 
Commission, Racing & Gaming Western Australia, City of Joondalup and West Coast College 
of TAFE.  Evaluations of the program from participants and external facilitators have been 
very positive. 

• A successful cross-institutional staff mentoring program involving ECU, the West Coast 
College of TAFE and the Western Australian Police Academy continued with 28 staff 
participating in 2007. 
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ic Priority Area were: 

erience”. 

 order to improve the quality of teaching, during 2007 ECU focused on: 

rdised on-line Mid-course 

 

the Mid-course CEQ reported to Heads of School; 

ntion; and 

aching Performance Fund outcomes for 2007. 

ney was appointed in December 2007 as inaugural head of the CLT, an academic 

s of units; and 

Providing a Supportive and Stimulating Learning Community  
ECU seeks to be recognised for providing a world-class education and a fulfilling student experience.  
In 2007, ECU’s goals in this Strateg

• to improve the quality of teaching across the University; 

• to optimise student load through attracting and retaining students; 

• to be responsive to students and employer needs by providing relevant programs, taught in 
ways that engage its students; and 

• to enhance the overall “student exp

 

Quality in Teaching 
In

• engaging in debate on the University’s performance; 

• developing new mechanisms to recognise and reward good teaching; 

• better utilising performance measurement and reporting mechanisms; and 

• implementing changes to teaching support services.   

 

Much progress was made in 2007, with a number of key initiatives commencing.  A Pro-Vice-
Chancellor (Teaching & Learning), Professor Ron Oliver, was appointed to co-ordinate these 
initiatives.   

During 2007 the Vice-Chancellor visited each of the schools within ECU, to open up dialogue on 
teaching performance and opportunities for improvement.   

Improving performance in teaching and learning is aided by reliable and timely measurement and 
reporting of teaching performance data to faculties and schools. In the area of teaching 
performance measurement and reporting, initiatives in 2007 included: 

• Surveying was improved by the introduction of a new standa
version of the Course Experience Questionnaire (CEQ) which showed response rates (49 per 
cent), similar to those of the previous paper survey method. 

• An internal Teaching Quality Index was developed using the CEQ/ Graduate Destination
Survey (GDS) and Unit and Teaching Evaluation Instrument (UTEI) results and will be used in 
the 2008 budget process to recognise and reward good teaching. 

• Teaching performance was reported to the University community with: 

- the results of 

- on-line UTEI and CEQ results reported to schools and committees;  

- new course co-ordinators’ reports on course evaluation, graduate destinations, 
student progression and rete

- reports produced which analysed ECU’s CEQ and GDS results, particularly with 
regard to Learning and Te

A review of ECU’s teaching support services was conducted during 2007, with the resultant 
McKinnon Walker Report leading to the creation of a Centre for Learning and Teaching (CLT).  
Professor Sue Sto
leader with more than 25 years experience in tertiary teaching.  The CLT will have a research-led 
focus on improving the quality of learning & teaching, with learning and teaching award winners 
utilised as champions to guide CLT projects.  Scoping work for early projects included: engagement 
in learning and teaching; implementing ECU’s new Graduate Attributes; quality audit
on-line induction to teaching at ECU for ECU staff teaching offshore. 

In addition, the Learning and Teaching website is being redeveloped to provide a more seamless and 
effective way to support teaching staff and to provide access to learning and teaching information.   
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at the quality of the University’s teaching and learning has been recognised 

CU was also successful in its bid to host a Literacy & Numeracy Summer School in January 2008, 
the Australian Government Summer Schools for Teachers initiative.  The summer school is a 

ollaboration between ECU, the University of Wollongong, the University of New England and the 
Australian Literacy Educators’ Association. 

 

Staff Recognition 

The ECU learning community also enjoyed significant success in a variety of awards given by the 
Carrick Institute for Learning and Teaching in Higher Education.  These were: 
 
2007 Carrick Citations for Outstanding Contributions to Student Learning 

• Dr Jan Gray, Dr Danielle Brady  

• Dr Bridget Leggett, Dr Michael Harvey, Associate Professor Glenda Campbell-Evans (group 
award) 

• Associate Professor Joseph Luca 

• Professor Judith Rivalland 

• Associate Professor Susan Stoney 

 
2007 Carrick Award for Teaching Excellence - Early Career 

• Mr Travis Kelleher  
 
2007 Carrick Award for Programs that Enhance Learning 

• The International Student Support Team (Ms Cassandra Colvin, Mr Peter Mitchell, Mr 
Nicholas Tan, Mr Fozzil Jaffar and Miss Vanessa Trovato) for The First-Year Experience: 
ECU’s International Student Orientation: a model of collaboration, inclusiveness and 
student-informed planning. 

Five staff received this year’s Vice-Chancellor’s Awards for Excellence in Teaching (VCAET): 

• Mr Ray Boffey, Faculty of Business and Law (Accounting, Finance and Economics); 

• Dr Trevor Cullen, Faculty of Education and Arts (Communications and Contemporary Arts); 

• Associate Professor Joseph Luca, Faculty of Education and Arts (Communications and 
Contemporary Arts); 

• Dr Maria Northcote, Faculty of Education and Arts (Education); and 

• Miss Diane Slade, Faculty of Education and Arts (Communications and Contemporary Arts). 

There was also one group VCAET award: 

• Associate Professor Gavin Leslie, Ms Kerry Southerland, Ms Fenella Gill and Ms Lucia 
Gillman, from the Faculty of Computing, Health and Science (Nursing, Midwifery and 
Postgraduate Medicine). 

 

Achievements in Teaching 
Recognition for ECU 

In October 2007, it was announced that ECU was one of 23 universities which will receive funding 
through the Commonwealth Government’s Learning and Teaching Performance Fund for 2008.  The 
assessment uses indicators of performance from the Course Experience Survey (Generic Skills, Good 
Teaching and Overall Satisfaction), the Graduate Destinations Survey (Full-time Employment and 
Further Study), together with two further measures of student success (Progress and Retention).   

This is the first time th
in this way.  ECU showed a strong relative performance in the discipline group Science, Computing, 
Engineering, Architecture and Agriculture and improvement was also seen in the discipline group 
Business, Law and Economics. 

E
part of 
c
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sity” experience, re-focusing 
ce. 

ts fell for a fourth consecutive year to 16,207.  The 
et in Western Australia is believed to be a 

or contributor to this downturn (see Economic and Social Trends page 54).   

stic student enrolments have been in decline from 2003 to 2007.  Domestic 
17,077 in 2006 and 16,210 in 2007, a fall of 5 per cent. 

Attracting and Retaining Students 
ECU seeks to optimise its student load by attracting and retaining students motivated and capable 
of benefiting from higher education.  A number of strategies are employed to achieve this aim, 
including by widening opportunities, enhancing the “first year at univer
student marketing strategies and improving ECU’s internet presen

 

Domestic Student Numbers  

In 2007, ECU’s domestic student enrolmen
continuing economic boom and buoyant labour mark
maj

Table 1 shows that dome
student enrolments were 

Table 1: ECU Domestic Student Enrolments, 2003-2007 

Domestic Student Enrolments 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Change 2006 
- 2007 

Undergraduate and below 15,557 15,223 14,448 13,975 13,256 -5.1% 

Postgraduate 2,717 2,790 3,086 3,102 2,954 -4.8% 

Total 18,274 18,013 17,534 17,077 16,210 -5.1% 

Note: 1. Cross-institutional and Non-award enrolments have been allocated to the Undergraduate and below category.  2.  
Data reference date is 31st March.  3. Domestic Student enrolments include Australian and New Zealand Citizens, Permanent 
Residents and those with Humanitarian Visas. 

th in International Off-shore 
n ents of almost 30 per cent (419) in 2007 compared with 2006.  

 
International Student Numbers 

ECU’s international student numbers grew for the second year in a row and in 2007 showed a 
marked increase of 9.4 per cent (379), which contrasts with the trend in domestic student 
enrolments.  Table 2 below shows that this increase was due to grow
e rolm

Table 2: ECU International Student Enrolments, 2003-2007 

International Student Enrolments 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Change 2006 
– 2007 

International On-shore 2,100 2,297 2,443 2,616 2,576 -1.5% 

International Off-shore 1,337 1,359 1,127 1,400 1,819 29.9% 

Total 9.4%3,437 3,656 3,570 4,016 4,395  

Note 240.  This has been 
cor

 
 
Student L

Studen ribe student 

on the previous year.   

: 1. The 2006 Annual Report misquoted the 2005 International On-shore enrolment figure as 2
rected here.  2. Data reference date is 31st March.    

oad – all categories 

t load, measured in full-time equivalents (EFTSL), is the usual way to desc
participation across all funding categories.   

Table 3 below shows that the majority of the University’s load is in the Commonwealth Grant 
Scheme funding category, which in 2007 accounted for 67.2 per cent of the total load.  Fee-paying 
Overseas load (On-shore and Off-shore) is 22.4 per cent of total load. 

Total student load has been in decline for the last four years and the total load for 2007 (15,290 
EFTSL) was 618 EFTSL, or 3.9 per cent below target.  The total load through the Commonwealth 
Grant Scheme was 10,279 EFTSL, down by 589 EFTSL, or 5.4 per cent 
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e and Off-shore) has increased in each year from 2004 to 2007.  It 
oportion of the University’s total load and rose from 2792 (or 17.2 per cent of 
419 (or 22.4 per cent of total load) in 2007.  

Fee-paying Overseas load (On-shor
is also an increasing pr
total load) in 2004 to 3

Table 3: Student Load (EFTSL) by Funding Category, 2004-2007 

2004 2005 2006 20072 
 Funding Category Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

Comm ,279 onwealth Grant Scheme 11,205 11,876 11,722 11,384 12,025 10,868 10,868 10

Resea 247 rch Training Scheme1 190 275 242 259 237 264 270 

Fee-p 2,152 1,990 2,086 2,154 2,161 2,248 2,318 2,219 aying Overseas On-shore 

Fee-p 200 aying Overseas Off-shore 838 802 741 784 579 1,013 1,196 1,

Fee-p 838 aying Australian Postgraduate 972 827 920 930 985 894 798 

Fee-p 45 51 69 14 16 24 77 aying Australian Undergraduate 75 

Vocat nal Education & Training 430 430 430 430 430 430 434 430 io

TOTA 15,862L (all categories)  16,245 16,192 16,010 16,431 15,733 15,908 15,290 

 
Notes: All figures are full year as at 23 January 2008 and therefore cannot be compared to the 31 March figures shown in the 

mmary Statistics table.  1. Includes ECU-funded HDR.  2. 2007 Actuals are provisional.  Targets shown are those externally-Su
reported.  ECU also uses internal targets for budgetary purposes.  Source: DEST Educational 
Cowan University.  Definition: Full-year Load by Funding Category, excluding TAFE EFT

Profiles Data Collection, Edith 
SL, Tuition Fee exempt (HDR 

s per HESA reporting requirements, 2007 figures include total official 
ugust 2007 (includes preliminary load figures for Summer School 

strategies to improve access by widening opportunities.  
ent of admissions pathways, providing more options for 

exible learning and on-line learning and by providing additional support for those students “at 

rses 

In total 423 applications were received, up 

inly processes TER applications.   2007 initiatives included: 

ination 

partment of Health’s Office of the Chief Nurse and the Program.   

ber of Commonwealth-
p rted places for the University Preparation Course (UPC), designed for those wishing to develop 

s 
ns of equipping students for successful study, providing a 

ed entry to ECU.   

ity environment, 85 Year 11 students from St Stephen’s School 
udied one unit of the UPC on campus in 2007 Semester 2.  

exchange), Tuition waivers and Non Award EFTSL.  A
load figures reported to DEST for 31st March 2007 and 31st A
and post August [Trimester 3 and Term 4]). 
 

 

Widening Opportunities  

During 2007 ECU pursued a number of 
These strategies included the developm
fl
risk” of failing or ceasing their studies. 

Admission Pathways and Enabling Cou

The Portfolio Entry pathway continued to grow in 2007.  
from 344 applications in 2006.  299 offers were made, compared with 255 in 2006. 

ECU continued to develop its non-TER entry pathways.  In 2007 approximately 36 per cent of 
commencing undergraduates entered Bachelor courses directly, rather than through the Tertiary 
Institutions Service Centre, which ma

• an additional portfolio entry pathway for ECU’s Education programs, based on nom
by school principals; 

• pathways for TAFE graduates wishing to articulate to ECU’s undergraduate programs; and 

• the Enrolled Nurse Registration Pathway Program, developed in partnership with the 
Western Australian De

Enabling courses were expanded with the provision of a greater num
sup o
tertiary learning skills before commencing an undergraduate course.  The UPC consistently elicit
positive student responses and is a mea
pathway for those who might not have otherwise gain

In 2007 four UPC units gained Curriculum Council recognition as contributing to the new Western 
Australian Certificate of Education.  In a trial project designed to give high school students an 
experience of study in a univers
st
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ogram) course was converted into an Enabling course.  

U and are succeeding in their 
  

pecially with those 

In addition, in a competitive bidding process in 2007, ECU obtained four additional Commonwealth 
w Indigenous Enabling and Access Scholarships.  

This brings the total Commonwealth Scholarships available to ECU students for 2008 to more than 
.3m.   

 

-Campus Opti St

 has completed its move rin  ex  stu nd will now seek to grow 
d off-campus courses.  Off f u r h work gra

studies area.  2007 saw the introduction of a streamlined process for identifying, offering and 

CU further developed its distinctive style of teaching and learning in 2007, with more than 1000 
ourse developments continue to provide support for flexibility in, 

The Key Performance Indicator Report at page 155 of the Annual Report includes a retention key 
udents.  This shows that ECU’s retention 

rates declined to 79.1 per cent in 2004 and have since improved to 79.6 per cent in 2006.  This is 
ge of 80  ce

Retention strategies continue to be a priority for the University.  Retention of students co-
lly designated m  wi U’ Centre and strategies 

a y those students m t ris ropp t.  I 7 eac ulty also p  
 

tion, the University is respondin  n S N l C h a inated pr

on international students, all student cohorts are 
xpected to benefit from this initiative.  

 learning and working environment for its students and 

arn and work. 

s, with 
disabilities and from Indigenous backgrounds, with the aim of improving both access to ECU courses 
and study success. 

In addition, the TAPS (Teacher Assistants Pr

An analysis of retention and success of students entering ECU through its various admission 
pathways was conducted in 2007.  Extension of ECU’s admissions pathways has meant that in 2006 
and 2007 190 students, who under previous admission pathways would have not met entry 
requirements for ECU, have taken up the opportunity offered by EC
higher education studies. 

 

Scholarships 

In 2007 ECU developed a revised suite of ECU-funded scholarships and awards for 2008 entrants.  
These have been promoted with secondary schools in Western Australia and es
schools in areas in proximity to ECU’s campuses.  The intention is to encourage students who may 
not have considered university study to engage with ECU while still in Year 11 and Year 12. 

Scholarships for Associate Degree students and 45 ne

1100, worth approximately $3

Flexible Delivery and Off ons for udy 

The University from p t-based ternal dies a
on-line an erings o this nat re are la gely in t e course duate 

promoting on-line and off-campus courses.  Off-campus offerings have been clearly identified and 
possible additions are being evaluated.   

E
units now available on-line and c
and opportunities for, multiple exit modes and delivery formats.  

 

Retention Strategies 

performance measure for commencing Bachelor pass st

slightly below the national avera .9 per nt. 

 is 
ordinated by a specia anager thin EC s Student Services 
re in place to identif

place a retention strategy.
ost a k of d ing ou n 200 h fac ut in

In addi g to the ew ESO ationa ode wit  co-ord oject 
to deliver a new approach to identify “at-risk” international students and establish appropriate 
intervention strategies.  Although focusing 
e

 

A Diverse Student Cohort 

ECU has created a diverse and contemporary
staff which respects diversity and difference.  The University prides itself on its support for this 
positive environment and continues to instigate and implement policies and processes to develop a 
welcoming, vibrant culture that is supportive and inclusive and free from discrimination, 
harassment and bullying, thereby making ECU an attractive place to le

ECU maintains a broad commitment to removing barriers to access for disadvantaged students and 
to promote equality of opportunity in higher education.  The University has placed a special focus 
on assisting students from low socio-economic status backgrounds (low SES), from rural area
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ts as a proportion of the total 
consistent with the Australian higher 

and proportion of studen tifying as ha disability inc  in 2007 com

CU Studen at qu p 00

Consistent with an overall reduction in enrolments at ECU, enrolments for Equity Group students 
have shown a decline in recent years.   

As shown in Figure 3 and Tables 4 and 5, Equity Group participan
student body have also been in decline and this trend is 
education sector.   

The number 
with 2006. 

ts iden ving a reased pared 

Figure 3: Proportion of E t Popul ion by E ity Grou , 2003-2 7 
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Table 4: Proportion of ECU Student Population by Equity Group, 2003-2007 

Proportion 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Low SES 21.0% 20.8% 18.7% 18.9% 18.6% 

Rural 10.5% 10.0% 9.0% 9.0% 8.9% 

Indigenous 2.4% 1.8% 1.5% 1.4% 1.2% 

Disability 2.2% 2.0% 2.0% 1.7% 2.0% 

 

Table 5: Number of ECU Student Population by Equity Group, 2003-2007 

Numbers 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Low SES 3,714  3,750  3,155  3,078  2,910  

Rural 1,855  1,805  1,518  1,464  1,390  

Indigenous 417  328  260  230  186  

Disability 395  352  336  285  318  

 

Figure 3 shows that the proportion of low SES, Rural and Disability students has remained relatively 
steady for the period 2005 to 2007.  The proportion of Indigenous students has been in decline over 
the full period 2003 to 2007. 

These trends may be linked to the strong domestic economy, as low unemployment rates may 
attract people to employment rather than study, particularly for those from disadvantaged 
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, 

he commencing year of university study is regarded as a crucial one for student retention.  In 2007 
e provision of study skills and learning support was reviewed and reorganised.  Services will be 

ugh Learning Centres, established on each campus.   

ent of Learning Centres to provide enhance learning and 
language support; and 

up a support group for mature-aged first year 
students.   

 
publications, an orientation website and a Campus Tour podcast.  

 2007, based on research with students, staff and key stakeholders, a new brand model for ECU 
unched.  The brand model sets the tone for all ECU external communications, 

defines the key messages that the university wishes to convey and explains the position that ECU 

backgrounds.  In the case of Indigenous people, the decline in participation may result, in part
from changes to the financial support arrangements introduced by previous Commonwealth 
Governments.   

 

First Year at University 

T
th
delivered thro

A First Year at University Working Party was established, leading to the development of a series of 
discrete programs to support first-year student, including: 

• the development of restructured orientation program to provide co-ordinated support to 
students in early stages of their university study; 

• planning for a First Year Website which will contain support materials and relevant 
supporting information; 

• planning for the establishm

• the establishment of a pilot project to set 

A comprehensively enhanced orientation and transition program was developed during 2007, 
building on initiatives begun in 2006.  This program includes a number of projects such as support 
groups for mature-aged students and rural students; workshops in “survival cooking” and “survival 
budgeting” and cultural awareness; “Launch Days” to welcome new students; and orientation  

 

ECU’s Marketing Strategies 

In
was developed and la

wants to hold in the marketplace.  The university’s previous marketing revolved around ‘great 
careers’ while the current marketing aims to portray ECU as the place to go to ‘reach your 
potential’.  Correspondingly, the previous ‘ecugreatcareers’ marketing website was relaunched as 
‘reachyourpotential.com’.   

A new marketing campaign was also launched in 2007 – “ECU Students Speak for Themselves”.  Key 
to this campaign was a series of television advertisements that demonstrated the quality of the 
teaching and learning environment at ECU.  These featured students in scenarios that showcased 
the University’s excellent study facilities and teaching programs in disciplines such as Sports 

A collaborative advertising campaign featuring a research graduate (an ECU alumnus) was also 
r Degree students to ECU. 

so provided to 

Science, Nursing, Teacher Education, Engineering and Communications.  Supporting press and radio 
advertisements used student, staff and employer testimonials to deliver key messages relating to 
the relevance and practical nature of the University’s programs and the quality of the teaching staff 
and facilities at ECU.  This highly successful campaign was adopted across the University, in all 
faculties and schools.   

conducted to attract Research & Highe

A new Student Recruitment and Careers team enabled the University to increase its recruitment 
activities in schools and in the community for school-leavers and mature-aged prospective students.  
During August, September and October the team worked to engage with schools and students prior 
to commencement of the TEE.  Two successful open days were also staged and student recruitment 
staff made presentations to more than 10,000 prospective students.  Advice was al
5500 careers event patrons.   

Throughout the year recruitment officers handled 24,000 phone inquiries, 6500 queries via e-mail, 
and 1300 campus visitors.  The reachyourpotential.com website attracted 329,000 unique visitors, 
an increase of 6 per cent compared with 2006.  Student Recruitment has utilised a wide variety of 
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ts.  A monthly e-newsletter was sent to about 12,000 

icant growth potential (e.g. China and India); maintenance of markets in key 

nt recruitment agents, to 
n enhanced web presence 

and electronic processes for marketing, application and admission.  Strategic links with offshore 
partners providing pathways for study onshore were also developed and in 2007 some 24 new 
twinning, articulation, exchange and study abroad agreements were established with institutions in 
South East Asia, North America, Europe and Africa, as well as a further 14 memoranda of 
understanding.   
 

ECU’s Internet Presence 

A significant redevelopment of the ECU website is underway, led by Professor Arshad Omari, Deputy 
Vice-Chancellor.  Its initial focus will be visual re-design, the development of new website 
governance processes, a content management system to ensure consistency and accuracy 
throughout the site, a web portal so users can achieve a web experience more consistent with their 
individual needs and improvements to a range of systems associated with student support, such as 
Callista, Blackboard, the Course Management Systems and the reachyourpotential.com

events such as pizza evenings, information seminars and targeted presentations to improve the 
information available to future studen
subscribers 

Recruitment strategies for international students in 2007 were three-pronged: a focus on source 
countries with signif
source countries (e.g. Zambia, Kenya, Norway and most of South East Asia); and further 
development of emerging markets in the Middle East and South America. 
 
Continued attention was given to ECU’s network of international stude
supplement direct recruitment and there was further development of a

 website.  

 

 

Responsiveness to Students and Employers 
Assessment Practices 

A review of the University’s Assessment Policy and practices began in 2007. 

Arts conducted seminars on the challenge of assessment. 

siness and Law to address 
employer concerns over perce busine ficiencies in graduates.  Assessment now 
in w ind ju  

 

On-line Learnin u

O ort its as ou  2007.  On-line materials are now also available via 
B  to “student communit nro n a er of awards, in addition to the familiar unit 
ites, as well as to staff.  This allows communication by course co-ordinators with their students 

both actively via email and via the provision of on-line resources for that course.  The number and 
course of the year. 

Go  in am nit pp by troduction of standards for the provision of 
resou r on-line and campus course s where face-to-face teaching 
i ented with re s le e  Blackboard learning management system.  
A ess of a   t  peration.  In 2007 Semester 2, ECU had 
Black oard unit sites for 1262 units, olvin  per students. 

During 2007 the “FlexiLecture” proj eaching spaces for the automatic 
c  lectur ter  as tud ear making lectures available on an ad hoc 
asis to be viewed on-line (videostreaming) and downloaded as podcasts via Blackboard and faculty 

The Faculty of Education and 

The “ECU Business Edge” program was established by the Faculty of Bu
ived 
dges”.

ss skills de
cludes revie s by “ ustry 

g Reso rces 

n-line supp for un  incre ed thr ghout
lackboard ies” e lled i  clust

s

types of these “student communities” has grown to over 150 over the 

od quality
rces fo

 off-c pus u
off-

s is su orted 
s and 

 the in
for on-line material

s supplem source availab  on-lin  via the
 proc

b
uditing against these s

inv
andards

g 85
is in o

cent of 

ect continued to equip t
apture of e ma ial to sist s ent l ning by 

b
servers.  Seven such spaces were available at the end of the year, with major lecture theatres on 
the Joondalup, Mount Lawley and Bunbury campuses fully installed.  New installations will be 
provided for Nursing lectures early in 2008. 
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Profile 

 further differentiate ECU within 

atives to respond to emerging demand 

ofessional Studies).   

xperience” 

arning experiences at ECU.  These enhancements included: 

are enrolled.  These programs 
will be further refined in 2008; 

frastructure to enhance student access to information,  services and a 

ampuses; 

• consulting students at every stage in the planning and implementation of services; 

 as pastoral, cultural, health and 

tem was implemented across the University in early 2007 to help 

A comprehensive roll-out of lecture capture technologies is underway and by mid-2008 over 40 
teaching spaces across the University’s campuses will be served by state-of-the-art lecture capture 
facilities. 

 

Review of the Academic 

In 2007 there was a review of performance of major academic programs across a range of indicators 
of student satisfaction and graduate outcomes.  This analysis will help to inform a broad review of 
ECU’s Academic Profile in 2008 and to identify new opportunities to
the sector. 

During 2007 each faculty actively explored new course initi
for education in a number of new areas.  As a result, new programs will be offered in 2008, 
including in Writing, Criminology and Juvenile Justice, Disability Studies, a two-year teaching 
degree and the Diploma in Science (at the Faculty of Regional Pr

 

 

Enhancing the “Student E
During 2007 ECU implemented enhanced support services to assist students to maximise the 
outcomes of their le

• the introduction of a highly successful information evenings for commencing students, which 
encouraged students to attend with a support person to begin to engage in and understand 
the level of support services available to ECU students; 

• the implementation of centralised orientation and transition programs to ensure a student’s 
experience are not dependent on the course in which they 

• the introduction of in
tailored experience at ECU.  These strategies included:  

- the introduction of an enquiry management system;  

- the opening of “student friendly” Student Central at Mount Lawley Campus with i-
point infrastructure;  

- planning for further i-point areas at buildings on the Mount Lawley, Joondalup and 
South West c

- provision of additional formal and informal teaching and learning spaces with refit 
projects on the Joondalup Campus and the Mount Lawley Campus; 

- the amalgamation of student recruitment and careers advisory services to provide a 
continuous service in career choice and development for prospective students 
through to alumni; and 

- the implementation of a teaching timetable using a sophisticated system which 
groups units on certain days to allow students campus free days;  

• innovative support programs for students in areas such
well-being; and 

• support for the development and maintenance of international student groups. 

 

Enquiry Management and Student Admissions 

The Enquiry Management Sys
attract and retain students by streamlining sources of information and advice.  The system channels 
enquiries through 23 service points, primarily in the Student Recruitment and Careers Centre and 
the Student Contact Centre, while more complex enquires go to designated referral points within 
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face enquiries. 
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plementation of a revised 
nd on-line UTEI.  Through marketing and an incentive scheme to encourage participation, response 

 conducted during November and December and reported to student service 
roviders and facilities managers to inform their planning.  Further detailed analysis and reporting 

arter of 2008. 

ms 
cluding the UTEI, CEQ and GDS survey instruments.   

s can be seen from Figure 4 below, student perception of teaching quality has steadily improved 
end 2006.  Likewise overall satisfaction with 
    The revised questions and data collection 

 2007 has led to changed outcomes with new baseline data for comparisons.  
isfaction using student 

Figure 4: ECU UTEI Mean Overall Satisfaction with Teaching Quality and Unit Content, 2003-2007 

Student Feedback 

The Unit and Teaching Evaluation Instrument (UTEI) provides a student assessment of unit content 
and teaching quality on a semester by semester basis.  2007 saw the im
a
rates were achieved which were similar or better than the previous paper-based version of the 
survey. 

A new student experience survey was developed and implemented in 2007 with the objective of 
providing more meaningful and comprehensive data to underpin both short and long-term planning 
for student needs.  The first student survey was conducted on-line in October 2007 with response 
rates (at around 30 per cent) almost triple the result of the 2004 survey.  An interim analysis of 

rvey results wassu
p
is planned for the March qu

Development of a surveys policy, aimed at ensuring that students are surveyed in a co-ordinated 
and appropriate manner, commenced in 2007.  This policy will be finalised in the first half of 2008. 

 

ECU Teaching Outcomes 

Teaching and learning quality at ECU is measured and reviewed through a number of mechanis
in

A
since the introduction of the UTEI in 2002 until the 
content has grown from 2002 until the end of 2006.
process implemented in
The University will continue to implement activities to improve student sat
feedback from the UTEI. 
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The most recent results for ECU graduates in 2006 (surveyed in 2007) have not yet been made 
available by Graduate Careers Australia and so no comment is made in the Annual Report on 
performance for 2007 concerning the University’s Generic Skills, Good Teaching or Overall 
Satisfaction scores, or on the Graduate Destination Survey outcomes: Full-time Employment and 
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nd strategies to improve ECU’s student satisfaction and graduate outcomes were 
onsidered by the Quality and Audit Committee and the Academic Board in 2007.  Further work will 

for particular attention. 

 and this will continue to be a priority in 2008.  Initiatives in 2007 included: 

 working with 
faculties to ensure opportunities are available to prepare job-ready students; and 

• embedding ECU’s Graduate Attributes into  the University’s teaching and learning.  ECU 
Graduates will be valued for their: ability to communicate; ability to work in teams; critical 

s; and cross-cultural and international outlook.  

evelop this strategy 

ampus; 

s at the South West Campus precinct, including the upgrade 

ion of pathways from Student Housing; and  

 

 

Further Study.  The Key Performance Indicator Report at page 155 of the Annual Report provides 
the latest information on ECU’s performance on these measures.   

Analyses a
c
be done in 2008 to identify areas 

 

“Job-ready” Graduates 

Additional work is required to improve the success of ECU graduates in gaining and succeeding in 
employment

• a volunteer accreditation program, established by the Child Health Promotion Research 
Centre, allowed more than 25 students to gain research work experience;  

• the Student Recruitment and Careers team is now in place and is focusing on

appraisal skills; ability to generate idea

ECU contributed to a Universities Australia proposal for a “national internship scheme” and will 
engage with others in the sector and with graduates and employer groups to d
further.  

 

Campus Facilities  

ECU continues to develop its campus facilities to enhance the “university experience” of its 
students.  2007 saw a number of improvements in campus facilities including: 

• Completion of a state-of-the-art library building, which includes a 200 seat computer 
megalab and group study rooms, on the Joondalup Campus; 

• Improved food outlet and bookshop facilities on the Joondalup C

• A new short-term childcare facility introduced in response to student feedback;  

• A number of security initiative
of access control, CCTV and duress alarm systems, the introduction of a Security Officer on 
campus during University operating hours, the improvement of walkway and campus 
external lighting and the introduct

• Planning for additional student housing accommodation on the Mount Lawley Campus 
has commenced.  
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CU seeks to be recognised for high impact research which contributes social, economic, 
al and cultural benefits.  In 2007 ECU’s goals in the Strategic Priority Area of research 

completions and research graduates with valued knowledge and skills. 

ly 2007.  Based on research income and publications, six 

reas of strength 

llness 

2. Security, Law and Justice 
 

Building Areas of Concentration, Depth and Sustainability 

Strategies for building the identified areas of strength include: targeted senior research 
appointments, generating additional research income, better allocation of research resources and 
increasing the Higher Degree by Research (HDR) load in strategic areas.  

 

Research Appointments 

Senior research appointments in 2007 included three Professors and 12 Associate Professors.  In 
addition, 12 new Professorial Chairs were advertised in September 2007. 

The recruitment of these additional senior research-oriented positions is expected to provide a 
substantial boost to future research productivity at ECU.   

 

Research Income in 2007 

Allocation of Research Block Funding is based on ECU’s research performance relative to the sector, 
in income, publications and Higher Degree by Research completions.  ECU has continued to improve 

s overall research performance with consequent increases in Research Block Funding to $6.7m in 
007, which is a 3.9 per cent increase on 2006 (see Table 6 below). 

Developing Research Focus, Depth and Impact 
E
environment
were: 

• to build its research enterprise and generate enhanced research outcomes in selected areas 
of excellence, particularly those with the potential for high social, economic, 
environmental and cultural impact; and 

• to provide high quality research training to produce high rates of research higher degree 

 

High Impact Research 
Areas of Strength and Opportunity  

The Research and Research Training Functional Plan, 2007-2010 was endorsed by the Academic 
Board and then approved by Council in Ju
areas of strength and two of areas of opportunity were identified and will be fostered for the next 
three years: 

A

1. Health and We
2. Education 
3. Environment and Sustainability 
4. Electronic Engineering and Information and Communications Technology  
5. Social and Community 
6. Business and Society 

 

Areas of opportunity 

1. Communications and Creative Arts 

it
2
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Table 6: Research Block Funding by Category, 2004-2007 

Income ($m) 
Research Block Funding Category 

2004 2005 2006 2007 

Change 
2006-2007 

Institutional Grants Scheme 1.53 1.70 1.83 1.94 6.0% 

Research Training Scheme 3.94 3.97 4.07 4.22 3.7% 

Research Infrastructure Block Grant 0.52 0.47 0.55 0.54 -1.8% 

Total 5.99 6.14 6.45 6.70 3.9% 

 

Total research grant income grew from 2004 to 2006 and although total research grant income for 
2007 ($9.65m) was slightly lower than 2006, overall there has been a 18 per cent increase since 
2004 (see Table 7 below). 

Table 7: Research Grant Funding by Category, 2004-2007 

Income ($m) 
Research Grant Funding Category 

2004 2005 2006 2007 

Change 
2006-
2007 

National Competitive Research Grants 2.27 1.95 2.03 1.28 -58.7% 

Other Public Sector Research Funding 4.19 5.47 4.83 4.33 -11.4% 

Industry and Other Funding 1.80 3.06 3.07 4.09 24.9% 

Co-operative Research Centre Funding 0.01 0.03 0.09 0.09 -2.5% 

Total 8.27 10.51 10.02 9.79 -2.3% 

 

Initiatives to Grow Research Income 

Additional research income was generated through a number of initiatives, including: 

• the re-introduction of external review of grant applications; 

• the establishment of a Grant Mentorship Scheme;  

• improved information on research grant applications through a revamped Office of Research 
and Innovation website; and 

• the delivery of a comprehensive program of research seminars to develop grant writing and 
management capabilities. 

trategic Use of Research Funds 

Funding allocations for research will increase for 2008, as flagged in the 2007 budget process, and 
the following points are noteworthy.  

• Funding for strategic initiatives in research aligns with the University’s new Research and 
Research Training Functional Plan, Goals and Strategies.  Funds are used to support 
strategic initiatives, matching funding for Centres of Excellence and similar programs and 
part-funding of institutes.  Funding for 2008 has been increased by $1.34m.  

• The ECU Early Career Researcher Scheme – This is a key strategy in building capacity and 
organisational sustainability, which provides seed funding to assist early career researchers 
gain experience in grant applications, project management and reporting procedures.  This 
scheme will receive a 50 per cent funding increase (from $100,000 in 2007 to $150,000 in 
2008). 

• Postdoctoral Fellowships are used strategically to maximise their impact on ECU's research 
outcomes by increasing the cohort of early-career researchers in the University.  As such, 

 

S
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d are essential to the 
provided will increase 

assists in data collection.  Funding will be increased from $677,000 in 2007 to $700,000 in 

• increasing the ECU-funded Higher Degree by Research load from 60 EFTSL to 100 EFTSL 
($500,000) in order to supplement the limited availability of Research Training Scheme 

 DEST; and   

rch scholarships from $1.11m in 2007 to $1.42m in 2008.   

y continues to pursue new research partnerships through its ECU Industry Collaboration 
secures new research partnerships to the University which in turn can impact 

revenue secured from industry.  In 2007, industry partners pledged almost 
$699,00 llaboration projects. 

Univers e ECU Industry Collaboration Scheme will be increased from $390,000 in 
2007 to greater than 50 per cent of the partners involved in 
the ECU u

In an e t ies for collaboration, targeted visits between industry partners 
and pot esearch groups at ECU were undertaken in 2007. 

 University-wide Research@ECU Engagement event was organised to showcase ECU’s research 
potential collaborative links between ECU and business, industry, the 

nt agencies and the community. 

In 2007  initiated: 

• itute;  

Care;  

• Shenzhen Institute of Advanced Technology (China) in the development of chip to chip 
ects; 

• Broome Family Relationship Consortium. 

These new research partnerships are in addition to existing collaborations, as listed below. 

• Western Australian Centre of Excellence for Alzheimer’s Disease Research and Care; 

• Nanoscale Characterisation Centre for Western Australia (NCC WA); 

• Centre for Comparative Genomics; and 

Postdoctoral Fellows are the “backbone” of many research groups an
development of the research culture at ECU.  The amount of funding 
from $429,000 in 2007 to $603,000 in 2008. 

• The Research Activity Index (RAI) Scheme rewards staff for research performance and 

2008.  

 

In addition, the 2008 budget allocation will allow ECU to increase its Higher Degree by Research 
load in strategic areas by: 

(RTS) load funded by

• increasing Postgraduate resea

 

Increasing Research Collaboration  

The Universit
Scheme.  This scheme 
on total research 

0 towards ECU Industry Co

ity funding for th
 $500,000 in 2008.  In previous years, 
 Ind stry Collaboration Scheme have been new to the University. 

ffor  to increase opportunit
ential investors and several r

A
excellence and to build 
professions, governme

 several new research collaborations were

Western Australian Marine Science Inst

• Western Australian Centre for Cancer and Palliative 

• Asia-Pacific Centre for Excellence for Teacher Education (with Sampoerna Foundation – 
Indonesia);  

• Fudan University (China) in micro- and nano-photonics;   

optical interconn

• Nanoscale Characterisation Centre;  

• CSIRO Flagship program in Alzheimer’s Disease research;  

• Yadgalah Aboriginal Corporation; and  

 

Five State or Commonwealth Centres of Excellence: 

• Western Australian Centre of Excellence for Microphotonic Systems; 
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s and Innovation. 

Two CSIRO Collaborative Research Flagships: 

ship: Detecting and preventing Alzheimer’s D ards diet 
and lifestyle interventions; and 

Oceans Flagship: aloo Cluste f u iodiversi d socio-
grated managemen teg uat  Ni .  

O : 

Sustainable Tourism Co-operative Research Centre. 

hree ARC Research Networks: 

• ARC Research Network for Early European Research. 

Facilities grants: 

 Australian Performin erformance p enhancing 
thodologi ug al n ing olog

ofilometer for Map icro o/m opi aphy; 

tion Cen A Fo  Ion  Na

 Western Australia  

MALDI Imaging and Protein Analysis Facili

 

veloping and Implementing ECU’s Research Quality Framework Response Plan 

are ECU for the Research Quality Framework.  During 2007:  

ation systems for RQF were put in place; 

• briefing sessions for ECU Heads of School, senior researchers and group leaders were held, 
providing information on the latest RQF developments from DEST. 

tation of the RQF process.   

documentation covering Invention Disclosure and Revenue 

• ARC Centre of Excellence for Creative Industrie

• Preventative Health Flag isease: Tow

• Wealth From the  Ning r Ree se, b ty an
economics for inte t stra y eval ion of ngaloo

ne Co-operative Research Centre

• 

T

• ARC Financial Integrity Research Network; 

• ARC Research Network in Enterprise Information Infrastructure; and 

Five collaborative ARC Linkage Infrastructure, Equipment and 

• AusStage: Gateway to the
collaborative research me

g Arts - live p hase 3 - 
ies; es thro h digit etwork  techn

• High Performance Optical Pr ping m /mes acrosc c topogr

• The Nanoscale Characterisa tre W cused  Beam nofabrication and Milling 
Facility;  

• A cryopreparation facility for ; and

• ty WA. 

De

A major goal for the year was to prep

• an RQF Response Plan for ECU was developed and implemented; 

• an RQF Officer was appointed; 

• a Digital Repository, administrative staff and inform

• the allocation of staff to 20 Research Panel groups, spread across 11 of the 13 panels was 
completed; 

• draft evidence portfolios were completed and are being externally reviewed; and 

 

It should be noted that in December 2007 the new Commonwealth Government announced that it 
would not proceed with the implemen

ECU’s work to develop an Open Access Digital Repository for ECU publications, initiated as part of 
the RQF process, will continue in 2008.  

 

Commercialisation of Research  

ECU has increased its focus on commercialisation of its research outputs and resultant income in 
2007 was $815,000.  Significant progress was made in establishing processes and documentation, 
with the development of a more streamlined Commercialisation Protocol, registers for Projects, 
Patents and Trademarks, and legal 
Sharing.  A review of the Intellectual Property Policy was also undertaken.  Eighteen 
Commercialisation projects were managed by the Commercialisation Office, one of which won the 
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ommercially viable technological advances in key areas of its research strength. 

 1990s, research higher degree enrolments at ECU peaked 
s a 

e 
laces.  With a change in the funding model that rewards completions, ECU has adopted a 

 quality students likely to complete their research higher 
ed by the Research Training Scheme (RTS). 

2007 Western Australian Inventor of the Year (Early Stage Category).  Research commercialisation is 
University-wide and meets the requirements of the National Principles of Intellectual Property 
Management for Publicly Funded Research.  

The University continued as the preferred contract research organisation for several significant 
commercial projects, partnered with industry to commercialise outputs from ECU research projects 
and identified c

 

 

High Quality Research Training 
Research by Higher Degree Load 

Following a period of rapid growth in the
at 451 EFTSL in 2001 and then steadily declined in the period 2002 to 2007.  This decline wa
result of changes in Commonwealth Government policy that reduced funded research higher degre
p
deliberate strategy of targeting high
degree within the time limits prescrib

In 2007, the University exceeded its 2007 Higher Degree by Research Load targets by 2 per cent 
overall.  Compared with 2006, there was a small increase in actual load in the International 
category (see Table 8 below).  

 

Table 8: Higher Degree by Research Load, 2005-2007 

  2005 2006 2007 

  Target Actual Variance Target Actual Variance Target Actual Variance 

Commonwealth Supported 190 192 1.1% 183 188 2.7% 191 186  -2.6% 

ECU Funded 67 68 1.5% 54 78 44.4% 79 61  -22.8% 

International  60 68 13.3% 62 80 29.0% 50 84  68.0% 

Domestic Tuition Fee 6 6 0% 6 4 -33.3% 8 4  -50.0% 

To alt  323 334 3.4% 305 350 14.8%  328 335 2.1%  

 

 

Research Training Initiatives 

In 2007, ECU continued to foster a strengthened research training culture through a number of 
initiatives, which are listed below. 

• Research and writing consultants we
faculties.  One research consultant w

re appointed in each of the metropolitan-based 
as appointed to the Centre for Learning & Teaching.  

 with strategies for provision of 
mation relating to research policy and practices. 

rs was run at each campus.  Students and research 
staff were encouraged to attend these with a view of sharing experience and knowledge.  
These were accompanied by lunches and social sessions (ten were run in 2007).   

ion on 
ls, and guest speakers.  

udents with a forum to 

• ECU training courses (including new MS Word and other workshops) were made available to 

• A series of workshops were conducted to provide staff
effective research supervision and infor

• A series of postgraduate research semina

• A University-wide research calendar was developed with up-to-date informat
seminars, research centres, research proposa

• A multi-user blog site on the ECU website was created to provide st
encourage dialogue, reflection and collaboration across all disciplines, staff and students. 

 
research students. 
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earch culture and support 
ents.  The new position will be active in updating the 

ular social events with a view to helping students 

and resources). 

rses being offered 

earch Expo (conducted for the first time 
aign (conducted in September/October 

across faculties). 

provide additional ECU scholarships from 2008.  
 five new ECU 

 

d 

ent” and “Overall Satisfaction for the Research Experience”; and 

r each of the seven qualities.   

• A new part-time position was established to help promote res
Higher Degree by Research (HDR) stud
research calendar, and running reg
collaborate with others, as well as identifying issues and facilitating the resolution of these 
(by identifying appropriate help 

• Faculty resources and support for HDR students were reviewed, which included office space, 
research software licensing and the breadth of research training cou
across ECU. 

• HDR student marketing was enhanced through a Res
in August 2007) and a centralised marketing camp
2007 to promote intake 

• The 2008 Budget, approved in 2007, will 
There will be four new International (fee and stipend) Scholarships,
Excellence (top-up) Scholarships and eight new ECU PRS (stipend) Scholarships.

 
Postgraduate Research Students’ Experience 

In September 2007, an analysis of Postgraduate Research Experience Questionnaire (PREQ) data 
from a three-year survey period was reported by Graduate Careers Australia, in its publication 
Postgraduate Research Experience 2006.  Positive results were shown for ECU as follows: 

• of the seven qualities of research experience, ECU is ranked 2nd in “Supervision” an
“Setting Goals & Expectations”, and in the top 20 per cent of institutions for “Skill 
Developm

• there was an improvement in ECU’s national PREQ ranking fo
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and retaining high quality, committed staff and for 

and 
nabling Infrastructure. 

valuable resource.  In 2007, ECU’s goals were: 

onths.  Building on earlier research on staff demographics, in 2007 
a strategy, due to be implemented in 2008, which addresses both the projected loss of 

aff due to retirement and issues of attraction and retention in the highly competitive Western 
 to the student marketing brand “Reach Your 
uild ECU’s employment brand and its employee 

value proposition.  The strategy en ses the extension o kforce planning acros
business units, succession planning ed career develop ent initiatives and talent 
management processes. 

I mpl ith Comm alth gher Educatio ela  
R s (HEWRRs) and offered Australian W ce A ements consis ith t
in order to provide additional flexibility in working conditions and attract new staff and retain 
e

A at continu  competition w in the este Australian labour mark  
particularly for discipline exp  ha pa on at rat ich are clos  

ctor averages, but applicant rates and acceptance of offer rates are showing some detrimental 
s. 

ing 2007 activities are noteworthy: 

marking of its recruitment procedures with two other Australian 

008.   

-

aimed at growth of this segment of the staff profile have increased the 
proportion from 5 per cent to 7 per cent of academic staff since 2003.   

Building Organisational Sustainability 
ECU seeks to be recognised for attracting 
approaches to teaching and research which are supported by cost-effective, responsive and 
sustainable organisational systems.   

The Strategic Priority Area of organisational sustainability includes Staffing, Financial Strength 
E

 

Staffing 
ECU recognises its staff as its most 

• to attract and retain the staff required to achieve ECU’s strategic priorities; 

• to strengthen leadership capacity and build a strong performance culture; and  

• to provide a safe, healthy and positive work environment. 

 

Attracting and Retaining Staff 

ECU’s staff profile is one of the older staff profiles in the higher education sector, although this has 
improved within the last 12 m
ECU devised 
st
Australian labour market.  This strategy is similar
Potential”, providing a fresh basis upon which to b

compas
and enhanc

f wor
m

s all 

n 2007, the University co ied w  the onwe ’s Hi n Workplace R tions
equirement orkpla gre tent w he HEWRRs, 

xisting staff. 

nalyses indicate th ing ith  W rn et,
erts, s not im cted staff trition es, wh e to

se
effect

In addition, the follow

• ECU undertook bench
universities.  Results will feed into the upgrade of the existing process and the design of e-
recruitment procedures in 2

• ECU was successful in obtaining $535,000 funding under the Commonwealth Government’s 
Workplace Productivity Programme as a contribution towards the development of e
recruitment, on-line performance management and succession planning systems and to 
improve workforce planning capability.  The project is due to commence in 2008.  

• The Human Resources Services Centre underwent an external review which identified areas 
of good practice and opportunities for improvement.   

• The ECU Staffing Functional Plan was revised in 2007 and covers the period 2007-2009. 

• Work began on a new staff survey to measure satisfaction levels across a range of 
indicators.  The survey will be run in 2008.  

 

Strategies to grow research capacity, including through research staff recruitment, are described on 
page 36 of the Annual Report.  This contributes to general growth in the size of the professoriate of 
the University.  Initiatives 
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nichenko as Executive Dean (Faculty of 

or (Research) at the end of March 2008. 

re made in 2007, including: 

ted Professor of Creative Arts; and 

upplement 

ted during 2007 
 

rship@ECU Accredited Program (LEAP) is an internally developed course which articulates 
to formal University programs and management qualifications.  In 2007, LEAP had 25 general staff 

participants, down from more than 60 staff in 2006.  Consequently, the program has been reviewed 
and restructured.  

The Academic Leadership Program (ALP), which targets Course Co-ordinators, Program Directors, 
Heads of School and Associate Deans, had a small cohort in 2007, most rating the program very 
highly.  The ALP’s module offerings continue to be revised in response to staff feedback.  

In addition, in November 2007, a two-day Leadership Residential Program was held for 41 senior 
staff (academic and general), including the University’s Senior Leadership Team.  The program’s 
objective was to strengthen ECU's senior leaders' understanding of ECU’s strategic priorities, 
leadership culture, coaching and customer engagement.  Participants committed to collegial 
processes by increasing their levels of self-awareness around ‘more effective’ and ‘less effective’ 
thinking styles to improve engagement with staff, students and members of the community. 

 

A Strong Performance Culture 

2007 saw the completion of enhancements to objective setting under the Senior Staff Performance 
Payment System (SSPPS), with the expectation that there will be alignment of SSPPS with ECU’s new 
strategic directions as outlined in Edith Cowan University: Engaging Minds; Engaging Communities. 
Towards 2020.  

An audit of the Management for Performance System (MPS) was conducted in 2007 and findings were 
implemented as improvements to the process.  The MPS Policy and Guidelines were revised to 
incorporate a rating system against each objective, aimed at providing more focused feedback to 
employees.  

 

A Safe, Healthy and Positive Work Environment 

The University has maintained an excellent long-term record with regard to workers’ compensation 
claims.  Workers’ compensation claims costs and injury rates continue to remain low.  This is a 
strong indication of the University’s on-going success in the development and implementation of 

Leadership Capacity  

Changes to the Senior Leadership Team in 2007 included: 

• the appointment of Professor Arshad Omari as Deputy Vice-Chancellor;  

• the appointment of Professor Brenda Chered
Education & Arts); and 

• the appointment of Professor John Finlay-Jones, who will take up the position of Deputy 
Vice-Chancell

 

A number of other key leadership appointments we

• Professor Ronald Oliver, who became Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Teaching & Learning);  

• Professor Anne Wilkinson, who was appointed to the position of the Cancer Council of 
Western Australia Chair in Palliative and Supportive Care; 

• Professor Clive Barstow, who was appoin

• Professor Sue Stoney, who was appointed as the inaugural head of the Centre for Learning 
and Teaching. 

An additional 12 new Professorial Chairs were advertised in September 2007 to further s
the professoriate at ECU. 

Building leadership capacity was again a major focus for the year.  Two leadership programs: the 
Leadership@ECU Accredited Program and the Academic Leadership Program, opera
and were accessed by 267 individual ECU staff in 2007, many of whom attended more than one
program.   

The Leade
in
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s and service centres, a management 
th (OS&H) Office.  Each faculty and 

rbal judo and meditation) and a wellness program was developed by the 
ffice, in collaboration with ECU Sports and HBF.  Corporate membership packages have been 

eveloped for staff with private health providers HBF and Medicare Private. 

year ECU was visited by inspectors from WorkSafe Western Australia as per its annual 
 was positive and 
ints were raised 

f Occupational 

63 of the Annual Report. 

ted as a key driver for the University’s ongoing 

 University-wide and business unit level to ensure that ECU is in a position to respond 
 promptly to the lower demand for 

Commonwealth Grant Scheme places and implemented a number of strategies that focused on 

chieving revenue targets; and  

logy 

ters approved by Council.   

he 2008 consolidated budget was presented to Council at its December meeting and received its 

occupational safety and health plans for each of ECU’s facultie
process supported by the ECU Occupational Safety and Heal
service centre now has a local OS&H Committee chaired by its respective Business Manager.  Key 
performance indicators will be developed by faculties and service centres as part of the bi-annual 
reporting process. 

In addition, professional development opportunities related to OS&H have been introduced for ‘fun 
and stimulation’ (e.g. ve
OS&H O
d

During the 
regulatory framework.  The investigation, which focused on plant and machinery,
allowed ECU staff to engage openly on matters of compliance.  Although po
requiring attention, WorkSafe was satisfied with ECU's approach to the management o
Safety and Health and its adherence to regulatory requirements. 

Information on ECU’s workers’ compensation claims is provided at page 

 
 
Financial Strength 
In 2007, ECU’s goals in relation to its financial positioning were: 

• to maintain a strong financial position and ensure that its financial resources continued to 
be managed efficiently and effectively; and 

• over time, to build alternative sources of revenue such as fee-paying courses, commercial 
activities, fundraising and its investment portfolio. 

 

Budget Setting 

The four strategic priorities in Edith Cowan University: Engaging Minds; Engaging Communities.  
Towards 2020 provided the context within which the 2007 budget was developed and are reflected 
in University-wide strategic budget allocations, as well as the expenditure plans of individual 
business units.  In this way, the 2007 budget ac
strategic growth and development.   

Given the challenging environment in which ECU operates, the University needs the capacity to 
adjust quickly if major changes are forced upon it.  Accordingly, strategies have been set in place at 
both the
quickly when external circumstances change.  ECU responded

improving student services, revenue growth initiatives, process efficiencies, marketing and 
alignment of activities to strategic priorities, while still achieving its key financial performance 
targets.   

These budget initiatives are working in parallel with complementary initiatives designed to: 

• continue to focus the University’s academic activities and staff profile in areas of strength; 

• improve the quality of activities, services and outcomes in teaching and research; 

• ensure that ECU remains financially viable by a combination of strategies aimed at cost 
savings and improved efficiencies, but particularly by a

• consolidate campuses and enhance the communications and information techno
infrastructure. 

In 2007, ECU operated within the key budget parame

T
approval.  It includes key financial performance measures for 2008. 
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 and its overall financial position remains 
ion for 2007 and 

and Training, which 

perating result of $20.1m, which included $10.6m gain on sale of 

s favourably to the reforecast budget 
6.0m.  This excellent outcome was due to the significant staff commitment to manage resources 

ffectively within the available funding.   

m, which compares 
7 

 0.9, above the target of 0.8; and 

 

national On-shore revenue in 2007 was $35.0m and for International Off-shore activities, 

m in 2007, a slight decline compared with 2006, but an overall increase of 18 per 

• Capital Development Pool (CDP) - funding of $1.73m for 2009 and $1m for 2010 was 
of the Nursing facilities in the Health and Wellness 

p Campus.  ECU has been granted funds for the Nursing facilities in 

allocations of $360,000 and $1.85m were made to build outdoor courts and an 

opment System, to develop e-recruitment, on-line performance management and 
succession planning systems and to improve workforce planning capability; and 

nd 2008 – an allocation to ECU of $1.58m was 

Financial Position 

ECU adopts a prudent approach to financial management
sound.  The University once again received an unqualified external audit opin
received a “clean bill of health” from the Department of Education, Science 
undertakes an annual review of the financial position of Australian universities.  

The University posted a 2007 o
assets relating to the Churchlands stage 1 and stage 2 development.  The 2007 operating result 
excluding the gain on sale of assets was $9.5m, which compare
of $
e

2007 operating revenue excluding the Churchlands development was $259
favourably against the 2007 Reforecast budget of $251m.  Total revenue for the University in 200
was $270m compared to $255m in 2006. 

In terms of performance against the 2007 financial targets set by Council, the following financial 
ratios were achieved: 

• operating margin of 7.5 per cent, (favourable), well in excess of the target of 3 per cent;  
• interest cover on borrowings of eleven times, (favourable) to a target of three times; 
• current ratio of
• debt to equity ratio of 11 per cent against a maximum agreed level of 30 per cent. 
 

Building Alternative Revenues 

Revenues from international students increased by $3.6m (9.4 per cent) in 2007 compared with 
2006.  Inter
revenue amounted to some $6.6m.  

Research income from sources other than the Commonwealth Government’s Research Block Funding 
(industry, community groups/ organisations and the public sector (other than National Competitive 
Grants)), was $9.79
cent since 2004. 

In 2007, an Investment Policy Statement was approved by Council and an investment portfolio was 
established.    

ECU again complied with Commonwealth requirements under the National Governance Protocols 
and Higher Education Workplace Relations Requirements in order to be eligible for the 7.5 per cent 
contingent allocation in Commonwealth Grant Scheme funding for 2008.  

In 2007, ECU also successfully secured funding in three Commonwealth competitive funding 
schemes: 

granted to assist with construction 
Building on the Joondalu
each of the last three CDP funding rounds, totalling $5.23m, as a contribution to the $14m 
building costs; 

• Voluntary Student Unionism Transition Fund for Sporting and Recreational Facilities – 
funding 
indoor recreation centre at the South West Campus; 

• Workplace Productivity Programme - ECU was successful in its bid for $530,000 funding for 
its project:  Integrated Human Resource Planning, Recruitment and Performance 
Devel

• Learning and Teaching Performance Fu
announced in October 2007 for high performance in the Science, Computing, Engineering, 
Architecture and Agriculture discipline group and for improved performance in the Business, 
Law and Economics discipline group. 
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ments will be developed in 2008, informed by best practice. 

ing 
llocations, planned maintenance and projects that are in the conceptual stage only.  These 
frastructure projects incorporate research infrastructure requirements. 

Management Plan has been developed for 2008 onwards, to support the 

mented efficiency measures to streamline 

apital projects, Campus Enhancement and the Churchlands Redevelopment 

velopment program in place.  During 2007, in line with the 

he Joondalup and Mount Lawley campuses, to accommodate 

d relocation strategies were actioned to agreed timelines and on 
 2) and 

rgets and 

s.  These include 
g the e-lab into the 

he South West Campus, with 
construction of multi-purpose courts, changing rooms and indoor recreation centre and 
funded through the Voluntary Student Unionism Transition Fund;  

ECU Foundation – a comprehensive review of the ECU Foundation commenced in 2007 and is being 
undertaken under the auspices of the re-established ECU Foundation Board.  An interim report from 
the Board was provided at the December 2007 meeting of Council, with a final report and set of 
recommendations scheduled to be presented to Council in mid-2008.  New funding strategies and 
governance arrange

 

 

Enabling Infrastructure 
In 2007, ECU’s goals in this area were: 

• to provide leading edge infrastructure which gives high quality services to stakeholders; and 

• to ensure that the University’s infrastructure and services were managed efficiently and 
effectively. 

The current Asset Management Plan includes a combination of approved projects, proposed fund
a
in

A new five-year Asset 
quality, growth and maintenance of the University’s assets.   

During 2007, the University progressed major building works, campus enhancement, the 
Churchlands redevelopment project and a number of communications and information technology 
development projects.  In addition, ECU imple
administrative processes in a number of areas. 

 

C

ECU has a significant capital de
University’s Asset Management Plan, expenditure on major capital works and infrastructure totalled 
$36.3m and expenditure on minor works totalled $2.8m.   

During 2007, there was good progress towards completion of ECU’s campus consolidation strategy.  
Key priorities of the strategy are: i) the redevelopment of the Churchlands Campus; and ii) the 
construction of major new projects at t
activities relocated from Churchlands. 

With State Government support, the 20ha Churchlands Campus is being redeveloped as a premium 
housing estate, known as Churchlands Green.  This redevelopment has been carefully staged over 
several years to minimise disruption to ECU's students and staff.  A team of consultants has been 
appointed, a detailed project plan has been prepared and planning is proceeding for the 
Churchlands Campus exit and redevelopment.  The relocation strategy documents and reports on 
the outcomes for the University and addresses cost, campus operations and University planning 
requirements.  The land sales an
budget.  2007 saw the sale of the majority of residential lots (as part of stage 1 and stage
stage 3 is currently under construction. 

In 2007, the Health and Wellness Building ($35.5m) was completed at the Joondalup Campus.  The 
following major projects were also progressed.  All have met their project milestone ta
will be completed in accordance with the campus consolidation strategy: 

• a new 350-seat lecture theatre at the Joondalup Campus;   

• the library fit-outs at the Mount Lawley and Joondalup campuses; 

• new and upgraded teaching and learning facilities at the South West Campu
the upgrade of the Student Central and administration area, incorporatin
library, and the introduction of a Rural Clinical School and PD Centre; 

• planning commenced for new recreational facilities at t
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mmenced for new Student Housing on the Mount Lawley Campus; and 

 of the allocation has been directed to network 

etwork roll-out was completed through the installation of a high capacity 
c 

siness 
creased capacity. 

Th as 
p mented in the year.  The manner of approach to this project was enhanced to reduce the 

urden on cash flow, and so one third of computers are now replaced each year in a rolling, three-
tory and staff computers with the Windows operating system were 

re rapidly expanding to cope with increased demands from internet downloads, 

s, with 70 per cent of past 

nts to password security, information security awareness, software management and 

iversity’s website was undertaken and a major upgrade initiative is planned 

Three high-level video capture installations were completed this year to support learning via the 

 

 management.  This has enabled additional resources 

• planning co

• construction of a Business and Law Building on the Mount Lawley Campus ($27.9m) began 
and is due for completion in 2008. 

A summary of capital works completed in 2007 and in progress at the end of 2007 is provided on 
page 61 of the Annual Report. 

During the year, architects for the Joondalup Library and Technology Centre won the Royal 
Australian Institute of Architects (WA)’s 2007 Public Architecture Award for Best Building.  The 
architects also received the Royal Institute of British Architects’ International Award. 

 

Information Technology 

The IT Capital Asset Plan allowed for $12.9m of upgrades and improvements to University 
information technology infrastructure.  The majority
services and notebook and desktop computer replacement. 

The second phase of the n
link between the Mount Lawley and Joondalup campuses.  This link effectively connects the dis
storage array which is connected to the server fleet at both campuses.  Enhanced bu
continuity, resiliency and reliability will result from this in

e t
le

hird iteration of the University’s successful standards for desktop and notebook computers w
im
b
yearly program.  Student Labora
replaced with the latest models from Lenovo.  Significant efforts were made in preparation for the 
2008 release of the Windows Vista operating system and extensive application testing and self-help 
user training courses were completed. 

The University Identification Card was upgraded with the latest smartcard technology to provide 
students with an integrated payment card for public transport, eLab and library borrowing and 
photocopying and printing.  The ECU smartcard is fully integrated with TransPerth transport 
services, improving services and convenience for ECU students. 

A new server and storage strategy was released in 2007 and has resulted in a renewed five-year 
relationship with Moncrieff and IBM for servers and storage.  These two areas of University 
infrastructure a
application information and streaming media from captured teaching sessions. 

To ensure that the risks associated with IT Governance are well managed, there was an increased 
focus and priority given to addressing outstanding audit recommendation
recommendations having now been closed.  This has resulted in a more secure environment with 
enhanceme
licensing and domain administration and control.  On the recommendation of Internal Audit, in 2008 
ECU will adopt the Control Objectives for IT (CobIT) framework of IT Governance.  This is a program 
of best practice that will assist the University to ensure it will receive maximum value from the IT 
investment. 

A full review of the Un
for 2008.  New website governance procedures and a web content management system will ensure 
that students and other major stakeholders experience improved access to information and web 
resources. 

Flexilecture system and a further 40 audio-only spaces have been identified for completion early in 
2008.  The Flexilecture system allows automated capture of teaching content, so that students can 
review lectures in a more flexible manner from any internet-connected location.   

Streamlining Administrative Processes 

ECU continued to pursue a range of value-for-money strategies in 2007, while taking into account 
the need for sound business planning and risk
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• the implementation of a software application to determine maintenance funding levels 
required to ensure the future integrity of the University’s facilities and the management of 
backlog maintenance;  

sity’s contract management framework; 

model used to evaluate capital projects was conducted 

the effective delivery of 

to be re-allocated to teaching and research and other areas of higher priority.  2007 initiatives to 
increase effectiveness and/ or efficiency included: 

• the establishment of the Surveys Services Unit to provide a more cohesive, consistent and 
higher quality approach to the University’s major surveying of students and staff;  

• a reconfiguration of the Univer

• a review of the financial assessment 
and a new financial model developed; 

• the implementation of an improved service delivery model to support financial processes 
across the University; 

• reviews of Admissions, Assessments and Student Records to ensure administrative processes 
are efficient and effective; and   

• undertaking two Workplace Productivity Programme projects: 
national benchmarking data; and a comprehensive set of Course and Unit Co-ordinator 
reports. 
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Summary Statistics 
Table CU S9: E tudent and Staff Data as at 31 March 2007 

 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 
Students                
Full-ti Stud 13 211 me ents   11,096 11,735 12,920 13,731 12,930 14,151 ,707 13,
Part-time Stu 4dents   4,951 4,815 4,849 5,338 6,631 4,765 ,872 4,820 
External Stud 2ents   3,757 3,379 3,430 2,642 2,108 2,188 ,514 2,574 
Total Students   19,804 19,929 21,199 21,711 21,669 21,104 21,093 20,605 
         
Higher Degree h by Researc  Students   687 707 638 597 559 488 504 481 
Master and Ph ew nts 2D by Cours ork Stude  948 1,015 1,217 1,217 1,501 1,704 ,071 2,307 
Other Postgr nt 0 1aduate Stude s   1,166 1,061 1,54 1,654 2,024 2,015 ,992 1,939 
Undergraduat  4 16e Students  17,004 17,027 17,80 18,273 17,585 16,897 ,526 15,878 
         
Equivalent Fu en FT 9 16ll-time Stud t Load (E SL)   14,848 15,324 16,59 17,126 17,104 16,445 ,391 15,730 
         
Course Compl 3 6 N Avaetions   4,135 4,458 5,17 5,366 5,616 5,809 ,411 ot ilable1 
Fee-paying O en 9 4verseas Stud ts   2,180 2,559 3,06 3,393 3,638 3,567 ,016 4,398 
         
Staff                
Full-time Equ ) S 7 1ivalent (FTE taff 2   1,775 1,794 1,81 1,813  1,8342 1,869 ,820 1,868 
         
Library3 Volu 1 64 651 6mes Held   787,487 626,766 700,59 661,420 651,980 7,644 ,829 43,561 
Serial Subscri  3 19 2 32ptions   14,611 16,343 18,69 15,005 ,279 1,109 ,003 33,982 
         
Total Income ($ 8 278 25 254,7 2000)4   161,543 191,730 205,70 204,613 ,685 1,131 86 69,764 
 
Notes
the Ge

:  1 - 2007 C ple  ava 20 lud mat TE. is ecember 2 nco for 
neral Unive -20 al urr ass eq

ourse Com
rsity 2003

tions not
07 (extern

ilable until 31 March 
reporting) based on c

08.  2 - Inc
ent IFRS cl

es an esti
ification r

e of casual staff F
uirements. 

  3 - Data at 31 D 007.  4 - Total I me 
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Summary Comment on Performance Against 
Financial and Key Performance Indicator Targets 

Performance Against 2007 Financial Targets 
 

2007 Operating Result 
The University posted a 2007 operating result of $20.1m, which included $10.6m gain on sale of 
assets relating to the Churchlands stage 1 and 2 development.  The 2007 operating result excluding 

nds development was $259m, which compares 

 

2007 Financial Ratios 

Table 10: Financial Ratios, 2007 

the gain on sale of assets was $9.5m which compares favourably to the reforecast budget of $6m.  

 

2007 Revenue 
2007 operating revenue excluding the Churchla
favourably against the 2007 Reforecast budget of $251m.   

Total revenue for the University in 2007 was $270m compared to $255m in 2006.   

 Actual Target Variance / Comment 

Operating Margin  7.45% At least 3% The operating margin exceeded the 
target set for 2007 

Interest cover on borrowings 11x At least 3x The interest cover on borrowings 
exceeded the target set for 2007 

Liquidity - Current Ratio 0.9 At least 0.8 The current ratio exceeded the target 
set for 2007 

Debt to equity ratio 11% Not more 
than  30% 

The debt to equity ratio exceeded the 
target set for 2007 

Cash Reserves (no. of weeks) 11.3 At least 4 The number of weeks revenue in cash 
assets exceeded the target set for 2007 

 

 
 

Performance Against 2007 Key Performance Indicator 
Targets 
During 2007 ECU’s Council reviewed and streamlined the University’s KPI Framework and changes 
included an alignment with the strategic priorities in Edith Cowan University: Engaging Minds; 
Engaging Communities. Towards 2020, as approved by Council in December 2006.  A process to 
establish targets for the KPIs has since commenced and targets will be finalised by mid-2008. 

The Key Performance Indicator Report can be found at page 155 of the Annual Report and gives 
detailed information on the University’s performance against the KPIs.  Noteworthy trends and 
comparisons with National and State averages are summarised below, using the latest audited data. 

50 
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Table 11: Sum ry e A rge 200ma of Performanc gainst KPI Ta ts, 7 

Performance Indicator Commentary 

Retention Student retention has increased over the last two years, but is still j
below the National average (79.6% for ECU, compared with the National 
average of 80.9%). 

ust 

Course Satisfaction Student ratings for Course Satisfaction at ECU have been relatively stable 
ction ov tio av ge 

7% are ith ional a ge %),  b w 
State 90.

ove
(89.
the 

r the la
 for 

st f
ECU
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age

 yea
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d w
1%. 

urse Sa
 the

tisfa
 Nat

is ab
vera

e th
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e Na
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Quality of Teaching Student ratings for Good Teaching at ECU have increased for the pas ree 
years.  Good Teaching is above the National and State averages (86.6% for 

, c the ion of % a Sta ve e of 
%)

t th

ragECU
84.1

omp
. 

ared with  Nat al average 82.3 nd the te a

Graduate Employment  graduate employment improved by 5.3 percentage points over the last 
year, but at 73.4% remains below the Na
average (80.2%). 

ECU
tional average (82.4%) and the State 

Share of Firs efe ’s re nce gh TISC clin  last 
r, from 9. alth ese fi s e the ge mber 
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Economic and
2007 saw significant on-going change in the hig er education sector emanating from economic, 
emographic and public policy changes. 

The strong domestic economy, coupled with strong labour market pressures, continues to impact 
on the higher education sector.  Western Australia’s buoyant economy has led to sustained 
employment growth, with the State’s unemployment rate and youth unemployment rate currently 
the lowest of all states and territories.  This has had the effect of reducing demand for tertiary 
education, as described below.  These factors are exacerbated by disincentives to study such as 
increases in student financial contributions and cost of living pressures resulting from housing, petrol 
and food price inflation.   

The Western Australian economy and job market is likely to remain buoyant through 2008 and into 
the medium term, with skills shortages in a number of occupations persisting.  The Western 
Australian Premier has noted that when the “boom” does end, the less skilled and less educated will 
find it difficult to remain in employment, unless they gain appropriate education and training in the 
meantime. 

Australia’s ageing population, in common with most developed countries, will bring skills shortages 
in the workforce and a greater need for re-training and skills upgrading at both professional and 
sub-professional levels.  Ironically, recent declines in applications for higher education places are 
most evident amongst the older, non-school leaver cohort.  This suggests that in future, higher 
education providers will need to provide more options for flexible study and shorter or accelerated 
course programs. 

The ageing demographic will also result in significant additional demand for healthcare services and 
workers.   

Skills shortages continue to influence the sector’s planning of courses and programs.  Critical 
shortages of university graduates for managerial, professional and associated professional jobs 
already exist.  These have been caused by skills gaps as the “baby boomer” generation begins to 
retire and increased business and industry demand for workers with tertiary qualifications.  State 
Government concern at skills shortages has resulted in campaigns to encourage university graduates 
and other skilled workers to migrate from other states and from overseas. 

Skills shortages in the following occupations continue to be of particular concern: teachers (in 
particular secondary school teachers) nurses, other health specialisations such as mental health, 
engineering and accounting.  These have been the focus for Commonwealth and State government 
training initiatives.  These changes have potential implications for university programs, particularly 
those in teacher education and nursing.  

Commonwealth Government policy significantly impacts on the Australian higher education sector, 
especially as Commonwealth funding is a major source of income for public universities.  Some of 
the policies and initiatives impacting on universities in 2007 are listed below.  

• Changes were made to the National Protocols for Higher Education Approval Processes 
which are likely to increase numbers of private providers becoming self-accrediting 
institutions and will extend use of the title “university”.  

• The previous Commonwealth Government sought to encourage further differentiation and 
stressed that the current model of a large number of comprehensive universities (the “one 
size fits all” model) was not sustainable.  

• Changes in funding arrangements were introduced to allow greater flexibility by removing 
caps on full-fee paying places and penalties for over-enrolment in Commonwealth Grant 
Scheme places.  

• There were ongoing delays to the implementation of the Research Quality Framework. 

• There was continued emphasis on competitive funding for specific programs. 

• Contingent funding arrangements, tied to compliance with the National Governance 
Protocols and Higher Education Workplace Relations Requirements, continued to operate.  

• Further support for private higher education providers was evident, with the allocation of 
additional Commonwealth Grant Scheme places and the extension of FEE-HELP. 

 Social Trends 
h

d
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• Development of an Australian “Graduation Statement” began, to provide for greater 
recognition of Australian qualifications in other countries.  This initiative is a response to 
the “diploma supplement” planned by European universities under the so called “Bologna 
Process” and will help Australian universities to compete for international students.   

The policy setting in which higher education operates may well change as a result of the election of 
the new Commonwealth Government in late 2007.  Although some initiatives already in train may 

ent Demand 

007 saw a continuation of the trend of reducing enrolments in higher education.  At the national 
vel, demand for higher education was static for 2006-07, having declined by about 4 per cent over 

005-6.  The downturn in enrolments has been particularly evident amongst the regional and newer 
universities.  Western Australia, however, with its very buoyant economy, suffered a decline in 
demand of about 8 per cent for 2005-06 and a further 2.8 per cent for 2006-07.   

ECU, in common with other universities with a strong mature-aged student profile, has also faced an 
enrolment downturn because of a decline in the mature-aged student market.  Again, this trend was 
evident across Australia, as potential students pursue work options in preference to study, but was 
particularly marked in Western Australia, where mature-aged applications for undergraduate places 
in 2007 were down approximately 5 per cent.  

The downward trend in mature-aged applications seems likely to continue into 2008, with 
applications (as at end January 2008) down by 14 per cent on the same time in the previous year.  
Some improvement in school-leaver applications to Western Australian universities is predicted, 
with applications for 2008 up by 7 per cent, compared with the same time last year. 

 

International Student Demand 

International student numbers at Australian universities have grown over a number of years and 
provide not just an important source of income, but also a mutual benefit in terms of the 
enrichment of the curriculum and widening cultural experiences for students.   

Growth in international student numbers has slowed in the last 12 months as Australian universities 
continue to face an uncertain global environment and difficult market conditions.   

Although the number of international enrolments has continued to increase in absolute terms, the 
higher education sector’s share of the international student market has slowly declined in the last 
three years, in contrast to the strong growth in the vocational education and training sector.  In 
2007 (to September), international student enrolments in Australian higher education increased by 
4.0 per cent on the same period in 2006.  The strongest growth in commencing enrolments was from 
the Republic of Korea (14.5 per cent), India (13.7 per cent) and Malaysia (8.4 per cent).  

Exchange rate changes have significantly increased the cost of Australian higher education in many 
key source countries and terrorism and safety concerns continue to impact on decisions about where 
to study.  Importantly, Australian universities are experiencing intensified competition from other 
English-speaking countries and also from traditional source countries such as Singapore and 
Malaysia.  These countries are now more self-sufficient in providing higher education for their 
citizens, as well as becoming more desirable destinations for international students from elsewhere. 

 

be retained by the new government, there is likely to be additional emphasis on early childhood 
education, replacement of the Research Quality Framework in favour of another means of assessing 
and funding research, the phasing out of Domestic Tuition Fee places at public universities, reduced 
Student Contributions for students studying Mathematics and Science and a substantial increase in 
Commonwealth scholarships and research fellowships.   

 

Current and Emerging Trends in Stud
Domestic Student Demand 

2
le
2
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operations in 2007 were from the following existing and 

 schemes in areas such as capital works, improved productivity and 

ent procedures have been amended to comply with the new National Code. 

ised annual reporting requirements came into effect on 1 February 2007 and ECU’s 

992 and other 

rd.  This work will be completed in 2008. 

quirements to 
report physical cash transactions with overseas origins or destinations.  

Legislative Impacts 
 
The main legislative impacts on ECU’s 
new legislation: 

• Higher Education Support Act 2003 (Cwlth) [HESA] 

This legislation determines the University’s Commonwealth funding for teaching and 
research and its responsibilities in terms of governance and acquittal.  HESA includes 
provisions for contingent funding, tied to compliance with the National Governance 
Protocols and the Higher Education Workplace Reform Requirements, as well as a number of 
competitive funding
teaching excellence. 

• Education Services for Overseas Students Act 2000 (Cwlth) [ESOS] and New National Code 

A revised ESOS Act and National Code came into effect in July 2007 and ECU’s international 
stud

• Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 (WA) 

This legislation requires compulsory criminal record checking for ECU students and staff 
engaged in child-related work.  ECU policies and guidelines have been developed and are 
expected to be finalised in 2008, when the maximum age of children for whom a record 
check is required will be raised to 17. 

• Financial Management Act 2006 (WA)  

Rev
annual reporting processes have been revised to meet the requirements of this Act and of 
the Auditor General Act 2006 (WA).  

 

Further legislative developments likely to impact upon ECU’s operations in the future include 
those listed below: 

• Higher Education Support Act 2003 (Cwlth) [HESA] 

A range of amendments to HESA are likely, including the replacement of the Research 
Quality Framework,  repeal of sections of HESA providing for contingent funding linked to 
governance and industrial relations requirements and changes to Voluntary Student 
Unionism arrangements.   

• Information Privacy Bill 2007 (WA) 

The Information Privacy Bill 2007 amends the Freedom of Information Act 1
relevant legislation.  At the end of 2007, the Bill’s Second Reading was adjourned by the 
Western Australian Legislative Council.  The Bill provides for policies and procedures for 
obtaining, storing and dealing with the personal and health information of staff, students, 
suppliers, customers and other persons.   

ECU has commenced work on a policy and supporting guidelines in anticipation of the 
passing of the Bill.   

• Australian Standard AS3806 – Compliance Programs 

ECU has begun to review its Compliance Policy and Framework to align with the revised 
Australian standa

• Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorism Financing Act 2006 (Cwlth) 

There may be some limited impact upon ECU operations as a result of new re
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gages 

• re-examination of TER cut-offs for courses; 

ckaging of ECU-funded scholarships; and 

 needs of business 

ECU’s Response to Significant Issues and Trends 
ECU’s response to changes in State, national and international higher education environments is 
through a realistic and flexible approach which attempts to anticipate external change and en
with government, while at the same time progressing its Mission, Vision, Values and Strategic 
Priorities and pursuing strategic opportunities which will strengthen the University’s position. 

ECU’s strategic direction is focused on ways to further differentiate and position ECU in the 
competitive environment in which it operates.  During 2007 the University implemented steps to 
help it attract and retain more students and these steps included: 

• the introduction of new courses;  

• extension of the Portfolio Entry pathway;  

• early offer arrangements to students completing TAFE courses; 

• re-vitalising and repa

• renewed focus on the student experience and the support provided to students, especially 
in their first year at ECU. 

More broadly, ECU is increasing its emphasis on mutual engagement with its communities and with 
relevant professions and industries.  ECU seeks to position itself to respond to the
and industry and to contribute to the social and economic betterment of its graduates and the 
communities ECU serves. 
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Financial Statements 
ECU’s 2007 Financial Statements can be found at Section 5 of the Annual Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Performance Indicator Report 
ECU’s 2007 Key Performance Indicator Report can be found at Section 6 of the Annual Report. 
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Other Financial Disclosures 

Pricing Policies 
Like the majority of Australian universities, ECU sets the level of the student contribution for 

ct 

 into 
 

Table 12: Major Capital Projects Completed, 2007 

Commonwealth-supported places at the maximum allowed under the Higher Education Support A
2003. 

Fees for fee-paying courses are determined on the basis of cost and market conditions and take
account Commonwealth requirements regarding fees for non-Commonwealth supported places.

 

Major Capital Projects 
 
Major capital projects completed during 2007 are shown below: 

Project Estimated total 
cost ($m) 

Actual total cost 
($m) 

JOONDALUP CAMPUS   

 Library and Technology Centre  36.2  36.2 

 Health and Wellness Building  35.4  35.5 

 
 
 
Major capital projects that were in progress as at 31 December 2007 are shown below: 

Table 13: Major Capital Projects in Progress, 2007 

Project Estimated total 
cost ($m) 

Actual total cost 
to complete 
($m) 

Expected year 
of completion 

JOONDALUP CAMPUS    

 Lecture Theatre  6.6  6.5 2008 

 Refit for Campus Consolidation   5.4  5.4 2008 

    

MOUNT LAWLEY CAMPUS    

 Business and Law Building   27.9  27.9 2008 

 Refit for Campus Consolidation  5.0  5.51 2008 

 Additional Student Housing  30.0  30.0 2011 

    

SOUTH WEST CAMPUS    

 Campus Developments  4.0  4.0 2009 

Note: 1. estimated cost increase due to shortage of building industry resources, uncompetitive tendering 
environment and escalating costs of materials and labour.  
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 Relations 
Employees 

 excluding casual staff, in full-time, part-time, permanent and contract 
mployment categories is shown in Table 14 below.  

rce (excluding casual staff), 2006-2007 

Employees and Industrial

The number of ECU staff,
e

Table 14: Characteristics of the Workfo

Headcount As at 30 June 2006 As at 30 June 2007 

 Academic 
Staff 

General 
Staff Total Academic 

Staff 
General 

Staff Total 

Full-time Permanent 415 640 1,055 375 574 949 

  Contract 92 127 219 78 149 227 

Full-time Total   507 767 1,274 453 723 1,176 

 

Part-time Permanent 42 186 228 43 186 229 

  Contract 62 113 175 42 120 162 

Part-time Total   104 299 403 85 306 391 

 

Grand Total   611 1,066 1,677 538 1,029 1,567 

Note: In the 2006 Annual Report, headcount numbers as at 30 June 2006, were in fact those as at 30 
eptember 2006.  The actual headcount as at 30 June 2006 was 1677 in total and not 1620 as previously 

ance is 57: 19 for Academic staff and 38 for General staff).  Further clarification of variance 
ithin part-time/ full-time and permanent/ contract categories is available on request. 

In 2007, ECU had 1567 staff (as a head count) compared to 1677 staff in 2006.  Preliminary casual 
asual 

urs paid), compared to 253.0 in 2006.  

Staffing Policies 
The ECU Staffing Plan is one of several functional plans that identify specific operational priorities 
and actions which support the strategic priorities identified in Edith Cowan University: Engaging 
Minds; Engaging Communities. Towards 2020. 

The ECU Staffing Plan encompasses two key philosophies which are promulgated through ECU’s 
staffing policies.  These are: 

• ECU believes that it will optimise its human capital through ensuring a diverse and flexible 
mix of staff and staffing arrangements; and 

• ECU will endeavour to provide an environment that recognises and rewards strong, positive 
leadership and experience. 

The University completed all Commonwealth Government requirements relating to the 
Commonwealth Higher Education Workplace Relations Requirements and successfully bid for funding 
under the Workplace Productivity Programme. 

 

Industrial Relations 
Internal resolution of a number of concerns, grievances and disputes meant that during 2007 the 
University was not required to attend any conciliation conferences or arbitration hearings in the 
Western Australian Industrial Relations Commission, the Australian Industrial Relations Commission, 
the Human Rights & Equal Opportunity Commission or the Equal Opportunity Commission.  ECU was 

S
reported (vari
w

 

staff figures for 2007 were 250.9 (expressed as a conversion to full-time equivalent (FTE) of c
ho
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dministrative Tribunal, at which the Tribunal 

on 

 Annual Premium, 1998/99-2007/08 

required to attend one formal hearing at the State A
found in ECU’s favour.  

 

Workers’ Compensati
ECU’s occupational safety and health statistics and performance are reported to two committees of 
Council: the Resources Committee and the Quality and Audit Committee.  

Figure 5 below shows that the University’s workers’ compensation liabilities, in terms of total 
projected costs and costs paid, remain low and confirms that the University’s workers’ 
compensation claims management is active and successful. 

Figure 5: Workers’ Compensation Costs &
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Figu ows that the number of workers’ compens dg  
trend in 2007, while the number of lost time injuries ng days htly 
with 2006, the trend continues downwards, demonstrating the successful integration of good OSH 
p on of the University’s Return to Work Program. 

Figure 6: Lost Time Injuries, Workers’ Compensation Clai
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Governance Disclosures 

Corporate Standards and Risk Management 
Equity 
To meet the requirements of the Disability Services Act 1993 (WA), ECU continued to deliver its 
commitments as expressed in the Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 2006-2010.  A report on 
a s against the Plan’s strateg as submitted ervices 
Commission (see page 74 of the Annual Report).  The University’s Annual Implementation Plan for 
2 /2008 was drafted by ECU’s Dis es  P

In 2007, the University developed a draft Equity Act ate, but linked, draft 
In Action Plan tion plans reflect a w - ity ach to stre  
e ity principles and p and to impr g equit com or stude and staf

E ith the ual Opportunity for Women in the Workplace Act 1999 (Cwlth) and, as a 
result of its earlier positive outcomes, was exempted from reporting to the Equal Opportunity for 
Women in the Workplace Agency (EOWA) until 2008.  Work on securing a further waiver h
c . 

The University commit ture for matters relati  eq ompris he Equi mm  
t Emplo mp nta  Sub-co ittee; t dig  
Consult the Disability Access Working Pa  During s s 
continued to advise on equity issues in the University. 

E mber of volunteer Contact ers t in Opportunity legislation who can 

of trained contacts 
Allies”) for Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Transgender and Intersex (GLBTI) students and staff on ECU’s 

chievement ies in 2006/2007 w  to the Disability S

007 ability Acc s Working arty. 

ion Plan 
hole

and a sepa
of-Univers

r
approdigenous .  These ac main aming

qu ractices ovin y out es f nts f. 

CU complies w  Eq

as 
ommenced

tee struc ng to uity c es: t ty Co ittee;
he Indigenous 

ative Committee; and 
yment (Development and I leme tion)

rty. 
mm

2007, the
he In
e committee

enous

CU has a nu Offic rained  Equal 
assist students and staff to choose an appropriate course of action to resolve any individual 
complaints or concerns.  They provide confidential advice and information on existing complaints 
resolution processes at the University. 

ECU has also adopted the ALLY program which provides a visible network 
(“
campuses. 

For more information on equity visit: http://www.ecu.edu.au/equ/ 

 

Quality  
lity@ECU model was reviewed and revised to more closely align it with ECU’s 

 cycle of improvement. 

ance and strive for excellence. 

lletin boards and communities of practice and interviews with 
marking activities.  

During 2007, the Qua
strategic directions and priorities as outlined in Edith Cowan University: Engaging Minds; Engaging 
Communities. Towards 2020 and the revised Australian Business Excellence Framework.  The model 
continues to focus on a Plan Do Review Improve

Sixteen annual reviews of faculties and service centres were completed in 2007, with action 
identified to improve perform

Guidelines for the Annual Review cycle were streamlined.  A program of Annual Reviews for 2007 is 
scheduled for February to April 2008. 

An on-line benchmarking course was developed for staff.  In order to share current good practice, 
the course includes case studies, bu
ECU staff who have undertaken bench

For more information on Quality visit: http://www.ecu.edu.au/equ/ 

 

Risk Management 
rporate governance at ECU is effective risk management.  In 2007 progress A major component of co

was made on revisions to the ECU Risk Management Framework and Policy and the identification of 
strategic risks as they impact upon the University’s new Mission and Strategic Priorities.   
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nstitutional reviews.  ECU commenced its own identification of academic 
sks to assist in the preparation of an AUQA Audit anticipated for 2010.   

ECU internal audit, risk management, legislative compliance and 
s and functions was completed in 2007.  ECU was assessed as 

 staff and this included 

Subject to approval of the new Risk Management Framework and Policy by the University Council, it 
 will enable the University 

to aggregate its risk data and to systematically and strategically manage its risks. 

During 2007, the legislative compliance framework was revised and legislation impacting on ECU’s 
operations was re-assessed for the risk posed to the University.  Comments on legislative trends are 
provided at page 56 of the Annual Report. 

During 2007, the Office of Risk Management and Audit Assurance issued an audit report on contract 
management practices which led to improvements in practices to reduce ECU’s exposure to contract 
risk in both outbound and inbound contracts.  Revised practices and a contract management system 
will be implemented in 2008. 

The Critical Incident Management Guide for the senior management of the University was updated 
and this has since been used effectively.  At the operational level, automated processes were 
implemented to ensure that staff and postgraduate students overseas on University business can be 
located more quickly.  These processes will allow the University to respond quickly to overseas 
threats and events impacting on the safety of its students and staff and on its international 
operations.  Work has also begun to improve and test IT disaster recovery plans. 

For more information on Risk Management, visit: www.ecu.edu.au/RMAA/index.html

The Australian Universities Quality Agency (AUQA) has foreshadowed identification of academic risks 
in its second round of i
ri

An external peer review of 
business continuity framework
conforming to the relevant professional standards. 

Training on ECU’s Fraud and Misconduct Policy was provided to senior
presentations by the Corruption and Crime Commission and ECU’s Vice-Chancellor.  A fraud risk 
assessment will be performed in 2008, along with further training for new staff on fraud and 
misconduct avoidance. 

is intended that Risk Register software will be implemented in 2008.  This

 

 
 

Edith Cowan University has an integrated risk management policy that was initially approved by the 
Management 

(2004).  This policy is being reviewed to accommodate emerging risk management practices in 
accord with timelines laid down in the University’s policy development framework. 

Strategic oversight of risk management is included in the terms of reference for the Council’s 
Quality and Audit Committee and the Quality and Audit Committee Charter approved by Council in 
December 2006.  A Risk Reference Forum, chaired by a Deputy Vice-Chancellor, assists with the 
exchange of experiences of best practice and dissemination of risk management-related material 
within the University. 

Functionally, the Office of Risk Management and Audit Assurance is responsible for the development 
and implementation of risk management strategies such as the maintenance of risk registers, risk 
management methodology, legislative compliance, business continuity as well as fraud and 
misconduct prevention. 

The Finance and Business Services Centre is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the 
insurance portfolio.  The Human Resources Services Centre is responsible for the day-to-day 
operation of occupational safety and health strategies and workers’ compensation.  Legal risk is 
handled by the Legal Services Office, within the Governance and Planning Services Centre. 

 

 

Risk Management Statement  
This statement is consistent with National Governance Protocol 9. 

University Council in December 2001.  It is compliant with ASNZ Standard 4360: Risk 
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ment 
Council endorsed a statement on corporate governance in December 2002. The statement was 

plementation of the 
ed version summarising the 

t.  The full statement can be viewed at: 

Corporate Governance State

amended by Council in December 2004 and in June 2007 pursuant to the im
National Governance Protocols.  The following is an abridged and updat
statemen

www.ecu.edu.au/GPPS/committees/corp_gov_stmt.html. 

 

Statutory Framework  
The governance of the University takes place within a specific statutory framework.  At the highest 
level of that framework is the Edith Cowan University Act 1984 (WA) (‘the Act’), as amended, which 
establishes the University as a body corporate, consisting of the Council, the members of staff and 
the enrolled students (s.5).  

Functions of the University  

Section 7 of the Act sets out, in non-exhaustive terms, the functions of the University which 
include: providing courses of study to meet the needs of the community in Western Australia; 
encouraging and providing for tertiary education; supporting and pursuing scholarship and research; 

onsibilities 

fostering the welfare and development of all enrolled students; promoting and encouraging 
collaboration and consultation with other institutions; and providing such facilities that relate to its 
functions.  

Council: its authority, functions and duties, powers and resp  

this Act;   

ch manner as appears to it best 
calculated to promote the objects and interests of the University; and   

(c) control and manage the operation, affairs, concerns and property of the 

 that:  

the operation, affairs, concerns and 

specific matters relating to contracts, courses of study, use of 

emic and other staff, including the chief 
 and Rules under the Statutes 

Responsibilities of Council  

rsity, and 
monitoring his/her performance;  

Section 8 of the Act provides that the Council is the governing authority of the University.  

Section 16 specifies the functions and duties of Council, with s.16(1)(c) encapsulating the full scope 
of the Council’s functions.  

(1) Subject to this Act the Council shall –  

(a) perform any function or duty conferred or imposed upon the University under 

(b) act in all matters concerning the University in su

University.   

Council has, however, exercised its power of delegation to delegate to the Vice-Chancellor powers 
to manage the University.  

Section 17 relates to the powers of Council and provides in the preamble

Subject to this Act and the Statutes the Council has power to do all things necessary or 
convenient to be done for or in connection with 
property of the University.  

Section 17 then specifies a number of 
facilities, and award degrees, diplomas and certificates. 

Under the Act, Council has responsibility for University lands (s.28), finance (s.36), the 
appointment, termination, terms and conditions of acad
executive officer (ss.30 and 31), and to make Statutes, and By-laws
(s.26). 

 

Pursuant to the National Governance Protocols, Council has adopted the following responsibilities: 

a) appointing the Vice-Chancellor as the chief executive officer of the Unive
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s performance;  

monitoring the assessment and management of risk across the University, 

ould be read in conjunction with the functions and duties 

b) approving the mission and strategic direction of the University, as well as the annual budget 
and business plan;  

c) overseeing and reviewing the management of the University and it

d) establishing policy and procedural principles, consistent with legal requirements and 
community expectations;  

e) approving and monitoring systems of control and accountability, including general overview 
of any controlled entities.  A controlled entity is one that satisfies the test of control in 
s.50AA of the Corporations Act; 

f) overseeing and 
including commercial undertakings; 

g) overseeing and monitoring the academic activities of the University; and   

h) approving significant commercial activities of the University.  

 

These are high order responsibilities and sh
of Council as specified in the Act. 

 

Duties and responsibilities of Council members  

The University Council Code of Conduct is designed to:  

a) ensure that members of Council are aware of the legal duties, liabilities and protections 
arising from their membership of the Council;  

b) promote good practice among Council members by describing the general responsibilities 
they have to the University, the Council and fellow members and to the staff and students 
of ECU; and  

c) describe the University’s obligations to Council members, which will assist them to carry out 
their duties and responsibilities to the best of their abilities.  

out in Schedule 1 of the Act.  Under the Act each 

able person in 

her within or outside the State, make improper use of information acquired 

 directly or indirectly, an advantage for any person or to cause detriment to 

nt facts 
ave come to the member's knowledge, disclose the nature and extent of the interest at a meeting 
f the Council. 

Under the Code of Conduct, in addition to these legal duties, the responsibilities of members in 
respect of the general operation of Council include:  

 

The legal duties of members of Council are set 
member:  

a) must at all times act honestly in the performance of the functions of a member, whether 
within or outside the State;  

b) must at all times exercise the degree of care and diligence in the performance of the 
functions of a member, whether within or outside the State, that a reason
that position would reasonably be expected to exercise in the Council's circumstances;  

c) must at all times act in the best interests of the University and give precedence to the 
interests of the University over the interests of any person appointing or electing a member;  

d) must not, whet
by virtue of the position of member to gain, directly or indirectly, an advantage for any 
person or to cause detriment to the University;  

e) must not, whether within or outside the State, make improper use of the position of 
member to gain,
the University.  

 

Furthermore, under the Act a member who has a material personal interest in a matter being 
considered or about to be considered by Council must, as soon as possible after the releva
h
o
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pared to constructively contribute to all 
which they serve;  

hey consider that the information provided is 
sponsibilities;  

d) inform the Chancellor of any concerns that they might hold about any Council decisions or 
actions that appear contrary to its public duties, and to do so as soon as these concerns 

sponsibility for decisions of the Council and support University 
plementation of these decisions.  

ation required to perform their duties.  

 

Maintaining the

a) attend, unless unavoidably absent, and be pre
Council meetings and meetings of committees on 

b) draw relevant matters to the attention of the Chancellor for the information of or possible 
action by the Council or the Vice-Chancellor;  

c) inform the Chancellor if at any time t
insufficient to permit the Council to discharge its re

arise;  

e) inform the Chancellor of the possible material interests of other members of the Council in 
matters before or about to come before the Council, if those interests are not declared by 
the member or members concerned; and  

f) accept collective re
management in the im

 

To assist Council members to carry out their duties and responsibilities to the best of their abilities, 
under the Code of Conduct, the obligations of the University include:  

a) provide Council members with such comprehensive, accurate and timely information as is 
required for members to act with the degree of care, skill and diligence required of them by 
the Act, other relevant Statutes and the general law;  

b) provide such legal and financial advice as may be necessary to enable Council members to 
discharge their duties; and  

c) provide, subject to any contrary legal restrictions, Council members with access to any 
University document

 distinction between governance and executive management  

In order for Council and executive management to perform their respective roles effectively, 
Council recogni
management.  

In recognising 
Higher Education Management Review Report (Hoare 1995:42) is relevant and pertinent:  

ad strategic framework within which the Vice-Chancellor and 
verning body 

e itself to 

 
Clarity ouncil approval is an important foundation for good governance 

ses that a distinction needs to be maintained between governance and executive 

the importance of this distinction, Council considers that the advice given in the 

The governing body should have strategic planning oversight for the university. It 
should set the bro
senior university administrators can operate. It is important that the go
does not get caught up in a ‘local response syndrome’ but should confin
strategic and policy issues.  

as to which matters require C
and helps define decision making boundaries. Council has therefore adopted a list of matters it has 
decided to reserve to itself for approval and a reporting back framework on those matters 
delegated to executive management.  

 

Evaluating Council Performance  

Council is committed to both collective and individual performance appraisal. To allow for more 
oncrete assessment of Council’s performance, Council will undertake a regular evaluation of its 

carried out every second year at a suitable time determined by 
c
performance. This will usually be 
Council.  
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Induction of Members  

Council is committed to its members being well informed about:  

ncil member shall receive:  

ii. Corporate Governance Statement  

ode of Conduct  

v. Council Membership list and profiles  

 profiles of Executive Staff  

ting Schedule  

es approved by Council; and 

rofessional Development 

a) their role and responsibilities;  

b) the role of Council as the governing body of the University; and  

c) the strategic direction and key features of the University.  

 

As soon as practicable after appointment, each Cou

a) an invitation to meet with the Chancellor, Pro-Chancellor and Vice-Chancellor;  

b) appropriate materials including those listed below:  

i. Edith Cowan University Act 1984  

iii. Council Standing Orders  

iv. University Council C

vi. University Organisational Chart and

vii. Key committees and the University’s Mee

viii. ECU Budget Principles  

ix. ECU Strategic Plan  

x. Annual Report  

xi. Polici

c) ECU promotional material. 

 
P  

f the Council.  

sponsibilities.  The Standing Committees of 

nd Audit   

iii. Resources  

Nominations  

viii. Legislative  

The University aims to provide a structured but flexible professional development program for 
members o

Accordingly, Council has adopted a professional development program that consists of the following 
components:  

a) series of discussions on agreed topics of strategic interest;  

b) workshops on agreed themes; and  

c) individual professional development activities based on need.  

 

Council Committees 
Council establishes committees to assist it to meet its re
Council, as at 31 December 2007, were: 

i. Council Executive 

ii. Quality a

iv. Honorary Awards 

v. Governance 

vi. 

vii. Remuneration 
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 the University.  This is 

all be an Academic Board of the University” 

tions, research, the admission to degrees, the discipline of the University and any 

 business of teaching, learning and 
search.  It also looks to the Academic Board to ensure that appropriate quality assurance 

esses are in place relating to academic programs and services, and that academic standards are 

 collegiality by effective and ethical 

resides over Council meetings. 

he Act provides that Council shall appoint a person to be the chief executive officer of the 
inted as the chief 

s well as being the chief executive officer of the University, the Vice-Chancellor 

Role o
The Ac es at 
meeting  is to 

for  of that Officer and on other occasions support the Chancellor 

Academic Board  
The Academic Board has a special role within the governance framework of
indicated by the fact that, while Council can determine its committee structure, the Act under 
which the University operates specifies that there “sh
(s18(1)), the constitution of which may be prescribed by Statute.  

The Act specifies that the functions of the Academic Board shall include:  

the discussion and submission to the Council of opinions and recommendations on academic 
policy, academic development, the admission of students, instruction, studies and 
examina
other matters which in the opinion of the Academic Board are relevant to the objects of 
this Act (s.18(3)(a)).  

 

The Council views the Academic Board as a forum through which senior academics within the 
University can provide advice to Council on the University’s core
re
proc
maintained. 

 

Role of the Chancellor 
The Chancellor is elected by Council to facilitate its work and
means, providing a focal point to ensure the high standing of the University in the wider community.  
As part of this role, the Chancellor p

 

Role of the Vice-Chancellor 
T
University (s.30(1)).  University Statute No. 6 provides that the person appo
executive officer is the Vice-Chancellor of the University (s.1).  This Statute further provides that 
subject to the Act, the Statutes, By-laws and Rules of the University, and resolutions of the Council, 
the Vice-Chancellor is responsible for the academic, administrative and other affairs of the 
University (s.2).  A
is also its senior academic officer. 

 

f the Pro-Chancellor 
t provides that there shall be a Pro-Chancellor and that the Pro-Chancellor presid
 of Council in the absence of the Chancellor (Act s.12).  The role of the Pro-Chancellor
the Chancellor in the absenceact 

in all the Chancellor’s roles.  
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ITY 

 
 Laws 

 the performance of its functions during the year ended 31 December 2007 the University has 

 very broad 
ormation 

ten law. 

We are  or existing at the date of signing this statement, 
to lead us to 

 EDITH COWAN UNIVERS
 

Compliance with Relevant Written
 

In
operated within the provisions of the Edith Cowan University Act 1984. 

Having made or caused to be made on our behalf all relevant enquiries, but noting the
extent of application of written laws to the University, to the best of our knowledge, inf
and belief, the University has complied with all relevant writ

aware of no fact or circumstance apparent
conclude otherwise. 
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uirements Other Legal Req

Advertising 
In accordance w he University is 

quired to report all expenditure incurred by, or on behalf of, the University on advertising, 

ting in Table 15 below. 

ith the requirements of section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, t
re
market research, polling, direct mail and media advertising during the financial year. 

The amount in each expenditure class and the organisations paid, are lis

Table 15: ECU Advertising Expenditure, 2007 

 $ 000 

Advertising agencies $252 

 MarketForce Productions  

Market research organisations $52 

 The Customers Voice  

 Customer Service Benchmarking Australia  

Polling organisations $0 

Direct mail organisations $105 

 Mail Makers Pty Ltd  

 Expo Documents Copy Centre  

Media advertising organisations $4,172 

 Media Decisions WA  

 303 Advertising Pty Ltd  

Total Expenditure $4,581 

 
 

Equity and Indigenous 
ECU’s high order Equity Statement of Commitment and Statement of Commitment to Indigenous 
ustralians align well with the strategic priorities of the University articulated in Edith Cowan 
niversity: Engaging Minds; Engaging Communities.  Towards 2020.  

The University’s governing Council receives reports on equity issues and performance trends.  ECU 
has four committees which focus on equity issues.  These are:  

• the Equity Committee;  

• the Indigenous Consultative Committee; 

• the Indigenous Employment (Development and Implementation) Sub-committee; and 

• the Disability Access Working Party.  

Membership comprises relevant University staff and, in the case of the Indigenous Consultative 
Committee, also includes members from the wider community.  The committees advise on the 
implications of University policies and practises and inform institutional responses to equity and 
disability policy initiatives by government and other external agencies. 

During 2007, a draft Equity Action Plan was developed aimed at improving ECU performance and 
equity outcomes for equity target groups.  Once finalised, this will provide a succinct statement of 
a whole-of-ECU approach to addressing equity issues for students and staff.  In addition, an 
Indigenous Action Plan has also been drafted.  This is aligned to the Equity Action Plan, but allows 
for a greater focus on Indigenous issues, with more targeted strategies and accountabilities. 

Strategies within the Equity Action Plan are expected to be mainstreamed and embedded in the 
core strategic, functional and operational plans of the University, with monitoring by the Equity 

A
U
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Committee.  Monitorin ocesses, including the 
nnual reviews of faculties and service centres, school reviews and strategic reviews including the 
xternal review conducted as part of the Australian Universities Quality Agency audit.  

In 2007, ECU: 

• reviewed its scholarship program to provide a new range of equity scholarships and 
successfully secured additional Commonwealth scholarships for Indigenous people wishing to 
come to ECU to study; 

• organised a range of successful equity events as part of NAIDOC week celebrations, 
International Women’s Day, Pride Month and Mental Health Week.  NAIDOC events were 
planned and presented in conjunction with the City of Joondalup and West Coast TAFE and 
included flag-raising, honouring successful Indigenous students and a cultural forum; and 

• adopted the ALLY program to provide a visible network of trained contacts for Gay, Lesbian, 
Bisexual, Transgender and Intersex students and staff.  

 
 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes  
During 2007, ECU reported on the achievements against its Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 
(DIAP) for the 2006/2007 reporting year, as required by Schedule 3 of the Disability Services 
Regulations 2004.  This report was submitted to the Disability Services Commission (DSC) in a 
template produced by the DSC.   

It is important to acknowledge that ECU’s DAIP covers a five-year period (2006-2010) and many of 
the strategies will be throughout that timeframe.  Some examples of achievements against ECU’s 
DIAP Outcomes in 2006/2007 are listed in Table 16 below. 

Table 16: Examples of ECU’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes, 2006/2007 

g will also be through the University’s normal review pr
a
e

Outcome 1: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, and 
any events organised by, the University. 

• A review of the events checklist was undertaken.  

• Invitations to graduation ceremonies and corporate events provide an opportunity for people to 
identify special requirements. 

Outcome 2: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the buildings and 
other facilities of the University.  

• Priority items were identified in the ECU Disability Access Audit.  All Priority 1 items were completed.  
Priority items 2 and 3 were partially completed. 

Outcome 3: People with disabilities receive information from the University in a format that will enable them 
to access the information as readily as other people are able to access it. 

• Disability Awareness training was provided to staff to assist with information provision in appropriate 
formats. 

Outcome 4: People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of the 
University as other people receive from the staff of the University. 

• Specific support services are provided for students with disabilities including options for laptop 
scholarships, learning support hardware, software, equipment and iPods. 

Outcome 5: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to the 
University.  

• A culture of fairness has been developed through training and communication.  The University Contact 
Officer network increased and was publicised widely. 

Outcome 6: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any public 
consultation by the University.  

• Public consultation on the ECU Disability Access and Inclusion Plan included key groups such as the 
Mental Health Association. 
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 Disability Services Regulations 2004, ECU’s DIAP 

 

In addition to the six outcomes prescribed by the
includes an additional two outcomes: 

Outcome 7: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to seek employment and 
work experience placements with the University. 

• Job vacancies are advertised on ECU’s accessible website.  An ECU partnership with the 
Commonwealth Rehabilitation Services has established a link to employment for people with 
disabilities. 

Outcome 8: The University promotes an inclusive culture that values diversity, does not tolerate harassment 
or discrimination and encourages a secure and safe environment for all students and staff.  

• Disability Awareness training was provided.  A ”Stress Less” event was held during Mental Health 
Week. 

 

 

Equal Employment Opportunities Outcomes  
The ct 1984 (WA) requires outcomes against an Equal Opportunity Management 
P n

E Equal Opportunity Management Plan in consultation  the Office of Equal 
Employment  This will draw on ECU’s Equity Action Plan ing Plan, which 
i  strategies.  Progress against these equity go d strategies will be 
r o me in late 2008.  

 
 

Equal Opportunity A
la  to be reported annually.   

CU is developing an with
Opportunity.

nclude equity goals and
and Staff

als an
ep rted for the first ti
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of the State 
00 (WA).  ECU is committed to compliance in its record keeping activities.  ECU’s 

e State Records Act, was updated and submitted 

g the pilot, a business case 
for full implementation of an EDRMS across the 
whole of ECU was developed.  Phased 

tation is envisaged, with the extent 
nes dependent on budget 

2007. 

training program. 
anagement Officers have been 

deployed to business units across the 
g training to 

classification, as well as on the record keeping 
m.  Training has been given to all staff 

computer-based training package, the Records 

imple ented in 2008 to raise record keeping 

record keeping training program is keeping awareness training.  Customer 

 

d sses employees’ roles and 

 

mployees undergo an induction 
course which addresses employee roles and 

ionally, this material 

Record Keeping 
As a university established under State legislation, ECU is subject to the requirements 
Records Act 20
Record Keeping Plan (RKP), a requirement under th
to the State Records Office in December 2005.  The plan was approved for a five-year term. 

 

State Records Commission Standard 2 Record Keeping Plans: Principle 6 – Compliance 

The efficiency and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s record keeping system is 

ECU has completed a pilot implementation of 
an Electronic Document and Records 

evaluated not less than once every 5 years. Management System (EDRMS) to increase 
efficiency.  Followin

implemen
and timeli
availability.  The revised University Records 
Management Policy was approved in October 
2007 and a Disaster Management Plan for 
records was developed and implemented in 

 

The organisation conducts a record keeping 

 

Records M

University to provide record keepin
system users.  The officers have received 
external training on appraisal and 

syste
involved in the EDRMS pilot program.  A 

Awareness Training System (RATS), was 
purchased in late 2007 and will be 

m
awareness for staff. 

  

The efficiency and effectiveness of the Yearly reviews are conducted on record 

reviewed from time to time. feedback evaluation forms are also utilised. 

The organisation’s induction program All new ECU e
a dre
responsibilities with regards to their 
compliance with the organisation’s record 

responsibilities in regard to the compliance 
aspects of the RKP.  Addit

keeping plan. is included in a handbook issued to employees 
when they join ECU.  The handbook was 
reviewed in 2007 and will be updated in 2008. 
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ummary of Environmental Performance in 2007 

new initiatives to further ECU’s commitment to 

 2007 were: 

8/2009.  This 

a pilot Environmental Risk Assessment for the Facilities and Services Centre, 
which highlighted a range of environmental issues and risks which require management.  An 
EMS will be developed for other areas of the University in 2008.  

 reporting platform was developed for trial 
dalup Campus.  The system delivers a 

ecisions can be made to conserve these utilities. 

re well attended by staff and students. 

CU’s environmental programs are described below under the headings of: 

• Green Procurement; 

• Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions; 

• Water Use; and 

• Waste and Recycling. 

 

Green Procurement 
ECU continued with its commitment to environmental sustainability and supporting recycled product 
markets with 98.5 per cent of paper purchases being paper with recycled content.  New tenders for 
copiers and printing services include a requirement for recycled paper content, ensuring that the 
policy remains viable into the future.  Table 17 shows that ECU’s paper purchases in 2007 were 
below 2005 levels, but higher than in 2006.  Paper purchases per student and staff full-time 
equivalent in 2007 were higher than in 2005 and 2006.  However, the proportion of recycled paper 
purchased has increased each year and in 2007 almost all paper purchased was recycled paper. 

Table 17: ECU Paper Purchases, 2005-2007 

Environmental Performance 
S
2007 saw the consolidation of many of the environmental management programs initiated during 
the previous year and the introduction of some 
environmental sustainability. 

Key achievements in

• Environmental Management System – ECU began developing a formal Environmental 
Management System (EMS) based upon ISO 14001 for implementation in 200
project will bring the University in line with environmental best practice and further 
demonstrate its commitment to environmental sustainability.  The initial steps involved 
undertaking 

• Environmental Sustainability Platform - A new
in the Library and Technology Centre at the Joon
comprehensive energy and water monitoring and reporting platform for individual buildings 
on which management d

• Green Office Program - The Green Office Program continued to be promoted and supported 
throughout 2007.  The Program now involves over 50 Green Office Representatives from all 
faculties and service centres on all campuses.  Presentations by guest speakers from Al 
Gore’s Climate Change Project we

E

 2005 2006 2007 

Total paper purchased  38,815 31,110 35,133 

Average annual Earthsaver spend 18.5% 27.3% 38.6% 

Recycled paper purchased 4,803 8,771 34,603 

Proportion of recycled paper purchased 12.4% 28.2% 98.5% 

Paper/EFTSL + FTE 2.27  1.97 2.34 

Note: All figures are in reams (500 sheets/ ream).  FTE is staff “full-time equivalent”.  EFTSL is student full-
time equivalent load. 
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house Gas Emissions 

CU acknowledges that as a large organisation it is a significant contributor to greenhouse gas 
s and therefore strives to reduce or offset its total emissions and influencing staff, students 

ECU can benefit significantly by further improving its energy management practices.  Effective 
re than ance 
s, mai

o 7 than in 
2006, in total, per student and staff full-time eq

Table 18: ECU Energy Use, 2004-2007  

Energy Use and Green
ECU is one of the most energy-efficient universities in Australia.  According to the latest 
benchmarking survey from the Tertiary Education Facilities Management Association, on a per 
capita and area basis, ECU’s energy usage is well below levels of other Western Australian 
universities and the Australian university sector average. 

E
emission
and the broader community to do likewise.  

energy management can contribute to mo  reduced costs; it can drive improved perform
through its effect on production, operation

Table 18 shows that energy use, and by extrap

ntenance and environmental management.   

lation, CO2 emissions, were higher in 200
uivalent and per square metre. 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Energy GJ/yr .14 93,121.22 97,877.87 94,596.55 101,247

TCO2/yr 5,178 22,851 23,709 23,215 2

GJ/m2 0.518 0.522 0.449 0.466 

GJ/ EFTSL + FTE 5.320 5.719 5.996 6.734 

TCO2 /m2 0.127 0.116 0.126 0.110 

TCO2 / EFTSL + FTE 5 1.306 1.385 1.471 1.67

Note: TCO2 was calculated using the coefficients 1.052  GJ gas 
consumed.  Energy use figures are exclusive of South W s 
gross useable floor area. FTE is staff “full-time equiva

 

Initiatives to manage energy use 
CU began work to develop an Energy Man ment Program to set out ECU’s energy and 

gie  set out 
ageme change in 

arket sec

energy management strategies identified in the Energy Management Program will also be 
corporated into the University’s Environmenta based on ISO 14001, in order 

s an rgets 
ns in 2008. 

m will input data into the University’s Energy 
ne  to 

s it gives the management ase 
decisions. 

The development of the Green Transport Plan is another program aimed at reducing the 
University’s greenhouse gas emissions associated with car travel.  In 2007 74 per cent of trips made 
by staff and 46-58 per cent of those made by students (campus dependant) involved driving alone.  
ECU is committed to reducing these numbers by developing a program of incentives and supporting 
alternatives to car use.  Survey results have shown little change in the use of private vehicles as the 
dominant means of commuting for students in the last five years.   

 kg CO2 per kWh electricity and 68 kg CO2 per
est Campus and Student Housing.  Area is measured a

lent”.  EFTSL is student full-time equivalent load. 

 
E age
greenhouse gas targets and to identify strate
the strategic direction for energy man
anticipation of changes in the energy m

s to address significant issues.  It will also
nt for 2008 to help address climate 
tor.   

The 
in l Management System 
to ensure integration into established system
for energy and greenhouse emissio

The Environmental Sustainability Platfor
Management Program and monitor trends in e
reduce energy use a

d processes and set the stage for reduction ta

rgy consumption.  This is an important initiative
 team high quality information on which to b
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l was launched as a strategy to reduce the number 
niversity campuses and offer alternatives to those 

 registered users. 

6/2007, 380 tonnes of CO2 were offset by planting 1680 trees. 

Wat r
Rainfall
organisa
Australi

A numb cant water shortages by 
introduc
large bu
particul

While ctice, there are 
opportunitie

Table 1
total, p

Table 19: ECU Water Use, 2004-2007 

In 2007 an on-line matching service, ECU Carpoo
of single-occupant car trips to and from the U
without access to their own car.  To date the program has 428

The University has also been proactive in reducing the emissions produced by its vehicle fleet. 
Initiatives to date include actively introducing more fuel-efficient vehicles, (from 6 cylinder to 4 
cylinder) reducing the number of vehicles, and offsetting the remaining emissions through the 
Carbon Neutral Program.  In 200

 

e  Use 
 trends across Australia suggest that water will become a more important issue for large 
tions such as universities in the near future, with rainfall for the South West of Western 
a predicted to decline by up to 20 per cent by 2030 (Australian Greenhouse Office, 2003).  

er of state and territory governments have responded to signifi
ing tough new water reduction and efficiency targets for high water users.  Water use by 
sinesses and public organisations (including universities, colleges and schools) will become a 
ar focus in the future. 

ECU’s water management practices are comparable with best pra
s for further savings and to promote water conservation with ECU staff and students.  

9 shows that ECU’s water use has declined from 2004 to 2006, but rose slightly in 2007 in 
er student and staff full-time equivalent and per square metre. 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Po 119,033 103,944 109,583 table kL/yr 150,776 

Po 8.61 6.96 6.59 7.29 table kL/ EFTSL + FTE 

Potable kL/m  0.839 0.634 0.493 0.504 2

Bore kL/yr 187,978 Data unavailable 152,259 158,576 

Note: Water consumption figures are exclusive of the South West Campus and Student Housing.  Area is 
measured as gross useable floor area. FTE is staff “full-time equivalent”.  EFTSL is student full-time equivalent 
load. 

 

Initiatives to manage water use 
In late 2006 the Commonwealth Government awarded ECU with $16,550 funding to support a water 

 The project is estimated to reuse around 3000 kL of 
l be piped from the cooling towers on site to the storage 

lake for use on the grounds, which will mean th  equi amo  ground water will be 
c nserved.  This is an important saving due to nsitivity of the wetland system abutting the 
Joondalup ater level.  The on-ground works were completed in August 
2007 an
b roughout 2008 to e hat t e’s tem is not adversely 
affe

T  urinals has been increas ugho  U  in 2007.  The new 
Health and Wellness Building has been fitted out with in-built waterless urinals and these units will 
b d refurbishm A sta ce replace urinals with 
waterless urinals as part of normal maintenance of the facilities.   

 

recycling project at the Joondalup Campus. 
scheme water per annum.  The water wil

at the
the se

valent unt of
o

Campus to variations in w
d the project will begin to deliver water savings in 2008.  Monitoring of the lake water has 

egun and will be continued th
cted.  

nsure t he lak ecosys

he number of waterless ed thro ut the niversity

e installed into all new buildings an ents.  ged pro ss will 
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7 showed that paper waste to landfill 

West campuses in 2008. 

Waste and Recycling 
The Western Australian Government has introduced a waste reduction strategy, Zero Waste 2020 
which sets out strategies for the prevention, recovery and safe disposal of waste, with the specific 
target of zero waste by the year 2020.  ECU is supportive of this ambitious target. 

A student-based waste audit completed in August 200
decreased by 17.8 tonnes/annum (or 75 per cent overall) at the Joondalup Campus over the period 
August 2006 to August 2007.  Trends will continue to be monitored through annual audits which will 
be expanded to the Mount Lawley and South 

Table 20 shows that waste to landfill has increased over the period 2005 to 2007, although the 
proportion of paper to landfill has declined to six per cent in 2007.  The weight of paper recycled in 
2007 is not yet available, but in 2006 more than 50 per cent of paper was recycled. 

Table 20: ECU Waste to Landfill, 2005-2007 

 2005 2006 2007 

Waste to landfill (t) 86.85 95.40 87.11 

Paper to landfill (t) 43.3 5.9 23.7 

Prop rtioo n paper to landfill 42.9% 27.2% 6.2% 

Commingled to landfill (t) 12.9 14.0 22.3 

Proportion commingled to landfill 14.9% 16.1% 23.2% 

Paper recycled (t) 12.4 25.4 Data unavailable 

Proportion  paper recycled 22% Data unavailable  52% 

Waste to landfill (t/ EFTSL + FTE)  0.0132 0.0 54 138 0.01

 Note: Waste data is based on annual waste audit results extrapolated across a 50 week for the Joondalup 
Campus only.  Does not include construction, gardening, electronic or furniture waste.  FTE is staff “full-time 
equivalent”.  EFTSL is student full-time equivalent load. 

 

Initiatives to reduce waste to landfill 

ogram.  Fluorescent tubes contain small but 

d in 2007.  This involves replacing desk-side bins with 

ECU continued to expand its recycling programs throughout 2007, encouraging recycling through the 
Green Office Program and through the introduction of the ‘Mini Bin’ Recycling Program.  

In 2007 ECU initiated a fluorescent tube recycling pr
significant amounts of mercury and other hazardous substances that if left in landfill, contaminate 
ground water.  As mercury is bio-accumulative and persistent it is a risk to both wildlife and human 
health.  Recycling these materials helps reduce land and water pollution.   

The ‘Mini Bin’ Recycling Program was expande
paper recycling boxes and mini bins for general waste, helping staff to separate recyclable and non-
recyclable waste and reducing waste to landfill.  Data collected from the Chancellery Building on 
the Joondalup Campus showed that the proportion of paper office waste to landfill reduced by 25 
per cent in the year August 2006 to August 2007.  
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Certification of Financial Statements 
The accompanying financial statements of Edith Cowan University and the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the provision of the 
Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 
transactions for the financial year ending 31 December 2007 and the financial position as at 31 

 which would render any particulars 

December 2007. 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

 
 

 

Certification of financial statements required by DEST 
 

I declare that: 

• at the time of this certification there are reasonable grounds to believe that Edith Cowan 
University will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due; and  

• the amount of Commonwealth financial assistance expended during the financial year 
ending 31 December 2007 was for the purpose(s) for which it was provided. 
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 Consolidated Parent 
  2007 2006 2007 2006 

 

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Revenue from continuing operations      

Australian Government financial assistance      
Australian Government grants 5  111,728  108,548  111,728   108,548 
HECS-HELP Australian Government 
payments 

5  45,377  45,299  45,377   45,299 

FEE-HELP 5  5,950  5,515  5,950   5,515 
State and Local Government financial 
assistance 

6  10,697  8,959  10,697   8,959 

HECS-HELP - Studen 6,918  7,185   6,918 
Fees and charges 53,477  52,460   53,477 
Investment income    2,644 
Royalties, trademarks 3,930   3,379 
Consultancy and contr 5,158   6,176 
Sale of goods 6,949 
Other revenue 

t payments   7,185  
7  52,460  
8  2,945  2,683  2,913

and licences 9  6,338  5,404  
acts 10  5,207  6,208  

  7,280  6,949  7,280   
12  1,528  853  1,528   853 

Total revenue from continuing operations   256,695  250,813  254,206   248,717 

Gain on disposal of assets 11  10,700  40  10,701   40 
Gain on revaluation of investment property 28  -  1,932  -   1,932 
Other income 12  4,378  3,254  1,882   1,014 
Total income   15,078  5,226  12,583   2,986 

Total income and revenue from continuing 
operations before deferred Government 
superannuation contributions 

  271,773  256,039  266,789   251,703 

Deferred government superannuation 
contributions 

22  2,975  3,083  2,975   3,083 

Total revenue and income from continuing 
operations 

  274,748  259,122  269,764   254,786 

Expenses from continuing operations      

Employee related expenses 14  141,541  147,299  139,525   145,562 
Depreciation and amortisation 15  19,953  18,553  19,925   18,499 
Repairs and maintenance 16  6,122  4,897  6,122   4,897 
Finance costs 17  2,105  1,348  2,105   1,348 
Impairment of assets 18  503  716  500   716 
Other expenses 19  77,516  68,615  74,755   66,457 
Cost of goods sold   3,764  3,424  3,764   3,424 
Total expenses from continuing operations 
before deferred employee benefits for 
superannuation 

  251,504  244,852  246,696   240,903 

Deferred employment benefits superannuation 14  2,975  3,083  2,975   3,083 
Total expenses from continuing operations   254,479  247,935  249,671   243,986 

Operating result before income tax 
 

 20,269  11,187  20,093   10,800 

Income tax income/(expense) 20  56  (68)  -   - 
Operating result after income tax for the 
period 35(b)  20,325  11,119  20,093   10,800 

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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 Consolidated Parent 
  2007 2006 

 

$'000 $'000 

SSETS      
urrent assets      

16,802 
11,845 

Inv 23  1,753  2,011  1,604   1,838 
Oth 24  10,174  11,004  10,165   11,004 
No  25  10,590  -  10,590   - 
Oth 26  5,469 

 
 

2007 2006 
Notes $'000 $'000 

A
C
Cash and cash equivalents 21  11,792  17,758  10,790   
Receivables 22  13,269  12,179  12,433   

entories 
er financial assets 

n-current assets classified as held for sale
er non-financial assets  598  5,240   418 

To   53,047 tal current assets  43,550  50,822   41,907 

Non-current assets      
Receivables 22  26,267  29,664  26,386   29,775 
Other financial assets 24  37,689  780  37,689   780 
Property, plant and equipment 27  675,367  674,821  675,237   674,670 
Investment properties 28  12,493  12,493  12,493   12,493 
Deferred tax assets 29  303  103  -   - 
Intangible assets 30  -  2,834  -   2,834 
Total non-current assets   752,119  720,695  751,805   720,552 

Total assets   805,166  764,245  802,627   762,459 

LIABILITIES      
Current liabilities      
Payables 31  10,013  14,907  9,435   14,520 
Borrowings 32  10,187  181  10,187   181 
Provisions 33  20,104  17,209  19,957   17,035 
Other current liabilities 34  20,696  28,201  20,275   27,949 
   61,000  60,498  59,854   59,685 

Total current liabilities   61,000  60,498  59,854   59,685 

Non-current liabilities      
Payables 31  427  340  -   - 
Borrowings 32  61,102  36,639  61,102   36,639 
Provisions 33  31,414  35,768  31,339   35,704 
Deferred tax liabilities 29  118  26  -   - 
Total non-current liabilities   93,061  72,773  92,441   72,343 

Total liabilities   154,061  133,271  152,295   132,028 

Net assets   651,105  630,974  650,332   630,431 

EQUITY      
Reserves 35(a)  327,538  333,091  327,521   333,072 
Retained surplus 35(b)  323,567  297,883  322,811   297,359 

Total equity   651,105  630,974  650,332   630,431 

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated 
2

Propert
plan

equi
revaluation 

reserve 

Investme
revaluation 

r rve 

Foreign 
y 

revaluation 
rese ve 

Retained 
surplu Total 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

G
Su
Tr

 

007 

y 
t and 

pment nts currenc

ese r s 

Balance at 1 January 2007  333,072  19   297,883   630,974 
ain/loss on revaluation 
rplus/(deficit) for the year 

 -  
 - 

(192) 
 

(2)   
-   20,3

-   (194) 
25   20,325 

ansfers  (5,939)  58 -   5,359   - 
Total movements for the year  (5,939)  38 (2)   25,684   20,131 

Balance at 31 December 2007  327,133  388  17   323,567  651,105

Balance at 1 January 2006 
Adjustment to prior year operating re

 222,508  
 -  

-  
-  

(38)   286
-   

,758  509,228 
6  6sult (subsidiary

year 
n 

) 
Gain/loss on revaluation  110,564  -  -   -  110,564 
Surplus/(deficit) for the 
Exchange differ

 -  -  -   11,119  11,119 
ences on translation of foreig

operations (subsidiary)  -  -  57   -  57 
Total movements for the year  110,564  -  57   11,125  121,746 

Balance at 31 December 2006  333,072  -  19   297,883  630,974 

P
2

revaluation 
reserve 

revaluation 
reserve 

revaluation 
reserve 

Retained 
earnings Total 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

 333,0

ficit) for the year  -  -  -   20,093  20,093 
Transfers  (5,939) 

arent 
007 

Property 
plant and 

equipment Investments 
Fore
cur

ign 
rency 

Balance at 1 January 2007 
Gain/loss on revaluation 
Surplus/(de

72  
 -  

-  
(192)  

-   297,3
-   

59  630,431 
-  (192) 

 580  -   5,359  - 
Total movements for the year  (5,939)  388  -   25,452  19,901 

Balance at 31 December 2007  327,133  388  -   322,811  650,332 

Balance at 1 January 2006 
 year 

on 

 222,508  -  -   286,559  509,067 
Surplus/(deficit) for the  -  -  -   10,800  10,800 
Gain on revaluati  110,564  -  -   -  110,564 
Total movements for the year  110,564  -  -   10,800  121,364 

Balance at 31 December 2006  333,072  -  -   297,359  630,431 
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 operating activities 
ial assistance 5(g) 

cation Loan Programmes 

5 ) 
Other Australian Government financial 

ived 5(g) 3,027 2,421 3,027 2,421 
HELP - Student payments 

cial assistance 
other customers 

ceived 
unts 

oyees 

 WA Treasury Corporation 
 Homeswest 

 
 Consolidated Parent 
  

Notes 
2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

 

Cash flows from
Australian Governme

  
 

  
 

 
nt financ

CGS and other grants 
  

5(g)  92,968  99,921  92,968   99,921 
Higher Edu 5(g)  52,765 

 3,948 
 57,225  52,765  

 3,948  
 57,225 

Scholarships 
DEEWR research 

5(g)  3,286  3,286 
5(g)  6,902  6,444  6,902   6,444 

Australian Research Cou
Discovery 

ncil Grants 5(g) 
5(g) 

 
 265 

 
 286 

 
 265  

 
 286 

Linkages (g  371  639  371   639 

assistance rece      
HECS-   7,185  6,918  7,185   6,918 

State Government finan 6  10,697  8,959  10,697   8,959 
Receipts from student fees and   71,223  65,133  66,655   60,722 
Dividends and distributions re 8  282  291  282   291 
Interest and bill disco 8  2,663  2,392  2,631   2,353 
Payments to empl   (140,258)  (147,882)  (138,276)   (146,171) 
Payments to suppliers   (93,427)  (60,957)  (90,872)   (58,509) 
Interest paid to
Interest paid to

 
 

 (2,105) 
 - 

 (1,335)  (2,105)   (1,335) 
 (13)  -   (13) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 43  16,506  43,728  16,443   43,437 

Cash flows from investing activities 
m sale of property, plant and 

 
ayments for property, plant and equipment 

Payments for works of art   (205)  (90)  (205)   (90) 
sets 

     
Proceeds fro
equipment   33,707  91  33,707   91 
Bank bills   830  221  839   221 
Loans to related parties   -  200  -   200 
P   (54,184)  (49,945)  (54,176)   (49,871) 

Payments for financial as   (37,089)  -  (37,089)   - 
Net cash used in investing activities  (56,941) 

 
 (49,523)  (56,924)   (49,449) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
m borrowings from WA Treasury 

 

     
Proceeds fro
Corporation   34,469  12,492  34,469   12,492 
Net cash provided by financing activities   34,469  12,492  34,469   12,492 

  and cash equivalents 
 

h equivalents at the beginning of 
year 

Net increase in cash
held   (5,966)  6,697  (6,012)   6,480 
Cash and cas
the financial   17,758  11,061  16,802   10,322 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

year 21 11,792 financial   17,758  10,790   16,802 

Non-cash financing and investing activities 

tes. 

44 
    

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying no
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1 University Organisation 
Edith Cowan University (the University) is a Statut ority overnment of Western Au and is dom
Australia.  The address of its registered office is 100 Joondalup Drive, Joondalup, Western Australia. 

tion of ducation funde  primarily through Commonwealth grant funding. 
g co ,

ac search. 
 
Th il is the governing body which o
Th d the respo t
Un

2 A tion i

end  3
 Financial Reporting

on of Financial Statemen the
rpretations). 

 University as
ative dates a

 
ns are adopted through AASB 104 on and Application of Standards’ and 

SB Interpretations and those only applicable in Australia. 

has decided to maintain the statements o cc
standards and the interpretation

th not-f -pr

The University cannot early adopt an Australian Acco nting Standard or Interpretation unless specifically permitted by 
on of Australia  Accounting Sta dards and Other Pronouncements’. No 

ssued or amended and are not yet effective have been early adopted by the 
1 Decem

g policies 
pted n th
ted, le

atements constitute a general purpose financi en prepared i
ork, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 

g Standards Board as applied by the Treasurer's Instructions. Several of these 
are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and word g. 

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of 
financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that 
modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Modifications or clarifications to accounting standards through the TI’s are to provide certainty and ensure consistency and 
appropriate reporting across the public sector. 

ory Auth  of the G stralia iciled in 

 
The University is a public not-for-profit institu
Es  it began as a teachin

 higher e d
tablished in 1902 when llege  the University gained university status in 1991.  Its principal 
tivities cover teaching, learning and re

e University Counc  contr ls the operations
 of managing th

, affairs, concern
 operations, affa

s and property o
rs, concerns and

f the University.  
 property of the e Vice-Chancellor has been delegate

iver
nsibili y e i

sity. 

ustralian equivalents to Interna al F nancial Reporting Standards 
General 

The University’s financial statements for the year ed 1 December 2007 have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian equivalents to International  Standards (AIFRS), which comprise a Framework for the 
Preparation and Presentati ts (  Framework) and Australian Accounting Standards (including the 
Australian Accounting Inte
 
In preparing these financial statements the  h  adopted, where relevant to its operations, new and revised 
Standards and Interpretations from their oper
(UIG). 

s issued by the AASB and formerly the Urgent Issues Group 

 The Australian Accounting Interpretatio 8 ‘Interpretati
are classified into those corresponding to IA
 
The AASB f a ounting concepts (SAC 1and SAC 2) and has continued to revise 
and maintain accounting s that are of particular relevance to the Australian environment, 
especially those that deal more specifically wi or ofit entity issues and/or do not have an equivalent IASB Standard 
or Interpretation. 

Early adoption of standards 

u
Treasurer's Instructions (TI) 1101 ‘Applicati n n
Standards and Interpretations that have been i
University for the annual reporting period ended 3 ber 2007. 

3 Summary of significant accountin
The following accounting policies have been ado
been consistently applied to all the years presen

 i e preparation of the financial statements. These policies have 
un ss otherwise stated. 

General Statement 

The financial st al report which has be n accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, the framew
pronouncements of the Australian Accountin

in
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e reporting enti d entity; ECU Resources for Learning Ltd. 

ntrol is taken to

 the entity is ac iversity; 
e net assets of the entity 

)  the University l and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
vities. 

cific details of  Note 42. 

Basis of pre

een prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with his al 
t convention, m tion available-for-sale financial assets and financial liabilities and certain cl s of 

easured at fair value. 

 accounting p tion of the financial statements have been consistently applied throug t all 

et when, and only when, it is probable that future economic efits 
flow and the a ly measured. 

tingent liabiliti t recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are discussed in the relev otes 
ertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset, or represent

ting liability or nt is not probable or the amount cannot be reliably measured. re 
 recognised. 

 in Australian dollars and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thou d 

cial statements of Edith Cowan University (the parent en
ry) up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where the Un sity 

ng policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. A 
sistent accounting policies have been employed in the preparation

 consolidated d results of each controlled entity from the date on ch 
y ceases to control such entities.  

ansactions between the University and controlled e

3 Summary f significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Reporting Entity 

Th ty is Edith Cowan University and its controlle
 
Co  exist where: 
 
(i) countable to the Un
(ii)  the University has a residual financial interest in th
(iii  has the power to govern the financia
acti
 
Spe  controlled entities appear in

(a) paration 

 
The Balance Sheet and Income Statement have b toric
cos odified by the revalua asse
property, plant and equipment which have been m
 
The olicies applied in the prepara hou
periods unless otherwise stated. 
 
Assets and liabilities are recognised in the Balance She  ben
will mounts of the assets or liabilities can be reliab
 
Con es and contingent assets are no ant N
to the Financial Statements. They may arise from unc  an 
exis  asset in respect of which settleme Whe
settlement becomes probable, a liability or asset is
 
The consolidated financial report is presented san
dollars ($’000). 

(b) f consolidation Principles o

Subsidiary 

The consolidated financial statements incorpora tity)te the finan  and 
entities controlled by the University (its subsidia iver
has the power to govern the financial and operati

onlist of controlled entities appears in Note 42. C  and 
entation of thpres e consolidated financial statements. 

 
The  financial statements include the information an whi

niversitthe University obtains control and until such time as the U
 

nrealised gains on tr es Inter-company transactions, balances and u ntiti
are eliminated in full on consolidation.  
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he 
 control of the contribution or, does not have the right to receive the 

ontribution or, has not fulfilled grant conditions, the grant contribution is treated as deferred income. 

nds provide the opportunity for graduate and undergraduate students to work within a faculty in areas of 
research as part of their educational experience. Research grant contributions from various sources of sponsored research, 

nstitutes are recognised as 
he University does not have 

the contribution or does not have the right to receive the contribution or, has not fulfilled grant conditions, the grant 
n is treated as deferred income. 

 Control is normally obtained upon their receipt. 

ents and bequests are invested to create a source of income which is used for scholarships, research, prizes and 

ws: 

f 

Revenue from fees and charges is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to 
f the actual service provided as a proportion of the total 

al outstanding and at the effective interest 

ent not 

(c) Grants and other contributions 

Government grants 

Grant contributions for financial assistance for operational purposes from the Commonwealth Government and Western 
Australia State Government are recognised as revenue when the University obtains control over the asset comprising t
contributions. When the University does not have
c

Sponsored research 

Research fu

including corporations, foundations, Commonwealth, State and local governments and research i
revenue when the University obtains control over the asset comprising the contributions. When t
control of 
contributio

Donations 

Donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised as revenue when the University obtains control over 
the assets comprising the contributions.

Endowment and bequests contributions 

The University receives restricted funds from donors who wish to fund specific programs or initiatives of the University. 
Endowm
special lecture programs. Endowment contributions are recognised as revenue when the University obtains control over the 
assets comprising the contributions. Control is normally obtained upon their receipt. 

(d) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for 
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and Goods and Service Tax (GST). 
 
Revenue is recognised as follo

(i) Sale of goods 
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards o
ownership control transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

(ii) Fees and charges for services 

completion of the specific transaction assessed, on the basis o
services to be provided. 

(iii) Interest income 
Interest income is accrued on a time-proportion basis, by reference to the princip
rate applicable. 

(iv) Parking and library fines 
Revenue from parking and library fines is recognised on a cash basis, as the purpose of the fine is to act as a deterr
strictly for raising revenue. Non-payment of these fines is not actively pursued. 

(v) Royalty, trademark and licences income 
Royalties, trademark and licences income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 
relevant agreements. 

(vi) Land development and resale 
Revenue is recognised when the risk and rewards have been transferred, which is considered to occur on execution of an 
unconditional contract for sale. 
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een the sale 
etermined on a net 

 value and the carrying amount of an asset. 

nificant categories of gains are as follows: 

 and rewards of ownership have passed from the University. Net gains are included in revenue for the period 

Unrealised gains associated with investment property at fair value 

in the fair value of an investment property are included in revenue for the period in which they 
rise. 

xpenses are recognised when they are incurred and are subsequently reported in the year to which they relate. 

nition of significant categories of expenses are as follows: 

or each class of depreciable asset are 
rovided under property, plant and equipment. 

pairment losses are recognised as an expense when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (unless 

The University receives Commonwealth Government superannuation supplementary funding for employer contributions of 
e Superannuation (GSS). These contributions are paid to the state-administered 
tion Board (GESB) during the year. The University also receives Commonwealth 

t general operating funding for employer contributions of the various UniSuper superannuation plans. 

uation Scheme; and 

ue ‘Superannuation – deferred government contributions’ equivalent to (ii) is 
recognised under Revenue in the Income Statement as emerging cost superannuation which is recouped by the 
Commonwealth superannuation supplementary grant. 

(vii) Gains 
Gains may be realised or unrealised. Realised gains are determined on a net basis as the difference betw
proceeds received or receivable and the carrying amount of the non-current asset. Unrealised gains are d
basis as the difference between the fair
 
The policies adopted for the recognition of sig

Realised gains on disposal of non-current assets 

Gains arising on the disposal or retirement of a non-current asset are recognised when control of the asset and the 
significant risks
in which they arise. 

Gains arising from changes 
a

(e) Expense recognition 

E
 
The policies adopted for the recog
 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and leasehold improvements is provided on a straight-line basis at rates 
based on the expected useful lives of those assets. The expected useful lives f
p
 
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets and assets held under finance leases and is calculated on a straight-line basis, 
generally over the expected useful lives. 
 
Im
it is relates to a revalued asset, where the value change is recognised directly in equity). 
 

the Pension Scheme and Gold Stat
Government Employed Superannua
Governmen
 
The University includes the following elements in calculating the superannuation expense: 
 
(i) Defined benefit plan – change in the unfunded employer’s liability in respect of current employees who are members of 
the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme; and 
 
(ii) Defined benefit plan – emerging cost in respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and 
current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State Superann
 
(iii) Defined contribution plan – employer contributions paid to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and all of the 
Unisuper superannuation plans. A reven
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eld for use in the production or supply of goods or services and for administrative purposes, are stated 

n. 
h 

se arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is credited to the asset revaluation reserve, 
at it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset class previously recognised as an expense, in 

set 
 

 to the Income Statement. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued 
le revaluation surplus remaining in the asset revaluation reserve is transferred directly to the retained 

, 
fees and, for qualifying assets, 

tion of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

s. 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and properties under construction, 
the straight-line method. 

sset category Life 
Not depreciated 

din years 
4 years 

 
a 6 years 

(f) Property, plant and equipment 

Land and buildings h
in the Balance Sheet at their fair value, the fair value is determined by independent professional valuers, less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and subsequent accumulated recoverable amount write-dow
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that whic
would be determined using fair values at the reporting date. 
 
Any revaluation increa
except to the extent th
which case the increase is credited to the Income Statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged on a as
class basis. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is charged as an expense to
the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that 
asset class. 
 
Depreciation on revalued assets is charged
asset, the attributab
surplus. 
 
Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined
are carried at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes professional 
borrowing costs are capitalised. Deprecia
 
Fixtures and computer equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losse
Purchases of fixtures and computer equipment which individually cost less than $5,000 are expensed in the Income 
Statement in the year of acquisition. 
 

over their useful lives, using 
 
Expected useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

A
Land 
Buil gs 50 
Computing Equipment 
Other equipment and furniture 6-10 years 
Motor vehicles 4-6 years
Le sed motor vehicles 
Works of art Not depreciated 
Library collections Depreciated at 100% in the fourth year after acquisition 
Leasehold improvements Depreciated over life of lease 
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r the estimated useful life of the buildings on the Churchlands campus was revised. It was determined that the 
re 

In each year, that year’s cost of 
est year’s cost of acquisition within the carrying value is written off. 

cation, 

seful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting 

Investment properties exclude properties held to meet service delivery objectives of the University and comprises land 
d to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation. 

d when it 
 probable that future economics benefits in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the 

its cost shall be deemed to be 
s fair value, as at the date of acquisition. 

nly when 
 is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the University and the cost of the item can be 

during the financial period in 
hich they are incurred. 

inal 

ount and 
e recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than 

through continuing use. 

Non current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

Non current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. 

During the yea
buildings no longer have a useful life due to the redevelopment of the Churchlands campus. As a result the buildings we
completely written off in the current period. The additional depreciation charge in the current period due to the change was 
$635,330. 
 
Library Collections are stated at cost of the last three years’ acquisition of library books.  
acquisition is added to the carrying value and the earli
 
Works of art are classified as heritage assets. These artefacts are protected and preserved for public exhibition, edu
research and the furtherance of public service. They are neither disposed of for financial gain nor encumbered in any 
manner. Accordingly, such collections are capitalised, irrespective of value and are not depreciated as it is anticipated that 
they have indefinite u
period. 

(g) Investment properties 

and/or buildings which are hel

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalise
is
University. Where an investment property is acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, 
it

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment properties are re-valued to fair value with changes in the fair value 
recognised in the income statements in the period that they arise. The properties are not depreciated. 

Rental revenue from the leasing of investment properties is recognised in the income statements in the periods in which it is 
receivable, as this represents the pattern of service rendered through the provisions of the properties. 

(h) Intangible assets 

Computer software 
The intangible assets comprise of externally acquired Computer software that is customised by the University, stated at 
historical cost less amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, o
it
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement 
w

Computer software is amortised using the straight line method, over its estimated useful life. Computer software is amortised 
between 2-5 years 

During 2007, the estimated useful life of the intangible assets was revised. It was determined that the software had reached 
the end of its useful life, on the basis that as it requires continuous upgrades and it had significantly changed from its orig
state due to this upgrades. 

(i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations 

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of their carrying am
fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount will b
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he 

rcumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially 
nderstated or where the replacement cost is falling. 

entified as surplus assets, the recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less selling costs and the present 
alue of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. 

entals payable under operating leases are charged as an expense to the income statement on a straight-line basis over 

e. 

cted cash assets.  Endowment and bequest funds have been received 
om benefactors who, by the terms of their conveying instruments, have stipulated that the use of funds is limited in future 

( ventories 

I  the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost comprises direct materials and where applicable, 
i ling costs that have been incurre  inventories to their present location and 
c ng the weighted average method.  

( les 

A mounts due from students for tuition
r ponsors for externally funded research ognised at the amounts 

ceivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.  Accounts receivables do not 
y any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable 

amounts. 

(p) Investments and other financial assets 

The University has classified its financial assets into the following categories:  Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments and available-for-sale assets. 

(i) Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
They typically arise when the University provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor who has no intention of 
trading the receivable. Assets in this category are currently recorded at amortised cost. 

(j) Impairment 

The University is required to assess property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for any indication of impairment at 
each reporting date.  Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount must be estimated.   As t
University is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, AASB 136 prescribes that the 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less selling costs and depreciated replacement cost.  
Consequently, the risk of impairment is generally limited to ci
u
 
The University reviews each relevant class of assets annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of an asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk 
from falling replacement costs. 
 
For assets id
v

(k) Leases 

R
the term of the relevant lease. 

(l) Cash 

For the purposes of the Cashflow Statement, cash includes cash assets and restricted cash assets.  These include 
short-term deposits that are readily convertible to cash on hand and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in valu

(m) Restricted cash 

Endowment and bequest funds are classified as restri
fr
years to the purposes designated by the benefactors.  

n) In

nventories are valued at
mport duties, transport and hand

is calculated usi
d to bring the

ondition.  Cost 

o) Receivab

ccounts receivable include a
eimbursements due from s

 fees, housing and other enrolm
.  Accounts receivables are rec

ent related services and 

re
carr
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d 

k bills at purchase price (not maturity value) and accrues the interest on a monthly basis until that interest is 
corded at maturity. 

 

gh profit or loss.  Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
assets have expired or have been transferred and the University has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 

d.  Unrealised gains and losses arising from 

ased on current bid prices.  If the market for a financial asset is not active (and 

t or group of financial 

he acquisition cost 
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit and loss) is 

ecognised in the income statement.  Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on 
ersed through the income statement, but are recognised in equity in the available-for-sale 

remiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accrual 

 classified as current liabilities unless the University has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. 

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and of fixed maturity that are intende
to be held to maturity. The University currently invests in bank bills, which are classified under this category. The University 
records ban
re

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally of marketable equity securities (held through managed funds), are 
non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories.  They are included 
in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the University commits to purchase or
sell the asset.  Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at 
fair value throu

ownership. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.  Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity 
investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest metho
changes in the fair value of non monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity in the 
investments revaluation reserve.  When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair 
value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities. 

The fair values of quoted investments are b
for unlisted securities), the University establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. 

The University assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asse
assets is impaired.  In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the 
fair value of a security below its cost is considered in determining whether the security is impaired.  If any such evidence 
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference between t

removed from equity and r
equity instruments are not rev
investments revaluation reserve. 

(q) Payables 

Payables are recognised when the University becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets 
or services. Accounts payable are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value. 

(r) Borrowings 

Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recorded when the proceeds are received, net of direct issued costs.  Finance 
charges, including p
basis using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are 
not settled in the period in which they arise. 

Interest bearing liabilities are
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 are 
te 

he liability for annual leave that will fall due within 12 months after the end of the reporting date is recognised in the 
ual 

 present value of amounts expected to be paid in the future in respect of services provided 
y employees up to the reporting date.  Consideration is given, when assessing expected future payments, to expected 

s to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash flows. 

 benefits - long service leave 

2 months after the end of the reporting date is recognised in the provision for 
efits and is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid in the future in respect of services 

ployees up to the reporting date.  Consideration is given, when assessing expected future payments, to 
 using 

e, 

d at remuneration rates expected to be paid when liabilities are settled.  A liability for long 

y has adopted the shorthand method to calculate long service leave liabilities. 

Employee on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax, are not employee benefits and are 
es and expenses when the employee benefits to which they relate have occurred.   Employee on-costs 
art of the University’s Employee benefits expense and the related liability is included in Employee 

e 
cognise the cost of sick leave and study leave when paid.  Employees who leave University employment are 

not entitled to be paid for accrued sick leave or study leave.  Therefore, no liability is shown in the financial statements. 

(s) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and
liable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. See no
33 ‘Provisions’. 
 
(i) Employee benefits - annual leave 
T
provision for employee benefits and is measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid.  The liability for ann
leave that will fall due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting date is recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits and is measured at the
b
future wage and salary levels including superannuation on-costs.  Expected future payments are discounted using market 
yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with term

(ii) Employee
The liability for long service leave that will fall due within 12 months after the end of the reporting date is recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits and is measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid.  The liability for long 
service leave that will fall due more than 1
employee ben
provided by em
expected future wage and salary levels including superannuation on-costs.  Expected future payments are discounted
market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possibl
the estimated future cash flows. 
 
Leave benefits are calculate
service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service.  An actuarial assessment of long service 
leave undertaken in-house in 2007 determined that the liability measured using the short-hand method was not materially 
different from the liability measured using the present value of expected future payments. 
 
In 2007, the Universit
 
All unconditional long service leave is classified as a current liability. 

Employee On-Costs 

recognised as liabiliti
are not included as p
on-costs provision. 

Other compensated absences 

Employees accrue and accumulate sick leave and study leave in accordance with University policies.   It is the policy of th
University to re
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nd loss in the year in which they occur.  

nd indexed during any deferral period after leaving public sector employment. 

es are 

d. 

 

ic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of 
n other economic environments. 

elivers nationally accredited 
ns designed to meet the varied needs of businesses and individuals activities.   

f usage.  Income tax has not been included in assets and liabilities. 

The special reserve represents restricted funds, whose use is limited in future years to the purposes designated by the 
benefactors, donors or sponsors such as research financial assistance, scholarships and capital equipment replacement. 
 
No funds are currently held in special reserves at the reporting date. 

(iii) Superannuation 
The University contributes to the GESB Pension Scheme, GESB Gold State Superannuation Scheme and various UniSuper 
superannuation schemes on behalf of its employees.  The contributions made to these schemes by the University, and 
emerging costs from unfunded schemes, are expensed in the Income Statement.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
immediately in profit a
 
Refer to Note 49 for details relating to the individual schemes. 
 
GESB Scheme Information 
Pension Scheme members’ receive pension benefits on retirement, death or invalidity.  The Fund Share of the pension 
benefit, which is based on the members’ contributions plus investment earnings, may be commuted to a lump sum benefit. 
The State Share of the pension benefit, which is employer-financed, cannot be commuted to a lump sum benefit. 
 
Some former Pension Scheme members’ have transferred to the Gold State Scheme. The members receive a lump sum 
benefit in respect of their transferred benefit at retirement, death or invalidity which is related to their salary during their 
employment a

(t) Foreign currency translation and hedges 

Transactions in currencies other than Australian dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the 
transactions.  At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currenci
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date.  Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.  
Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in the Income Statement for the perio

(u) Disaggregation information 

The University has determined reportable segment information on the basis of business segments and geographical 
segments. 
 
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business segments.  A geographic segment is engaged in providing 
services within a particular econom
segments operating i
 
The University have two reportable business segments consisting of higher education and vocational education and training 
(VET).  The higher education segment is an aggregation of operations that deliver progressive university degree programs 
for the modern workplace and focus on the service professions.  The VET segment primarily d
flexible training solutio
 
Geographically, the University and its subsidiary's activities are conducted and operated predominantly in Australia.  
Off-shore activities are analysed as a separate geographical segment. 
 
Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are allocated to business and geographic segments on the basis of 
direct attribution and reasonable estimates o

(v) Special reserves 
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to 

he overseas branches are subject to income tax relating to income and expenditure items attributable to permanent 
United States of America and New Zealand.  The taxation expense represents 

ability method to account for expected income tax consequences 

s 

n 

Certain new Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2007 
elow: 

007-3 are effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009.  AASB 8 will 
ge in the approach to segment reporting, as it requires adoption of a 'management approach' to 

e. The information being reported will be based on what the key decision-makers use 

(ii) Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs and AASB 2007-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 123  [AASB 1, AASB 101, AASB 107, AASB 111, AASB 116 & AASB 138 and Interpretations 1 & 12] 

The revised AASB 123 is applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009.  It has removed 
the option to expense all borrowing costs and - when adopted - will require the capitalisation of all borrowing costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.  There will be no impact on the financial report 
of the University, as the University does already capitalise borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets. 

(w) Taxation 

The controlled entity, E.C.U. Resources for Learning Ltd. (ECURL) trading as Steps Professional Development, is subject 
income tax in Australia under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.  Authority has been granted to ECURL to adopt a 
calendar tax year.    
 
T
establishments in the United Kingdom, the 
the sum of tax currently payable and is measured at 31 December each year.   
 
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.  The liability 
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the reporting date. 

(x) Deferred tax 

The consolidated entity adopts an income statement li
inherent in the financial statements.   The provision for deferred income tax liability and deferred tax assets includes the tax 
effect (at current tax rates) of the differences between income and expense items recognised in different accounting period
for book and tax purposes. The benefit arising from estimated carry-forward tax losses, has also been recorded as a 
deferred tax asset only where realisation of the asset is considered to be virtually certain.  The carrying amount of deferred 
tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer virtually certain that sufficient 
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

(y) Comparative figures 

Comparative figures have been restated on the AIFRS basis except for financial instruments information which has bee
prepared under the previous AGAAP Accounting Standard AAS 33 as permitted by AASB 1.36A.  The transition to AIFRS 
for data prepared under AASB 132 and AASB 139 was 1 January 2005. 

(z) Rounding 

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.  

(aa) New accounting standards and Interpretations 

reporting periods.  The University’s assessment of the impact of these new Standards and Interpretations is set out b

(i) AASB 8 Operating Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8
AASB 8 and AASB 2
result in a significant chan
reporting on the financial performanc
internally for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.  The 
University has not yet decided when to adopt AASB 8.  Application of AASB 8 may result in different segments, segment 
results and different type of information being reported in the segment note of the financial report.  However, it will not affect 
any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
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  Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB2007-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
 

 for-profit entities contained in Australian Accounting 
tandards. An objective of this standard is to put in place transaction-neutral standards that will precribe treatment of like 

dard will not affect any if the amounts recognised in the 
nancial statements.  

(iii) Revised AASB 101
Standards arising from AASB 101 

A revised AASB 101 that was issued in September 2007 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2009. Local governments, government departments and governments were subject to requirements that differed 
from requirements applicable to other not-for-profit entities and
S
transactions and events consistently, the application of this stan
fi
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4 Disaggregated information 
 

VET Total Entity 

 

 

      

 

4.1  Industry 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Parent  Higher Education 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Income statements 

Total revenue and income from 
continuing activities  255,105  240,701  14,659  14,085   269,764   254,786
Total expenses from continuing 
activities  239,254  233,708  10,417  10,278   249,671   243,986 
Operating result from continuing 
activities  15,851  6,993  4,242  3,807   20,093   10,800 

Balance sheets 
      
      

7 
Assets 
Current assets  50,770  41,858  52  49   50,822   41,90
Non-current assets  751,598  720,320  207  232   751,805   720,552 
Total assets  802,368  762,178  259  281   802,627   762,459 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

      
 59,436  59,327  418  358   59,854   59,685 

Non-current liabilities  92,245  72,188  196  155   92,441   72,343 
Total liabilities  151,681  131,515  614  513   152,295   132,028 

Net Assets  650,687  630,663  (355)  (232)   650,332   630,431 

Equity  650,687  630,663  (355)  (232)   650,332   630,431 

4.2  Geographical 

Consolidated  Revenue Results Assets 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

 

 

 
A   

      
ustralia  267,461  252,114  18,563  8,850   804,593  763,929

Other   7,287  7,008  1,762  2,269   428   316 
Total  274,748  259,122  20,325  11,119   805,021   764,245 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 

 

07 
 905  986  905   986 

Equity Support programmes  217  392  217   392 
Disability Support Programme  42  46  42   46 
Workplace Reform Programme  1,144  1,232  1,144   1,232 
Workplace Productivity Programme  1,587  -  1,587   - 
Capital Development Pool  585  2,129  585   2,129 
Superannuation Programme  4,660 

Australian Government financial assistance 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

(a) Commonwealth Grants Scheme and other grants     
Commonwealth Grants Scheme  88,099  86,907  88,099   86,9
Indigenous Support Fund 

 3,681  4,660   3,681 
Total Commonwealth Grants Scheme and other grants  97,239  95,373  97,239   95,373 

(b) Higher Education Loan Programmes     
HECS-HELP  45,377  45,299  45,377   45,299 
FEE-HELP  5,950  5,515  5,950   5,515 
Total Higher Education Loan Programmes  51,327  50,814  51,327   50,814 

(c) Scholarships     
Australian Postgraduate Awards  873  874  873   874 
International Postgraduate Research Scholarships  140  153  140   153 
Commonwealth Education Cost Scholarships  1,257  932  1,257   932 
Commonwealth Accommodation Scholarships  1,645  1,327  1,645   1,327 
Indigenous Scholarships  33  -  33   - 
Total Scholarships  3,948  3,286  3,948   3,286 

(d) DEEWR - Research     
Institutional Grants Scheme  1,945  1,825  1,945   1,825 
Research Training Scheme  4,223  4,074  4,223   4,074 
Research Infrastructure Block Grants  544  545  544   545 
Implementation assistance programme  44  -  44   - 
Australian scheme for higher education repositories  98  -  98   - 
Commercialisation Training Scheme  48  -  48   - 
Total DEEWR-Research Grants  6,902  6,444  6,902   6,444 

(e) Australian Research Council  
(i) Discovery     
Discovery - Projects  196  359  196   359 
Total Discovery  196  359  196   359 

(ii) Linkages     
Linkages - Other  416  665  416   665 
Total Linkages  416  665  416   665 

Total Australian Research Council  612  1,024  612   1,024 
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ancial assistance     
National competitive  667  733   667  733 

rch grants  1,083  1,322   1,083  1,322 
 1,277 

(f) Other Australian Government fin

Other resea
Other  366   1,277  366 
Total Other Australian Government financial assistance  3,027  2,421   3,027  2,421 

Total Australian Government financial assistance  163,055  159,362   163,055  159,362 

Reco
Aust

nciliation   
ralian Government grants (a+c+d+e 111,728  108,548   1 108,548 

HECS-HELP - Australian Government p ts 45    45,377  45,299 
Other Australian Government loan prog s 
[FEE-HELP]  5,950 

 
+f)  

 
11,728  

 ,377  45,299aymen
ramme

 5,515   5,950  5,515 
Total Australian Government financial assistance  163,055  159,362   163,055  159,362 

(g) Australian Government g
basis (Ref Note 

rants re

nts 
me

 Research Grants 
ARC grants - Discovery  265  286   265  286 

inkages  371  639   371  639 
n Government Grants   2,421   3,027  2,421 

 -   -  - 
lian Government Gra

ceived - cash 
 50)  

CGS and Other DEEWR Gra
Higher Educ

   
 92,96
 

8  99,92
52,765  

1   92,96
57,225   

8
52,765

  99,921 
  57,225 ation Loan Program

Scholarships 
DEEWR

s 
 3,948
 

  3,286
6,902  

   3,948
6,444   

  3,286 
  6,444 6,902

ARC grants - L
Other Australia
 

 3,027
 - 

Total Austra nts received - cash 
basis  160,246  170,222   160,246  170,222 

OS-Help (Net)  3  12   3  12 
 Government funTotal Australian

basis 
ding received - cash

 
 

160,249  170,234   160,249  170,234 

 

6 State and Local Governm
 Consolidated Parent 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

State financial assistance   
WA State Department of Education and g*    7,294  6,918 
Other 

ent financial assistance 

 

 
  
 
 

7,294  6,918
3,403  2,041

 Trainin
   3,403  2,041 

Total State and Local Government financial 
ance assist  10,6 7 9  8,959   10,697  8,959 

 

* The funding relates to West Australian Academy of Performing Arts (WAAPA@ECU)  
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 Consolid Pare
 07 6 7 6 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

ents 
aduate students 
raduate students 

students 

ated nt 
20 200 200 200

 
Course fees and charges     
Continuing education  1,023  2,869   1,023  2,869 
Fee-paying overseas stud  41,621  38,008   41,621  38,008 
Fee-paying domestic postgr  3,406  3,896   3,406  3,896 
Fee-paying domestic underg  15  818   15  818 
Fee-paying domestic non-award  -  38   -  38 
Total course fees and charges  46,065  45,629   46,065  45,629 

Other non-course fees and charges     
Student accommodation  1,835  1,677   1,835  1,677 

 1,199  1,284   1,199  1,284 
nd workshop fees 

egistration and photocoping fees 

Late fees  203  169   203  169 
 1,235  1,284   1,235  1,284 

Rental charges 
Seminar a  846  758   846  758 
Examination, r  315  512   315  512 
Library fines  34  171   34  171 

Parking fees 
Amenities and service fees  96  947   96  947 
Course consumable fee  91  447   91  447 
All other  541  599   541  599 
Total other non-course fees and charges  6,395  7,848   6,395  7,848 

Total fees and charges  52,460  53,477   52,460  53,477 

 

8 Investment income 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
ue on loan to subsidi

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

ary  -  -   8  6 
 account 
ills and trust accounts 

ived 
om investments in managed funds  85 

Interest reven
Interest from current

nk b
 1,015  706   975  661 

Interest from ba
Dividends rece

 1,6
 197  291

48  1,686   1,6
   197  291

48  1,686 
 

Distributions fr  -   85  - 
Total investment income  2,945  2,683   2,913  2,644 

 

9 Royalties, trademarks and licences 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Royalties  6,338  5,404   3,930  3,379 
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$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Research     
712 686 663 654 

10 Consultancy and contracts 
 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

Consultancy      
Contract research  4,495  5,522   4,495  5,522 
Total consultancy and contracts  5,207  6,208   5,158  6,176 

 

11 Gain on disposal of assets 
 
 
 

 
n-current assets 

roperty, plant and equipment 

ds from disposal of non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment  36,627 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Carrying amounts of disposal of no     
P  (25,927)  (51)   (25,926)  (51) 
 
Procee     

 91   36,627  91 
osal of assets  10,700  40   10,701 Net gain on disp  40 

 

2 Other revenue and income 
 nsolidated Parent 
 2006 2007 2006 

$'0 00 $'000 $'000 

Other revenue     
Donations, bequests and scholarships  730  134   730  134 

nsorships 309 207 309 207 

1
Co

2007 

 
00 $'0

   Prizes, contributions and spo   
Commissions and rebates received 

se recoups 
 342  382   342  382 

Expen  147  130   147  130 
Total other revenue  1,528  853   1,528  853 

Other income     
surance claims  26  19   26  19 
ox office - WAAPA  304  231   304  231 

3   1,392  323 
Medical practitioners fees  94  100   94  100 
Bad debts recovered  10  301   10  301 
Professional development courses  2,385  2,150   -  - 
Other  167 

In
B
Miscellaneous Income  1,392  32

 130   56  40 
Total other income  4,378  3,254   1,882  1,014 

Total other revenue and income  5,906  4,107   3,410  1,867 
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ing policy 

Change in accounting policy regarding the recording of pro ment in t v ear 
as inventory 

The University embarked on the redevelopment of the Churchlands campus into residential blocks to be sold in 6 stages 
. The land under development was initially in rpreted to be treated as Invento . Considering 

tual transaction pertaining to the p
ring the definitions, recog

 the develop
d that the 

It was determined that the appropriate accounting treatment for the development of land is to classify this as property, plant 
ting the requirements of AASB 5 a of a year should be reclassified to 
 sale.  In the prior 

ipment as stages 1 and 2 were 

ed by res
 at cost 

ntory. In these financials the prior year carr
quipment of $31,735,000 from invent

equipment. A corresponding i
d for.   

 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

cademic     
 55,888  56,589   55,888  56,589 

and pension schemes:     
Emerging cost  3,972    3,972  
Funded  093   0 093 

Long service leave expense  1,719  1,795   1,719  1,795 
Annual leave  480  1,347   480  1,347 
Redundancy payouts  446  4,521   446  4,521 

13 Change in account

perty plant and equip he pre ious financial y

during the 2006 financial year te ry
the substance of the ac urchase of land from WA Government and obtaining technical 
professional advise and conside nitions requirements and appropriate measurement of the relevant 
accounting standards, it was established that ment of land does not form part of the ordinary course of business 
for the University and it was therefore conclude initial application of the relevant accounting policies needed to be 
revised. 
 

and equipment.  All the unsold lots mee
fied as held for

t the end 
non-current assets classi

t and equ
year the land and any development costs has been restated back 

to property, plan not ready for sale as at 31 December 2006. 
 
The change in accounting policy has been effect

e land under development was held
tating each of the affected financial statement line items for the 

prior year. Th
nve

in the prior year at $23,138,000, as per the University’s accounting 
policy for I ying value of land and development cost capitalised was restated to 
property plant and e ory. This represents the fair value of land as per the accounting 
policy on property plant and 

nte
ncrease to the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve 

of $8,597,000 was accou

14 Employee related expenses 
Consolidated Parent 

A
Salaries 
Contribution to superannuation 

  3,510
8,032  

  3,510
32  8, 8, 8,

Other  1,686  688   1,686  688 
Total Academic  72,223  76,543   72,223  76,543 

Non-academic 
Salaries 

 
 57,931 

 
 57,616  

 
 56,156 

 
 56,054 

Contribution to superannuation and pension schemes: 
Emerging cost  315  1,614   124  1,467 
Funded  8,049  8,028   8,049  8,028 

ong service leave expense  1,514  835   1,490  823 
nnual leave  396  (89)   370  (105) 

Redundancy payouts  778  2,532   778  2,532 
 335 

    

L
A

Other  220   335  220 
To demic tal Non-aca  69,318  70,756   67,302  69,019 

Total academic and non-academic employee related 
expenses  141,541  147,299   139,525  145,562 

Deferred employment benefits for superannuation  2,975  3,083   2,975  3,083 
Total Employee related expenses  144,516  150,382   142,500  148,645 

111 



Edith Cowan University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

31 December 2007 
(continued) 

 

-25- 
Section 5 - ECU Financial Statements 

on 
 Consolidated Parent 

200 06 2007 2006 

 
Depreciation     

10,189 9,397 10,189 9,397 
rovements 

d furniture 

Motor vehicles  48  107   46  103 
Library collections  2,510 

15 Depreciation and amortisati

 7 20
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Buildings      
Leasehold imp  616  447   612  444 
Other equipment an  2,816  2,582   2,810  2,570 
Computing equipment  940  1,489   924  1,454 

 2,616   2,510  2,616 
otal depreciation  17,119 T  16,638   17,091  16,584 

Amortisation     
 2,834  1,915 Intangible assets   2,834  1,915 
 2,834 Total amortisation  1,915   2,834  1,915 

Total depreciation and amortisation  19,953  18,553   919, 25  18,499 

 

16 Repairs and maintenance 
 
 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

uildings maintenance  4,394  3,696   4,394  3,696 
intenance  433  449   433  449 

 1,295 

Conso
2007 

lidated 
2006 

Par
2007 

ent 
2006 

B
Grounds ma
Other  752   1,295  752 
Total repairs and maintenance  6,122  4,897   6,122  4,897 

 

 
 

 
2,105 

17 Finance costs 
Consolidated Parent 

2007 2006 
0 

2007 2006 
0 $'000 $'00 $'000 $'00

Interest cost   1,348  2,105   1,348 
     

18 Impairment of assets 
 
 

 
ff directly 

Impairments of receivables provided for  500 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2007 2006 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Impairments of receivables written o  3  2   -  2 
 714   500  714 

Total impairments of assets  503  716   500  716 
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$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

51 

 
aff development & entertainment  6,504  5,909   6,069  5,566 

perating lease rental expenses  556  946   540  936 

3,225 

,532  3,260 
dvertising & marketing   6,672  3,664   6,312  3,377 

5 

19 Other expenses 
Consolidated Parent 

2007 2006 2007 2006 

Employee on-costs*   8,557  8,385   8,420  8,293 
Student related expenditure  9,558  9,451   9,558  9,4
Telecommunications  1,545  1,454   1,511  1,424 
Non-capitalised equipment  6,628  4,604   6,628  4,604 
Computer software and maintenance  7,950  8,853   7,950  8,853
Travel, st
O
Professional and consulting fees  10,826  7,845   10,504  7,755 
General consumables  4,300  3,751   3,715  
Printing, postage and stationery  3,274  3,577   3,122  3,416 
Electricity, gas and rates  3,659  3,389   3
A
Asset write-offs during the year  14  5   14  
Other  7,473  6,782   6,880  6,292 
Total Other expenses  77,516  68,615   74,755  66,457 

*Includes workers’ compensation insurance, payroll tax and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated 
with the recognition of annual leave and long service leave liability is included at Note 33 ‘Provisions’. Superannuation 
contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.  

 

20 Income tax expense 
Consolidated 

 

 

ovided in prior years 

 
2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

(a) Income tax expense 
  

Current tax  58 
 (108) 

 68 
Deferred tax  (1) 
Under / (over) pr  (6)  1 
  (56)  68 

Deferred income tax (revenue) / expense included in income tax expense comprises:   
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets 
(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities 

 (200)  (3) 
 92  2 
 (108)   (1) 

Income tax is in relation to the Controlled Entity E.C.U Resources for Learning Ltd. which includes overseas branches. 
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 Consolidated 
2007 2006 

 

l reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable 

f 30% (2006 - 30%) 
 

tax rates 
ision in prior years 
s not recognised 

 
$'000 $'000 

(b) Numerica
  

   
Tax at the Australian tax rate o

Deferred tax underprovision
 49  118 
 (10)  - 

Difference in overseas  (18)  (38) 
Under / (over) prov
Prior year tax losse

 (6)  2 
 23  22 

  (1)  (14) 

Income tax exp  38  ense 

which are not deductible (assessab

104 

Tax effect of amounts le) in calculating taxable income:   
Depreciation and amortisation 
Sundry items 

 1 
 (21) 

 1 
 - 

Income tax expense adjusted for permanent differences  (20)  1 

enefit of tax losses of prior years recouped  (74) B  (37) 
x expense - tax consolidated group (excluding parent entity)  (94) Income ta  (36) 

 (56) Total income tax expense  68 

(c) Tax losses 
  

hich no deferred tax asset has been  76 Unused tax losses for w  recognised  149 
Potential tax benefit  23  45 

These tax losses include US unused tax losses which will

 

21 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Consolidated Parent 

200 06 2007 2006 

 
    

 and on hand 
ank Bills 5,912 5,808 5,685 5,808 

Cash held in imprests  28  27   28  27 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  4,448 

 expire in the year ending 31 December 2021. 

 7 20
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

 
Cash at bank  1,404  7,906   629  6,950 
B      

 4,017   4,448  4,017 
Total cash and cash equivalents  11,792  17,758   10,790  16,802 
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t the end of the year 

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financ ash flow o

 nsolidate Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
ts 

 36) 

Reconciliation to cash a

ial year as shown in the c  statement as f llows: 

Co d 
 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Unrestricted cash asse  7,344  13,741   6,342  12,785 
Restricted cash assets (note  4,448  4,017   4,448  4,017 
Balances per cash flow statement  11,792  17,758   10,790  16,802 

 

22 Receivables 
 
 

 

Less: allowance for impairment of receivables  (1,782) 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Current     
Receivables     
Trade receivables  10,057  9,672   9,416  9,338 

 (1,584)   (1,782)  (1,584) 
 8,275   8,088   7,634  7,754 

Deferred government contribution for superannuation*  3,550  3,128   3,550  3,128 
GST  1,444  963   1,249  963 

 13,269 Total current receivables  12,179   12,433  11,845 

Non-current    
Deferred government contribution for superannuation*  26,267  29,664   26,267  29,664 
Loans to related parties  - 

 

 -   119  111 
Total non-current receivables  26,267  29,664   26,386  29,775 

Total trade and other receivables  39,536  41,843   38,819  41,620 

*The total income for the 2007 from deferred government superannuation contributions rec
h is derived from the difference between current and

orresponding expense is also recognised (Refer to Note 14).  

ty with a nominal value of $10,
782,000 (2006: $1,584,000).  The individua

late to individual overseas students and trade debt, which are more difficult to collect due
assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. 

ognised in the income statement 
is $2,975,000 (2006: $3,083,000) whic  prior year balances. A 
c

(a) Impaired receivables 

As at 31 December 2007 current receivables of the Universi 504,000 (2006: $9,190,000) were 
impaired.  The amount of the provision was $1, lly impaired receivables mainly 
re  to their location.  It was 
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The ageing of these receivables is as follows: 

  
 1,811 

Consolidated  
 2007 

$'000 
2006 
$'000 

 
3 to 6 months  650

 
 1,606

Over 6 months  4,136 
  2,461  5,742 

As of 31 December 2007, trade receivables of $679,000 (2006: $4,158,000) were past due
r whom there is no recent history of default. 

les is as follows: 

 Consolidated 
 

 

3 to

 but not impaired.  These relate to 
a number of independent customers fo

The ageing analysis of these receivab

2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

   
 6 months  492  1,559 

Over 6 months  187  2,599 
  679  4,158 

Movements in the provision for impaired receivables are as follows: 

 Consolidated 
 

 
$'000 $'000 

ff during the year as uncollectible 
 

2007 2006 

   
At 1 January 2007 

ent recognised during the year 
 1,584  1,262 

Provision for impairm
Receivables written o

 500 
 (292) 

 714 
 (91) 

Unused amount reversed  (10)  (301) 
  1,782  1,584 

T
st

he creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in 'Impairment of assets' in the income 
atement.  Amounts charged to the provision account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering 

additional cash. 

 receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due.  Based on credit 
history of these other classes, it is expected that these amounts wil en due 

(b) Foreign exchange and interest rate risk 

A summarised analysis of the sensitivity of trade and other receivables to foreign e ange and inte st rate risk can be 

The other classes within trade and other
l be received wh

xch re
found in Note 47. 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

   
Australian Dollars  39,026  41,532   38,753  41,585 
U.A.E Dirhams  66  -   66  - 
GB Pounds  228  178   -  - 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
 

  

NZ Dollars  1  3   -  - 
US Dollars  215  130   -  35 
  39,536  41,843   38,819  41,620 

Current receivables  13,269  12,179   12,433  11,845 
on-current receivables  26,267  29,664 N   26,386  29,775 

 39,536   41,843   38,819  41,620 

A summarised analysis of the sensitivity of receivables to foreign exchange and interest rate risk can be found in note 47. 

(c) Fair value and credit risk 

Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying t is assumed to approxim r fair valu

3 Inventories 
 
 

 

 amoun ate thei e. 

 

2
Consolidated Parent 

2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

Current     
  Trading stock   

- at cost  1,753  2,011   1,604  1,838 
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 Consolidated Pa
2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 

 
ancial assets   

 10,174  6,000 
loating rate notes  - 

24 Other financial assets 
rent 

20 2007 06 

 
$'000 $'000 

Current    
Other current fin

ank bills 
  

B
F

  10,165  6,000 
 5,004   -  5,004 

Total current other financial assets  10,174  11,004   10,165  11,004 

 
   

Available for sale investments    
Investment in shares  832  780   80 
Investment in managed funds  29,853 

Non-current  
 

832  7
 -   853 29,  - 

Total available for sale  30,685  780   85 30,6  80 7

Held to matur
Term deposi

ity   
s  7,004 

  
t  -   7,004  - 

Total held to maturity  7,004  -   7,004  - 

Total non-current other financial assets  37,689  780   37,689  780 

Total other financial assets  47,863  11,784   47,854  11,784 

 

25 Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
 Consolidated 
 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 0 

Parent 
2007 

$'00
2006 

Land  10,590  -   10,590  - 
 

 

During the 2006 year the University decided to redevelop the Churchlands campus into residential blocks to be sold off in 6 
w been completed and all blocks are expected to be sold within the 

nted for as property plant and equipment. 

26 Other non-financial assets 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Current     
Accrued income  3,734  174   3,549  64 
Advances and prepayments  1,735 

stages. The redevelopment of stages 1 and 2 has no
next 12 months. The remaining stages are accou

 

 424   1,691  354 
Total current other non-financial assets  5,469  598   5,240  418 
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27 Property, plant and equipment 

Consolidated 
Work in 

progress Land Buildings 
Works 
of Art 

or 
cles 

L
im

ther
pme

and furnit Library 
g 

e nt Total 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Year ended 31 December 2006           
Opening net book amount  24,473  149,445  322,532  6,745  285    7,703  8,194  2,635  530,907  
Additions/transfers  44,642  -  40,444  90  26    1,964  2,652  657  90,489  
Disposals/transfers  (40,444)  -  -  -  (47)   -  (58)  -  (8)  (40,557)  
Accumulated depreciation on disposals  -  -  -  -  34   -  10  -  2  46  
Net foreign currency exchange difference  -  -  -  -  -    1  -  -  3  
Revaluation increments  -  64,015  41,764  1,988  -   797  -  -  -  110,564  
Depreciation  -  -  (9,397)  -  (107)   447)  (2,582)  (2,616)  (1,489)  (16,638)  
Adjustment to prior year costs  -  -  -  -  -    (6)  -  1  5  
Reclassifications in/(out)  - 

Mot
vehi

easeh
pro

ment
$'00

8,

2,
(

old 
ve-
s 
0 

895 
14 

O
equi

$

2 

10 

 
nt
ure

Computin
quipme

 -  -  -  -   -  3  -  (1)  2  
Carrying amount at end of year  28,671  213,460  395,343  8,823  191   271 11,  7,035  8,230  1,797  674,821  

At 31 December 2006         
- Cost  28,671  -  -  833   -  2 435  75,262  
- Valuation  -  213,460  395,  23  -   282  - 628,908  
Accumulated depreciation  - 

 
 
 

 
6  
- 

 - 
343 

2,477 
- 

10,84 12,
8,8 11,   

 -  -  -  (642)   (11)  15( ,442)  (2,616)  (10,638)  (29,349)  
Net book amount  28,671  213,460  395,343  8,823  191   271 11,  7,035  8,230  1,797  674,821  
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Consolida
W

pr Land Buildin
Works 
of Art h s 

ho
v nt

iture y
Computing 
equipment tal 

 

$'000 $'000 000 $' $'000 0  $'000 00 

Year ended cember 2007   
Opening ne unt  213,460  395,3 8,823 91  11,271 ,035  8,2 1,797  4,821  
Additions/tra rs   11,980  38,0 206  40  163 ,364  2,9 1,354  7,325  
Disposals/tr ers  (  (25,774)  -  8)  - (1,186)  -  (1,886)  (82,264)  
Accumulated preciation on disposals  - -  36  -  1,108  -  1,864  3,208  
Write-offs d g the year  - -  -  -  (31)  (2,616)  (60)  (2,707)  
Accumulated preciation on write-offs  - -  -  -  21  2,616  56  2,693  
Transfers to assets held for sale (10,590) -  -  -  -  -  -  (10,590)  
Depreciation  -  (10,18 -  (48)  (616)  (2,816)  (2,510)  (940)  (17,119)  
Reclassifications in/(out)  

ted

 31 

nsfe
ansf

de
urin

de

 

De
t book amo

ork in 
ogress 

  
28,671  
50,232 

53,130) 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 -  
 - 

- 

gs 
$'000 $'

43  
03  

-  
 -  
 -  
 -  
 -  

9)  

Motor 
icle
000 

1

(28
2

ve

    
 

Lea
im

se
pro

ments

ld 
e-
 

O
qu
d f

$

th
ip
urn
'00

7
2

er 
mee

an

 
  
  
 

Lib
$'

rar
000

 

 
30  
83  

To
$'0

67
10

 -  -  -  (42)  -  176  -  (134)  -  
Closing net book amount  25,773  189,076  423,157  9,029  89  10,818  6,671  8,703  2,051  675,367  

At 31 Dece     
- Cost  - 61 24,761    10,930  73,038  
- Valuati  189   433,3 9,029 - 11,4 -    -  642,897  
Accumula iation  ,189)  - 2 (6 18,090)  )    (40,568)  
Accumulate ent  

mbe

on 
de

d im

r 

ted pr
pa

200

ec
irm

7   
25,773 

-  
- 
- 

 
 -  

46  

 
 
 
 

 
  
  
)  

 
-  

46  
28)  

 - 
,076

 - 

3

(27

11,

2,5

213
-

10  (10 ( ( (8,879)
 -  -  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  

Net book am  ount 25,773  189  ,076  423,157  9,029  89  10,818  6,671  8,703  2,051  675,367  
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k in 
ress and ings

rks 
Art 

to
cles

old
v

n

her 
ent
tu rar

ing 
en otal 

 

0 000 0 000 00 00  00 0 000 

006           
 

fers 
sals 

Parent 
Wor

prog
'00

L   Build
 '00

 
Wo
of 

Mo
vehi

'0

r 
 

Leaseh
impro

me
'

 
e-

ts 

Ot
equipm

and furni
0 '000

re Lib
'0

y 
Comput
equipm

 '00
t T

$ $' $ $' $ $ $ $ $ $'

Year ended 31 December 2
ount Opening net book am

fers 
 24,473  149,445  322,532  6,745  276  8,871  7,658  8,194  2,581  530,775 

Additions/trans  44,642  -  40,444  90  26  -  1,959  2,652  613  90,426  
  Disposals/trans  (40,444)  -  -  -  (47)  -  (58)  -  (8)  (40,557)

Accumulated depreciation on dispo  -  -  -  -  34  -  10  -  2  46  
Revaluation increments  -  64,015  41,764  1,988  -  2,797  -  -  -  110,564  
Depreciation  -  -  (9,397)  -  (103)  (444)  (2,570)  (2,616)  (1,454)  (16,584)  
Carrying amount at end of year  28,671  213,460  395,343  8,823  186  11,224  6,999  8,230  1,734  674,670  

06 

- Valuation  -  213,460  395,343  8,823  -  11,224  -  -  -  628,850  
ciation  - 

At 31 December 20           
  - Cost  28,671  -  -  -  806  -  22,377  10,846  12,188  74,888

Accumulated depre  -  -  -  (620)  -  (15,378)  (2,616)  (10,454)  (29,068)  
Net book amount  28,671  213,460  395,343  8,823  186  11,224  6,999  8,230  1,734  674,670  
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le 

Parent 
Work in 

progress Land Buildings 
Works 
of Art 

Motor 
vehicles 

Leasehold 
improve-

ments 

Other 
equipment

and furniture Library 
Computing 
equipment Total 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Year ended 31 December 2007           
Opening net book amount  28,671  213,460  395,343  8,823  186  11,224  6,999  8,230  1,734  674,670  
Additions/transfers  50,232  11,980  38,003  206  38  164  2,363  2,983  1,348  107,317  
Disposals/transfers  (53,130)  (25,774)  -  -  (288)  -  (1,180)  -  (1,844)  (82,216)  
Accumulated depreciation on disposals  -  -  -  -  236  -  1,103  -  1,822  3,161  
Write-offs during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  (31)  (2,616)  (60)  (2,707)  
Accumulated depreciation on write-offs  -  -  -  -  -  -  21  2,616  56  2,693  
Depreciation 

ssets held for sa
 -  -  (10,189)  -  (46)  (612)  (2,810)  (2,510)  (924)  (17,091)  

Transfers to a  -  (10,590)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (10,590)  
Reclassifications in/(out)  -  -  -  -  (42)  -  176  -  (134)  -  
Carrying amount at end of year  25,773  189,076  423,157  9,029  84  10,776  6,641  8,703  1,998  675,237  

At 31 December 2007           
- Cost  25,773  -  -  -  333  -  24,666  11,213  10,718  72,703  
- Valuation  -  189,076  433,346  9,029  -  11,388  -  -  -  642,839  
Accumulated depreciation  -  -  (10,189)  -  (249)  (612)  (18,025)  (2,510)  (8,720)  (40,305)  
Net book amount  25,773  189,076  423,157  9,029  84  10,776  6,641  8,703  1,998  675,237  

 

Land and buildings were revalued as at 31st December 2006 by an independent professional valuer. The fair value of all 
land and buildings has been determined by reference to recent market transactions. Refer to note 2(f) Property plant and 
equipment. During 2007, the fair valuee were assessed by an independant professional valuer nd it was established that 
there were no material changes in fair values during the year. 

The additions to land of $11,980,000 comprise of redevelopment expenses for conversion of the land into residential blocks 
on the Churchlands property. 



Edith Cowan University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

31 December 2007 
(continued) 

 

Section 5 - ECU Financial Statements 
123 

28 Investment prope
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

At fair value    
Opening balanc anu 12,493  10,561   12,493  10,561 
Accumulated de ion a - 

-36- 

rty 

 
 
 

e a
pre

t 1 J
ciat

ary 
t 1 January  -   -  - 

Carrying value as at 1 Janu 12,493  10,561   12,493  10,561 

Gain on reval - 

ary  

uation   1,932   -  1,932 
 12,493   12,493   12,493  12,493 

Closing bala 31 D 12,493  12,493   12,493  12,493 
Accumulated iation - 

nce as a
 deprec

t ece
t 3

mb
1 D

er
e

 
cem

 
  a ber  -   -  - 

Carrying v 12,493 alue as at 31 December   12,493   12,493  12,493 

29 Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Deferred tax assets    
Deferred tax assets 303 

 
  103   -  - 

Total deferre ets 303 d tax ass   103   -  - 

 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Deferred tax as
   

The balance comprises te s 
attributable to: 

   
Amounts recogn  pro    
Doubtful debts -  -   -  - 
Employee benefi 58  48   -  - 
Provision for  on c 25  3   -  - 
Accrued expe 26  8   -  - 
Deposits 52  -   -  - 
Other 13  -   -  - 
Tax losses *  

set 
 

mp

fit o

or

r lo

ar

ss

y d

 

ifference

 
 
 

ised in

ts 
emplo
nses 

 
 
 
 
 
 129

yee osts 

 44   -  - 
Net deferred tax assets  303  103   -  - 

All deferred tax asset movements have been credited directly to the income statement. 
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 solidated Parent 
 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Deferred tax liabilities     
Deferred ta ty  118 

 tax a ts and liabilities (con ed) 

-37- 

Con
2
$'

00
00

7 
0 

x liabili  26   -  - 
Total deferred tax liabilitie  8 s 11  26   -  - 

 solidated Parent 
 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 

The balan s te
attributab

    
Amounts recogn  in o    
Accounts r  73  22 -  - 
Accelerate wan  4  4 -  - 
Accrued in  24  - -  - 
Other  16  - -  - 
Depreciation and amortis

C
00
00

on
7 
0 

2
$'

ce comp
le to: 

ised

rise mp

rati

or

ng

ar

 re

y d

su

iff

lt 

erences 

pe  
eceivable 
d capital
come 

   
  
  
  

 allo ce 

on ati  1  -   -  - 
Net deferred tax ilities  118  liab  26   -  - 

All deferred ta  mov  dire come statement. 

30 Intangib
 solida Parent 

 2007 2006 

 

$'000 $'000 

Callista student record sy     
At cost  7,149  7,149  7,149 
Accumulated amortisatio 9) 

x liability ements have been charged ctly to the in

le assets 
C

 
00

on

7 

ted 

2006 
$'000 

7,149

2
$'00

(7

0 

,14

stem 
   

n   (4,315)   (7,149)  (4,315) 
Net book amount  -  2,834   -  2,834 

Reconciliation     
Opening net book amount  4  4,752 2,834  4,752 
Adjustments -  - -  - 
Amortisation e  4) 

2,83    
   

expens (2,83  (1,918)   (2,834)  (1,918) 
Closing net b nt  - ook amou  2,834   -  2,834 

     
 
The amortization of Callista has been accelerated following revision to its useful life. Refer

    
 note 3(g). 
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31 Payables 
Consolidated Parent  

2007 2006 2007  2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

 
Current     
Trade payables  4,762  6,526   4,184  6,139 
CGS liability to Australian Government  5,248  8,369   5,248  8,369 
OS-HELP liability to Australian G  3  12   3  12 
Total current payables  10,013  14,907   9,435  14,520 

Non-current 
DETWA loan  427 

    
 340   -  - 

Total non-current payables  427  340   -  - 

Total trade and other payables  10,440  15,247   9,435  14,520 

The fair value of trade and other payables is equal to their carrying value. 

The carrying amounts of the University's and parent entity's trade a s are denominated in the following 
currencies: 

olidate Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

 

Australian Dollars  14,796   9,4 14,495 
GB Pounds  88   - - 
NZ Dollar  3  13   -  - 
US Dollar  23 

Foreign currency risk 

nd other payable

 
 

Cons d 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

     
10,223  

191  
33  

 2

 150   2  25 
  10,440  15,247   9,435  14,520 

For an analysis of the sensitivity of trade and other payabl  to foreign curr y risk refer to note 47. es enc
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32  Borrowings 
 nsolidate Parent 

2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

WA Treasury Corporation  10,187 

Co d 
 

Current - unsecured     
 181   10,187  181 

Total current borrowings  10,187  181   10,187  181 

Non-current- unsecured     
WA Treasury Corporation  61,102  36,639   61,102  36,639 

Total non-current borrowings  61,102  36,639   61,102  36,639 

Total borrowings 71,289   36,820   71,289  36,820 

(a) Financing arrangements 

ss was available at balance date to the 

 
  

 
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Credit standby arrangements      
Total facilities      

n   81,639  81,820   81,639  81,820 
  19,10

Unrestricted acce following lines of credit: 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

WA Treasury Corporatio
Bank facilities 0  19,250   19,100  19,250 

Total facilities   100,739  101,070   100,739  101,070 

Used at balance date      
WA Treasury Corporation   71,289  36,820   71,289  36,820 
Bank facility    445  4    445  4 

 71,734  36,824 Total used at balance date    71,734  36,824 

Unused at balance
WA Treasury Co

 date  
rporation  

acceptance facility   18,655 

 
 10,350 

 
 45,000  

 
 10,350 

 
 45,000 

Unsecured bill  19,246   18,655  19,246 
Total unused at balance date  29,005   64,246   29,005  64,246 

 
  

 
Notes 

ank loan facilities  
,739 101,070 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000 

B     
 Total facilities   100,739  101,070   100

Used at balance date   71,734  36,824   71,734  36,824 
Unused at balance date   29,005  64,246   29,005  64,246 

The bank loan facilities comprise of loans from WA Treasury Corporation which may be drawn at any time and may be 
terminated by any party providing at least 30 days written notice. The WA Treasury Corporation loans may be drawn at any 
time in Australian dollars and have an average maturity of 4.4 years (2006 - 3.9 years). 

The average current interest rate on the used balance of the WA Treasury Corporation loan facility is 6.42% (2006 – 5.83%).

Used bank facilities of $0.445m (2006 - $0.004m) represent credit card outstandings as at year end which are included in 
trade creditors. 
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The carrying amounts and fair values of borrowings at balance d

 2007 2006 

ated 
Carrying 
amount Fair value arrying amoun Fair value 

 

 
WA Treasury Corporation  71,289 

(b) Fair value 

ate are: 

Consolid C t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

On-balance sheet (i)     
    Non-traded financial liabilities

 71,289   36,820  36,820 
 71,289  71,289    36,820  36,820 

 
Carrying 

 
   

ilities     

2007 2006 

Parent amount 
$'000 

Fair value 
$'000 

Carrying amount
$'000 

Fair value 
$'000 

On-balance sheet (i)  
Non-traded financial liab
WA Treasury Corporation  71,289  71,289   36,820  36,820 
  71,289  71,289   36,820  36,820 

Other than those classes of borrowings denoted as ''traded'', none e readily traded on o  markets in 
standardised form. 

(i) On balance sheet 

he fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying ount, as the im unting is not signific t.  

posures 

of the University's and parent entity's borro
t the balance dates are as follows: 

 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

     
6 months or less  596  657   596  657 
6 - 12 months  10,101  108   10,101  108 
1 - 5 years  20,680  30,736   20,680  30,736 
Over 5 years  39,912 

of the classes ar rganised

T am pact of disco an

(c) Risk ex

The exposure wings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates 
a

 

 5,319   39,912  5,319 
  71,289  36,820   71,289  36,820 

These borrowings are classified as follows: 
Current borrowings  10,187  181   10,187  181 
Non-current borrowings  61,102  36,639   61,102  36,639 
  71,289  36,820   71,289  36,820 

The carrying amounts of the University's borrowings are denominated in Australian Dollars 

For an analysis of the sensitivity of borrowings to interest rate risk refer to note 47. 
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pected to be settled within 12 
m

Annual leave  1,909  1,844   1,791  1,748 
1,291 1,025 1,291 1,025 

le to GESB 

le to LSL, AL and TOIL 
me Tax 

Employee on-costs  888 

33  Provisions 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Current provisions ex
onths     
Employee benefits     

Long service leave       
Superannuation attributab  3,550  3,128   3,550  3,128 
TOIL 
Staff bonuses 

 75 
 635 

 89  
 631  

 75 
 635 

 89 
 631 

 2,118 
 29 

 1,759  
 78  

 2,118 
 - 

 1,759 
 - 

Superannuation attributab
Provision for Inco

 605   888  605 
Subtotal  10,495  9,159   10,348  8,985 

Current provisions expected to be settled after more 
than 12 months*     

Employee benefits     
Annual Leave   1,373  1,306   1,373  1,306 
Long service leave   8,236  6,744   8,236  6,744 

Subtotal  9,609  8,050   9,609  8,050 

 20,104  17,209   19,957  17,035 Total current provisions 

Non-current 
Employee be

 
  

  
  

 
nefits 

     
ble to GESB 
 to LSL 

 4,038
 

 5,010
 

 3,963
  

 4,946
 

Long service leave  
Superannuation at 26,267 

 656 
29,664 

 846  
26,267 

 656 
29,664 

 846 
tributa

Superannuation attributable
 276  314   276  314 
 177  (66)  

Employee on-costs 
Other  177  (66) 

Total non-current provisions  31,414  35,768   31,339  35,704 

Total provisions  51,518  52,977   51,296  52,739 

*Current provisions expected to be settled after more han
however it is the view of the management that they are expected to be settl 2 months

 

t  12 months represents a current obligation of the University, 
ed after more than 1 . 
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visions 

nefits, are set out below: 

  

 2007 

Employee 

2006 

 

$'000 $'000 

urrent 
Carrying amount at start of year  605  674  
Net additional provisions recognised  28

(a) Movements in pro

Movements in provision during the financial year, other than employee be

 

Employee 
on-costs 

 
on-costs 

 

Consolidated   
C   

3  (69)  
Carrying amount at end of year  888  605  

 
  

314 368 
ed 

 

Non-current   
Carrying amount at start of year 

cognis
   

Net additional provisions re  (38)  (54)  
Carrying amount at end of year  276  314  

 

 

  
  

  
  

Parent 
Current 
Carrying amount at start of year  605  674  
Net additional provisions recognised  283  (69)  

 605 Carrying amount at end of year  888  

 

 314  368  
et additional provisions recognised  (38) 

  
Non-current   
Carrying amount at start of year 

 (54) N  
Carrying amount at end of year  276  314  

  
     

 
 

rrent liabilities 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
inancial assistance and fees received in advance 

Accrued expenses  11,381 

 
 
 

    

34 Other cu

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

F  9,315  14,587   9,060  14,492 
 13,614   11,215  13,457 

Total other current liabilities  20,696  28,201   20,275  27,949 
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d retained surplus 

P ipment revaluation reserve 
Inve erve 
Fore

35  Reserves an
 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

(a) Reserves 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 roperty plant and equ 327,133 333,072 

 -  
327,133 333,072 

 - stments revaluation res  388  388 
ign currency translation reserve  17  19   -  - 

 327,538  333,091   327,521  333,072  

M

P ipment revaluation reserve 
ce 1 January 

Land   -  64,015   -  64,015 
 -  41,764   -  41,764 

- 2,797 - 2,797 
- 1,988 - 1,988 

d earnings on disposal of property, 

fers 
arnings 

ovements: 
    

roperty plant and equ     
Balan  333,072  222,508   333,072  222,508 

Buildings 
Leasehold properties      
Works of art 
T ne

     
ransfer to retai

plant and equipment 
tments to prior year 

 -  -   -  - 
Adjus
Trans

 - 
 (5,939) 

 -  
 -  

 - 
 (5,939) 

 - 
 - 

Transfer to retained e  -  -   -  - 
Balance 31 December  327,133  333,072   327,133  333,072 

Investments revaluation res
Balance 1 January 

erve     
 - 
 (192) 

 - 
 -  

  - 
 (192) 

 - 
 - Gain/(loss) on revaluation 

Transfers  580  -   580  - 
Balance 31 December  388  -   388  - 

Foreign currency translation r
Balance 1 January 

eserve 

ation differences arising during the 

 
 19  

 
(38) 

 
  -  

 
- 

Currency transl
year  (2)  57   -  - 
Balance 31 December  17  19   -  - 

(b) Retained surplus 

Movements in retained surplus were as follows: 

Retained surplus at the beginning of the year  297,883  286,758   297,359  286,559 
Net operating result attributable to the parent entity  20,325  11,119   20,093  10,800 
Transfer to/from reserves*  5,359  -   5,359  - 
Adjustment to prior year operating result (subsidiary)  -  6   -  - 
Retained surplus at 31 December  323,567  297,883   322,811  297,359 
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ves 

s on the revaluation of 
non-current assets, as described in note 3(f).  The balanc standing to the redit of the reserve may be used to satisfy the 
distribution of bonus shares to shareholders and is only avai paym ends in limited circumstances 
as permitted by law. 

i) Investments revaluation reserve 
hanges in the fair value and exchange differences arising on tr n of investments, such as equities, classified as 

available-for-sale financial assets, are taken to the available-for vestments revaluation reserve, as described in note 
3(p).  Amounts are recognised in profit and loss when the associated assets are sold or impaired. 

ency translation reserve 
ranslation of the foreign iary are taken to the 

s described in note oss when the net 

*Transfer from revaluation reserve of $5,359,000 represents realisation of revaluation surplus on the lots sold from the 
Churchlands development. 

 Parent 
 2006 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

ed cash   
ndation 4,448 

(c) Nature and purpose of reser

(i) Reserves 
The property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrement

e  c
lable for the 

anslatio

ent of cash divid

(i
C

-sale in

(iii) Foreign curr
Exchange differences arising on t  controlled branches of the University's subsid
foreign currency translation reserve, a  3(t).  The reserve is recognised in profit and l
investment is disposed of. 

36 Restricted cash 
Conso

2007 
lidated 

2006 2007 

 
Restrict   
ECU Fou   4,017   4,448  4,017 

The purpose of the ECU Foundation i
rch pu

s to hold funds rece e appropriated for a 
rposes ranging from cture programs. The 

id and promote excellenc eking, receiving and 
administering private gifts for the benefit of the University and its community.  

ived from external sources and these funds ar
variety of educational and resea
Foundation was established to a

 scholarships, re
e in educational a

search, prizes and special le
nd research activities by se
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 Accountable Authority and Senior Officers  

(a) Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authori

Names of Persons who were members of the Accountable ity 

 For the purposes of the Financial Management Act, the University Council, is the Accountable Authority of the University. 

re: 

yrs end 31/12/10
y O. Cox (Vice-Chancellor) 

Mr Stephen Abbott (Pro-Chancellor) (term 3yrs end 29/8/08, external appt) 
llantyne (term ended 24/6/07) 
erg (term ended 19/9/07) 

pt) 
Pro rs end 30/9/09, academic staff el
Ms Karen McDonald (term 3yrs end 6/12/10, external app
Mr Kempton Cowan (term 3yrs end 19/12/09, external ap
Mrs term 3yrs end 21/12/08, externa
Mrs (resigned Feb 07) 
Ms  
Dr 3yrs end 29/8/08, ministerial app
Jus yrs end 17/8/08, co-option 
Prof Arshad Omari (resigned Sep 07) 
Ms ay 07) 
Mr /10/07) 
Mr James Pollard (term ended 4/10/07) 

 30/9/09, academic staff election) 
30/9/09, general staff el

Ms /10/08, enrolled students e
Ms  17/10/08, enrolled studen
Mr yrs end 19/9/10, Alumni electi
Mr 3yrs end 11/9/10, co-option ap

8) directors were: 
EC
Mr 
Mr Bruce W
Mr  Jan 07) 
Prof Patrick Garnett (appointed Jan 07) 

er (resigned Jul 07) 

ppointed by resolution of the members of the Accountable Authority 
(Un

37 Remuneration of Members of the

ty 

Author

 

The University’s Council members during 2007 we
 

on. Hendy Cowan (Chancellor) (term 3H
Prof Kerr

) 

Ms Jennifer Ba
Mr Serge Walb
Mr Neil Douglas (term ended 17/3/09, co option ap

f Ron Oliver (term 3y ection) 
t) 
pt) 

 Helen Charlesworth ( l appt) 
 Carol Devitt 

 Leslie Chalmers (term 3yrs end 26/4/08, external appt)
Norman Ashton (term t) 
tice Rene Le Miere (term 3 appt) 

 Marilyn Beresford (resigned M
Jerry Koh (term ended 4

Dr Alan Needham (term 2yrs end
Ms  2yrs end Nerissa Eaton (term ection) 

 Diana Tan (term 1yr end 17
ire (term 1yr end

lection) 
 Natalie Mo ts election) 
Richard Cairnes (term 3
Simon Holthouse (term 

on) 
pt) 

 
The controlled entity’s (refer to note 3

U Resources for Learning Ltd. 
Geoffrey Sherwin (Chairman) 

ilson 
Greg Robson (appointed

Mr Stephen Kenneth Proct
 
 
All directors of ECU Resources for Learning are a

iversity Council). 
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itions held of Persons who were Senior Officers of the University:  

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research & Operations) 
ellor (Students & Teaching) [resigned] 

genous) 
y of B&L and Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Engagement) 

irector (Governance & Planning) 

rs of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers 

 Authority and Senior Officers, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation and 
cial year, fall within the following bands: 

 
 
Remuneration of Members of the Accountable 
Authority     

 18 24  18  21 
0 

$20,001 to $30,000 

(b) Names and Pos

The University’s Senior Officers during 2007 were:  

Prof Kerry O. Cox, Vice-Chancellor 
Prof Patrick Garnett, 
Prof John Wood, Deputy Vice-Chanc
Prof Arshad Omari, Deputy Vice-Chancellor  
Prof Anthony Watson, Executive Dean, Faculty of CHS and Pro-Vice-Chancellor (ICT & Library) 
Prof Robyn Quin, Executive Dean, Faculty of EA [resigned] 
Prof Brenda Cherednichenko, Executive Dean, Faculty of EA and Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Equity & Indi
Prof Robert Harvey, Executive Dean, Facult
Prof Andrew Taggart, Executive Dean, Faculty of RPS 
Mr Warren Snell, Vice-President (Resources) and Chief Financial Officer  
Dr Susan King, Executive D
Mr Ross Bindon, Chief Executive Officer (Subsidiary) 

(c) Remuneration of Membe

The number of members of the Accountable
other benefits for the finan

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2006 2007 

    Nil to $10,000 
 1

 1 
  2   -  

 -   - 
 - $10,001 to $20,00

 1  
$80,001 to $90,000  1  -   1   - 
$90,001 to $100,000  1  -   1   - 
$100,001 to $110,000  1  1 

1   -   1 
$140,001 to $150,000  1  -   -   - 
$170,001 to $180,000  -  1   -   1 
$180,001 to $190,000  1  -   -   - 
$190,001 to $200,000  1  -   1   - 
$210,001 to $220,000  1  -   1   - 
$220,001 to $230,000  -  1   -   - 
$340,001 to $350,000  1  -   -   - 
$370,001 to $380,000  -  1   -   1 
$460,001 to $470,000  1 

  1   1 
$130,001 to $140,000  -  

 -   1   - 
Aggregate remuneration of members of the 
Accountable Authority ('000) $ 1,882 $ 1,047  $ 1,170  $ 776 
     

Council Members include University employees who may be ex-officio Members or elected staff Members. No council 
member has received any remuneration in his/her capacity as a council member. 

18 members of the Accountable Authority receive no remuneration, fees, superannuation or benefits. 

No members of the accountable authority are members of the Pension Scheme. 
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uded in the 
ior officers below 

 

0 to $10,000  1  -   1   - 
01 to $20,000  1  -   1   - 

 -  1   -   1 
140,001 to $150,000  2  1   1   - 

-  1   -   1 
 1  1   1   1 

-   1   1 
 -  3   -   3 
 1  -   1   - 
 1  -   1   - 

-  2   -   2 
1  -   1   - 
- 

Council Members may also be senior officers of the University. Where this is the case they have been incl
remuneration above but excluded from the remuneration band of the sen

 

Remuneration of senior officers     
$
$10,0
$90,001 to $100,000 
$
$170,001 to $180,000  
$200,001 to $210,000 
$220,001 to $230,000  1  
$240,001 to $250,000 
$250,001 to $260,000 
$260,001 to $270,000 
$270,001 to $280,000  
$290,001 to $300,000  
$340,001 to $350,000   1   1   1 
 
Aggregate remuneration of senior officers ('000) $ 1,557 $ 2,271  $ 1,757  $ 2,327 
 

2 members of the accountable authority are members of the Pe

 

38 Remuneration of auditors 
Remuneration to the Auditor General for the financial year is as foll

 

Assurance service

Audit services 
Auditing the accounts, financial statements a
performance indicators 

 nsion Scheme. 

ows 

 Consolidated Parent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$ $ $ $ 

s 
    
    

nd 
 244  189   179   162 

 

 

The consolidated amounts for remuneration of auditors are indicative only. 
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39 Contingencies 

ed in the financial statements, the University has the following contingent liability: 

was handed down for on 19 September 
which was the subject of the claim. The existence of these Native Title 

hese have yet 
d accordingly, it is not 

ainties relating to the amount or timing of any 
enses that may be incurred in the remediation of 
agement Account to undertake further investigative 

k

t insurance is in place to cover the potential liability 
inst these claims.  

ments 

ommitments, being contracted capit
e amounts for infrastructure, are pa

 
 

 
ipment 

 not later than five years 

Contingent liabilities 

In addition to the liabilities incorporat

Native title claims 
Native title claims have been made on the University land for which judgement 
2006. It was held that Native Title exists in the area 
rights is currently being appealed. 

Contaminated sites 
During the year ECU reported one known contaminated site and one suspected contaminated sites to DEC.  T
to be classified.  ECU is currently unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process, an
practicable to estimate the potential financial effect or to identify the uncert
outflows.  Whilst there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future exp
these sites, ECU may apply for funding from the Contaminated Sites Man
work or to meet remediation costs that may be required. 

Wor ers compensation claims 

ECU may have some potential liability towards workers compensation claims. The process of defending the claims are still 
at an early stage, however the claims are not material and sufficien
aga

40 Commitments 

(a) Capital commit

Capital expenditure c al expenditure additional to amounts reported in the financial 
statements and includ yable as follows: 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

    Property, plant and equ
  Payable:   
 14,697 Within one year  2,957   14,697  2,957 

Later than one year but  -  78,209   -  78,209 
Later than five years  -  -   -  - 
  14,697  81,166   14,697  81,166 

(b) Lease commitments : The University as lessee 

(i) Operating leases 

 Parent 
 6 2007 2006 

 
'000 $'000 $'000 

Within one year  465  592   398  519 
Later than one year but not later than five years  384  508   148  222 
Later than five years  154 

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as 
follows: 

Consolidated 
2007 200
$'000 $

 211   -  - 
Total operating lease commitments  1,003  1,311   546  741 

Representing:     
Cancellable operating lease  1,003  1,311   546  741 
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ommitments in relation to purchase orders, are payable as follows: 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

 

(c) Other expenditure commitments 

C

 
 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Within 1 year  5,919  4,000   5,919  4,000 

 

41 Related parties 
 
 

 

oans to related parties     
-   125  125 

Amortisation of loan advanced to subsidiary  - 

Consolidated Parent 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

$ $ $ $ 

 
L

    

Loans advanced to subsidiary  -  
 -   (6)  (14) 

Net loan to related parties  -  -   119  111 

 

42 Subsidiaries 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabili of the following subsi  
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 3(b): 

    Equity hold  
Country of 

incorporation Class of shares 2007 2006 

E.C ng Ltd (ECURL)* 

Australian pub

     
* T e activities of ECURL is to develop and deliver professional development resources for teaching professions.  

The on Street, Churchlands, WA, 6018  

ties and results diaries in

ing

Name of entity 

.U. Resources for Learni Australia 

lic 
company limited

guarantee 
 by 

 100%  100% 

he principl

 address of ECURL is Edith Cowan University, Churchlands Campus, Pears
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f operating result after income tax to net cash flows from operating 
activities 

 Consolidated Parent 
  

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

 

nse  19,954  18,553   19,925   18,499 
tment property  -  (1,932)   -   (1,932) 

3) 
 

 33  (28)   33   (28) 
ss/(gain)  (2) 

43 Reconciliation o

2007 2006 2007 2006

Operating result for the period  20,325  11,119   20,093   10,800
Non-cash items:     
Depreciation and amortisation expe
Revaluation of inves
Doubtful debts and bad debts written off  503  716   500   716 
Provision for employee benefits  (1,448)  (3,423)   (1,481)   (3,420) 
(Increase)/ decrease in fair value of investments  180  (53)   180   (5
(Profit)/loss on sale of assets  (10,701)  (40)   (10,702)   (40)
Net loss on asset write-offs  14  -   14   - 
Prepayment of withholding tax to overseas authority 
Unrealised foreign exchange lo  26   -   - 
Subtotal  28,858  24,938   28,562   24,542 

 
471 

 in tax assets  (200)   10   -  - 
(Increase) / decrease in advances and prepayments  (1,313)   621   (1,338)  633 

 in inventories  258   (113)   234  (58) 
) in accounts payable  (5,705)   6,357   (5,776)  6,451 

Increase / (decrease) increase in fees received in 
 (5,272)   4,460   (5,433)  4,362 

 
- 

   406  92 
Subtotal of change in operating assets and liabilities, net 
of effects from purchases and sale of discontinued 
operation  (12,352) 

Change in assets and liabilities     
(Increase) / decrease in accrued income  (639)   49   (565)  113
(Increase) / decrease in accounts receivable  2,281   2,582   2,592  2,
(Increase) / decrease

(Increase) / decrease
Increase / (decrease

advance 
Increase / (decrease) in accrued expenses  (2,231)   4,635   (2,239)  4,831

Increase / (decrease) in tax liabilities  44   97   -  
(Increase) / decrease in GST recoverable/payable  425   92

  18,790   (12,119)  18,895 

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 16,506   43,728   16,443   43,437 

Reconciliation of operating activities 

ow from operating activities 

    
Cashflow from operating activities  16,506  43,728   16,443   43,437 
Net cash (outflow) infl  16,506  43,728   16,443   43,437 
Amount to be allocated  -  -   -   - 

 

44 Non-cash investing and financing activities 
During the financial year, there were no assets / liabilities transferre m other entities and therefore not 
reflected in the cash flow statement. 

 

 sheet
ce sheet date that a

notes of the University. 

d / assumed fro

45 Events occurring after the balance  date 
No events have occurred since balan re likely to have a material impact on the financial statements or 
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46 Explanatory statement 
cant variations between estimates and actual results for 2007 and between the 

 to be those greater than 10% 

Significant variances between actual and prior year actual rev ditures 

 
  
  Actual Actual Variance

Category Ref: $'000 $'000 $'000 %

Revenue      
ial assistance 1  (10,697)  (8,959)   (1,738)   19 

2  (2,913)  (2,644)   (269)   10 
Royalties, trademarks & licenses 3  (    (55 16 
Consultancy & contracts  4  76)    
Net gain on disposal of non-current asset 5  1)     1)   653 
Net gain on revaluation of investment property 6  -        (100) 

revenue and income 7      83 
 

Ex  
Re 8 
Impairme 9 
Finance costs 10  2,105  1,348   757   56 
Other expenses 11  74,755  66,457   8,298   12 

 

y 

This statement provides details of any signifi
actual results for 2006 and 2007. Significant variations are considered

enues and expen

 

 Par
2007 

ent 
2006 

State Government financ
Investment income 

3,930)  (3,379)
58)  

1)   
18   (5,1 (6,1

(40)
1,0 (16)

,(10,70 (10,66
1,932

26
(1,932)

Other  (3,410)  (1,867)  (1,543)  

penses     
pairs and maintenance 

nt of Assets 
 6,122 
 500  716

 4,897  
  

 1,225  
 (216)   

 25 
(30) 

Ref: Commentar
1 The increase in WA Government financial assistance is due to increased state and local government funded research 

grants.  
2 The increase in investment income relates to higher returns and growth in the investment portfolio. 
3 The increase in royalties, trademarks and licenc ditional licen  fees from

Technology (PIBT). 
es relates to ad se  Perth Institute of Business and 

4 Consultancy and contracts income reduces this weyear due to a lo r number of research contracts.  
5 The increase in net gain on the disposal of a portion of the Church t during 2007. lands redevelopmen
6 No gains were recognised in 2007 on revaluation nt pof investme roperty. 
7 The increase in other revenue from is due to increased donations, refunds and other miscellaneous items. 
8 The increase in repairs and maintenance is due to increased expenditure in the planned maintenance program and 

computer maintenance. 
9 Impairment of assets reduces this year due to lower bad and doubtful debts.  
10 Finance costs increase due to interest expenditure from further draw downs of the Western Australian Treasury 

Corporation (WATC) loan for the campus consolidation project. 
11 The increase in other expenses is due to increases in advertising, professional fees and consulting relating to research 

and other development projects as well as computer purchases as part of the standard operating environment roll out. 

138 



Edith Cowan University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

31 December 2007 
(continued) 

 
 46 Explanatory statement (continued) 

 

-52- 
Section 5 - ECU Financial Statements 

Sig ces between estimate and actual results for the financial year 

  Parent 
 2007 2007 
 

Ref: $'

 
1 

 2 
3 

rrent assets 4 
5 

6 
 

Ex  
Re 7 
Im
Fi
De on 10 

 

Ref: Commentar

nificant varian

 
 Estimate 

000 $'
Actual 

000 
Variance

$'000Category %

Revenue     
Investment income  (2,284)  (2,913)   629   (22) 
Royalties, trademarks & licenses  (2,617)  (3,930)   1,313   (33) 
Consultancy & contracts  (2,918)  (5,158)   2,240   (43) 
Net gain on disposal of non-cu  (16,927)  (10,701)   (6,226)   58 
Other revenue and income  (2,051)  (3,410)   1,359   (40) 
Deferred Government Superannuation 
Contributions  -  (2,975)   2,975   (100) 

penses     
pairs and maintenance  4,981  6,122   (1,141)   (19) 
pairment of Assets 8 

9 
 -  500   (500)   (100) 

nance costs  2,985  2,105   880   42 
ferred Employee Benefits for Superannuati  -  2,975   (2,975)   (100) 

y 
1 ernment financial aThe increase in WA Gov ssistance is due to increased state and local government funded research 

grants. 
2 The increase in royalties, trademarks and lice

Technology (PIBT). 
nces relates to additional license fees from Perth Institute of Business and 

3 The variance in consultancy and contract research is due to a higher than expected Non-Government Industry and 
Other Research funding. 

4 The forecasted sales for the Churchlands redevelopment did not all materialise. These will be recognised in 2008 upon 
e 1&2 lots.  sale of remaining stag

5 The increase in other revenue is due to increased donations, refunds and other miscellaneous items. 
6 The rev

expenditu
enue for Superannuation - Deferred 

re in employee benefits and on co
Government contrib
sts. 

utions is not budgeted for because there is an offsetting 

7 The variance in repairs & maintenance is due to higher than expected building and computer maintenance. 
8 The non-inclusion of a budget for bad and doubtful debts was due to the expectation that there would be no increase in 

value in 2007.   
9 The variance in finance costs is due to interest ex

Treasury Corporation (WATC) loan. 
penditure from delay in draw downs of the Western Australian 

10 As per (6) above, the expense for deferred employee benefits for superannuation is not budgeted for because th
an offsetting revenue 

ere is 
for the deferred government contribution. 
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ties:  

(i) Foreign exchange risk 
Foreign exchange risk arises due to overseas sources of income from the University’s international offshore teaching 
programs, foreign customers and foreign sourced supplies. The main c s that the University is exposed to are the US 
dollar, the UK pound, the Singapore dollar and the Eu o. The le xposure t es is n ered to be 

risk 
sity investment portfolios' are exposed to fluctu tions in the pric s of equity securities. The University's 

 minimisatio f p
endent expe o

 
 

The interest rate risk arises from market interest rates and their effects on cashflow associated with interest bearing assets. 
The University's investment policy provides strategies for minimising the impact from interest rate risk by following a strategy 

pricing of interest bearing assets to match the benchmarks set by the policy. 

ble interest rate be

ed sensitivity analysis  
e summarises the sensitivity of the u

foreign exchange risk and other price risk. 

olidated Interest rate risk Foreign exchange risk Other price risk 

47 Financial risk management 
The University and the subsidiary are exposed to the following financial risks as a result of their activi

(a) Market risk 

urrencie
r vel of e o these currenci ot consid

material. 

(ii) Price 
The Univer a e
investment policy provides strategies for

rs and regular indep
n o rice risk with the diversification of that risk through a number of 

investment manage rt m nitoring to ensure that there is no concentration of risk in any one 
area. 

(iii) Interest rate risk 

of regular re
 
The University has no significant varia aring liabilities. 

(iv) Summaris
The following tabl  Gro p’s financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk, 

Cons  
  -1% +1% -10% +10% -10% +10% 

31 December 2007 nt Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity 
Carrying 
amou

 
00 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'0

Financial assets              
Cash and cash 

 11,792  (118)   (118)   118  118  (79)  (79)  79  79   -   -  -  - equivalents 
Accounts receivable -  -  -   39,536  -   -   -  -  (51)  (51)  51  51   -   
AFS investments 9)  3,069  3,069  30,685  -   -   -  -  -  -  -  -   (3,069)   (3,06
Term deposits  -  -  17,178  (171)   (171)   171  171  -  -  -  -   -   - 
Financial liabilities               
Trade payables -  -  10,440  -   -   -  -  (22)  (22)  22  22   -   -  
Borrowings  71,289  713   713   (713)  (713)  -  -  -  -   -   -  -  - 
Total increase/ 
(decrease)   424   424   (424)  (424)  (152)  (152)  152  152   (3,069)   (3,069)  3,069  3,069 
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Parent  Interest rate risk Foreign exchange risk Other price risk 
  -1% +1% -10% +10% -10% +10% 

3 Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity 1 December 2007 
Carrying 
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Financial assets              
Cash and cash 
equivalents  10,790  (108)   (108)   108 108 -  - -   -  -  -    -   -   
Accounts receivable  38,819  -   -   - - (7)  7   -  -  -   (7)  7  -   
AFS investments  30,685  -   -   -  -  -  -  -   (3,069)   3,069  3,069  -    (3,069)
Term deposits- HTM  17,169  (171)   (171)   171  -  -  -  -   -   -  -  -  171 
Financial liabilities              
Trade payables  9,435  -   -   -  -  -  -  -  -   -   -  -  - 
Borrowings  71,289  713   713   (713)  (713)  -  -  -  -   -   -  -  - 
Total increase/ 
(decrease)   434   434   (434)  (434)  (7)  (7)  7  7   (3,069)   (3,069)  3,069  3,069 

 
(b) Credit risk 

The consolidated entity, while exposed to credit related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties does not 
counterparties to fail to meet their obligati

payment obligations as they fall due, including maturing borrowings. The university has put in place Treasury policies to 
e that 

dit

•   Daily liquidity r  and scenario analysis is conducted to quantify and meet the university’s payment obligations. 

•   A portfolio of hi
operations. 

 
 
 

(d) Fair value e

The fair value of f
market prices at t price used for financial assets held by the University is the 

rrent exit price. 

e fair value of f
University uses a ods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance 

te. 

The carrying valu e receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair 
ues due to the

expect any ons. 

(c) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk to the University of having insufficient capacity to fund increases in assets, or is unable to meet its 

ensur

•   Prudent liqui y management principles are followed and are compliant with regulations. 

eporting

gh quality liquid assets are held to protect against short term adverse conditions and to support day to day 

stimation 

inancial instruments traded in active markets (such as available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted 
he balance sheet date.  The quoted market 

cu

Th inancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The 
 variety of meth

da

e less impairment provision of trad
val  short-term nature of trade receivables. 
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 rent 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

 
 15 

48 Write-off's 
Consolidated Pa

Total write-offs as approved by the Accountable Authority 
during the financial year     
Student debt*  301  566   301   566 
Property plant and equipment  14  -   14   -
Inventory  5   15   5 
Total write-off's  330  571   330   571 

*The vast majority of the student debt write-off's are relating to international debts incurred prior to 2006, which has been 
identified as irrecoverable. 

 

49 Superannuation 

der Superannuation Law but, as a result of 
n  is a defined contribution plan under Accounting Standard AASB 119, the employer’s 

he 

 complies with the supe antee legislati ution of a mini  a 
maximum of 17% for all eligible sta
 

7 the assets  D a t e d 1 e o  ts
 

ne whic o al upon contin membership (or any factor other than leaving
rticipating in itution nd incl alue of CPI ind xed pensions b ing provided by he DBD.  

i
ers

 benefit 
mographic assumptions outlined in their report dated 13 July 2006 on the actuarial investigation of the DBD 

cember 2005. Th

 

      Vested benefits   Accrued benefits  
Gross of tax investment return   7.0% p.a.  8.3% p.a. 
Net of tax investment return   6.5% p.a .  7.8% p.a. 
Consumer price index    2.5% p.a .  2.5% p.a. 
Inflationary salary increases long term  3.5% p.a.  3.5% p.a. 
Inflationary salary increases next 3 years  5.0% p.a .  5.0% p.a. 

(a) Unisuper Limited 

Defined Benefit Division (DBD) / Investment Choice (ICP) 

The UniSuper Defined Benefit Division (DBD) is a defined benefit plan un
ame dments to Clause 34 of UniSuper,
contribution rate into the defined benefit division as at 31st December 2007 varied between 7% and 14% depending on t
level of contribution of member employees. 
 
The University rannuation guar on and makes contrib mum of 9% upto

ff. 

As at 30 June 200  of the BD in ggrega e were stimate  to be $ ,683 million in xcess f vested benefi .  

The vested benefits are be
pa

fits 
st

h are n
) a

t conditi
ude the v

on ued 
e

  the 
service of the 
 

e  t

As at 30 June 2007
ef

 the assets of the DBD in aggregate were estimated to be $2.587 million in excess of accrued benefits. 
The accrued ben

ion
ts have been calculated as the present value of expected future benefit payments to members and CPI 

indexed pens  which arise from membership of UniSuper up to the reporting date.  

 

The vested and accrued benefit liabilities were determined by the Fund’s actuary, Russell Employee Benefits, using 
the actuarial de
as at 31 De e financial assumptions used were:  
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(b) Government E s Superannuation Board 

fu G at p  S e

s  its staf g prof um employee who are mem rs of t nt Employe
the Employer, the University is required to contribute to the scheme as 

 paid

e m
s ba

ar the cost associat
e pension benefit

Gold State Super (transferred benefits) 

ion Scheme members have transferred to Gold State Super. In respect of their transferred benefit the 
t 

 

ssets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

 
 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

50 

ed past service cost  -  -   -  - 
(-) Unrecognised net (gain)/loss  - 

mployee

Unfunded Pension and Un nded old St e (Lum  sum) chem s 

The University ha
n Board (GES

in fin
B) Scheme. As 

ile a n ber of s be he Governme es 
Superannuatio
employees are  a pension or lump sum pay out. Consequently, an unfunded liability has been created. The 
Commonwealth Government is committed to reimbursing the University for payments actually made to the scheme for these 
emerging costs.   

Pension Scheme 

Pension Schem embers receive pension benefits on retirement, death or invalidity.  The Fund Share of the pension 
benefit, which i sed on the member’s contributions plus investment earnings, may be commuted to a lump sum benefit.  
The employers do not be
Share of th

ed 
 fully em

with in
ployer-f

dexation of an
inanced

y 
, cannot 

pension ar
be comm

ising from 
uted to

the F
 a lump 

und Sh
sum ben

are.  The State 
efit. , which is

Some former Pens
members receive a lump sum benefit at retirement, death or invalidity which is related to their salary during their employmen
and indexed during any deferral period after leaving public sector employment. 

Reconciliation of the a

Pension Scheme Gold State Super 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

     
Defined benefit obligation  28,509  30,742   1,308  2,0
(+) Fair value of assets  -  -   -  - 
Deficit/(surplus)  28,509  30,742   1,308  2,050 
(-) Unrecognis

 -   -  - 
Liability/(asset)  28,509  30,742   1,308  2,050 
 

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

ons are wholly unfunded, such that there are no Assets.  The employer contributes, as 

 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
ce at the beginning of the year  30,742  32,310   2,050  3,212 

- 
 

 -  -   -  - 
Actuarial (gains) and losses  (1,128)  (590)   16  157 
Benefits paid  (2,869)  (2,611)   (873)  (1,469) 
Past service cost  - 

These defined benefit obligati
required, to meet the benefits paid. 

Pension Scheme Gold State Super 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Balan
Current service cost  14  4   -  
Interest cost  1,750  1,629   115  150
Contributions by plan participants 

 -   -  - 
Balance of the defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the year  28,509  30,742   1,308  2,050 
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Pension Scheme 

 
Gold State Super 

200 06 2007 2006 

 
Reconciliation of the fair value of scheme assets:     

 -   -  - 
ssets - - - - 

 and (losses) 

ns by plan participants 

7 20 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Balance at the beginning of the year  - 
Expected return on plan a      
Actuarial gains  -  -   -  - 
Contributions by employers  2,869  2,611   873  1,469 
Contributio  -  -   -  - 
Benefits paid  (2,869)  (2,611)   (873)  (1,469) 
Balance of the fair value of scheme assets at the end 
of the year  -  -   -  - 

 Pension Scheme Gold State Super 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

     
Supperannuation expense/(income) recognised in the 

    
14  4   -  - 

1,750  1,629   115  150 

income statement 
Current service cost  
Interest cost  
Expected return on plan assets  -  - -   -  
Net actuarial losses (gains) recognised in year  (1,128)  (590)   16  157 
Total included in employee benefits expense  636  1,043   131  307 

S
 
There are no assets in the pension sch
H
•  No fair value of Scheme assets; 
• 
•  No assets used by the employer; 
•  No expected return of Scheme assets; 
• 
 
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: 

Pension Scheme 

cheme Assets 

eme or Gold State Super for current employees to support the transferred benefits.  
ence, there is  

 No asset allocation of Scheme assets; 

 No actual return on Scheme assets. 

 Gold State Super 

 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

 
%  5.98%   6.08%  5.98% 

xpected salary increase rates  4.50%  4.50%   4.50%  4.50% 
%  2.50% 

ent rates used (eg 
mes. 

     
Discount rate (active members)  6.08%  5.98%   6.08%  5.98%
Discount rate (pensioners)  6.08
E
Expected pension increase rates  2.50%  2.50%   2.50

The discount rate is based on e 10 year Government bond rate at the relevant date. The decrem th
mortality and retirement rates) are based on those used at the last actuarial valuation for the Sche
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Pension Pension Gold State Gold State 
Super 

 
6 

 
 

n     
d benefit plan obligation  28,509  30,742   1,308  2,050 

(c) Historic summary 

scheme 
 

2007 

scheme 
 

2006 

Super 
 

2007 200
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Historic informatio
Present value of define
Fair value of scheme assets  -  -   -  - 
(Surplus) / deficit in scheme  28,509  30,742   1,308  2,050 

Experience adjustments (gains)/loss- scheme assets  -  - 
53  223 

ng 

  -  - 
Experience adjustments (gains)/loss- scheme liabilities  790  874   

The experience adjustment for Scheme liabilities represents the actuarial loss (gain) due to a change in the liabilities arisi
from the Scheme's experience (eg membership movements, unit entitlements) and excludes the effect of the changes in 
assumptions (eg movements in the bond rate and changes in pensioner mortality assumptions). 
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50  t finan  

50.1  DEEWR - CGS and Ot

 
onw'lth Gra
Scheme 

I p Equ rt 
Pr

ability Support 
Programme 

p
o

Workplace 
Productivity 
Programme 

 2006 2007 07 2006  2007 2006 

 

$'000 $'00 0 $'00 $'000 00 $'000 0 $'000 '000 $'000 

        
Financial assistance received in CASH during 
the reporting period (total cash re from the 
Australian Government for the Pr mes)  85,063  90,2  905 392   42  46   1,232 352  1,235  
Net accrual adjustments  3,036 

Acquittal of Australian Governmen

ceived 
ogram

cial assistance 

nts ndigenous Sup ort 
Fund 

 2007 2006 
0 $'000 $'0 0 

   

20  986 

her DEEWR Grants 

mm

2007 

 Co ity S
ogr

0 

 217  

up
am

po
me 

2006 

Dis

20
$'0

 

Work
Pr

2007
$'00

 

 1,144

lace
gra

 

 R
mm

efo
e 

rm

2006 

 

$

 
 (3,313)  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  -  1,235  (1,235)  

Revenue for the period  88,099  86,9  905  217  392   42  46   1,232  1,587  -  

      
Surplus /  (deficit) from the previo  - 

07  986 

 

 1,144

  
 

    
us year  -  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total revenue including accrued  099  86,907  905  2  42  46 1 1,587  -  
Less expenses including accrued se 99) 

revenue
 expen

 
 

88,
88,0

 986 17  392   ,144  1,232  
s (  (86,907)  (905)  (986)  (217)  (392)   (42)  (46)  (1,144)  (1,232)  (1,587)  -  

Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting p - eriod   -  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  -  -  -  
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Capital Development 
Pool 

Superannuation 
Programme Total 

 2007 2006 2007 
$'000 $'000 $'000  $

    
Financial assistance received in CASH during 
the reporting period (total cash received from the 

 for the Programmes)  585  2,129  4,660  3,68  92,968   99,921  
- 

 

2007 
$'000 

2006 
$'000

2006 
'000 

 
   

Australian Government 1 
Net accrual adjustments   -  -  -  4,271   (4,548)  

 Revenue for the period 585  2,129  4

  

,660  3,681  97,239   95,373  

     
Surplus /  (deficit) from the previous year  -  -  -  -  -   -  

95,373  Total revenue including accrued revenue  585  2,129  4,660  3,681  97,239   
Less expenses including accrued expenses  (124)  (2,129)  (4,660)  (3,681)  (96,778)   (95,373)  
Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting period  461  -  -  -  461   -  
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50.2  Higher Educ n Progra

 

HEL

ment 
ts on FEE-HELP Total 

 20 2006 2007 2006 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

   
Financial assistance received in CASH during 
the reporting period (total cash rec
Australian Government for th og s)  48,093   5,694  52,765   57,225  
Net accrual adjustments  (2,716)

ent financial assista

mme

-61- 

ation Loa s 

 

Go
pa

HE
(A

ym

CS-
ustralian 
vern
en

P 

ly) 

20
$'000 

07

 

 06

   

 2007 
$'000 

eived from the 
rae Pr mme   51,531

 
  4,672

 (6,232)  1,278  (179)  (1,438)   (6,411)  
Revenue for the period    5,515  51,327   50,814  

     
Surplus /  (deficit) from the previo year  - 

45,377  45,299

 

  5,950

 
us  -  -  -  -   -  

Total revenue including accrued revenue    5,515  51,327   50,814  
Less expenses including accrued expenses  (45,377

45,377  45,299  5,950
)  (45,299)  (5,950)  (5,515)  (51,327)   (50,814)  

Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting p  - eriod  -  -  -  -   -  



Edith Cowan University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

31 December 2007 
(continued) 

 
 50 Acquittal of Australian Government financial assistance (continued) 
 

-62- 
Section 5 - ECU Financial Statements 
 

149 

50.3  Scholarships 

 
 Australian 

Postgraduate  Awards

International 
Postgraduate 

Research 
Scholarships 

Commonw'lth 
Education Cost 
Scholarships 

Commonw'
Accommoda

Scholarshi
digenous
Scholars Total 

 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2 007 2007 2006 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000 

            
Financial assistance received in CASH during 
the reporting period (total cash received from the 
Australian Government for the Programmes)  873  874  140  153  1,257  932   1,645  3 -  3,948   
Net accrual adjustments  - 

lth 
tion
ps 

006
'000

 

 
 

In

2
$'

 Staff 
hips 

2006 
$'000 

 

1,327  3   3,286
 -  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  -  -  -  

Revenue for the period  873  874  140  153  1,257  932   1,645  3 -   

           
Surplus /  (deficit) from the previous year  261 

1,327  3    3,948  3,286

  
 123  9  (2)  -  -   -  -  -  -  270  121  

Total revenue including accrued revenue  1,134  997  149  151  1,257  932   1,645  3 -   
Less expenses including accrued expenses  (739) 

1,327  3    4,218  3,407
 (736)  (121)  (142)  (1,257)  (932)   (1,645)  (1,327)  (33)  -  (3,795)  (3,137)  

Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting period  395  261  28  9  -  -   -  -  -  -  423  270  
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50.4  DEEWR Research 

 
 Institutional Grants 

Scheme 
Research Training 

Scheme 

Research 
Infrastructure Block 

Grants 

I ion 
e 
e 

mpl
As
Pr

em
si

og

en
sta
ra

tat
nc

mm

Australian Scheme for 
ducation 
itories 

Commerc at'n 
Training me 

 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2 006 2006 2007 06 

 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000 000 

Financial assistance received in CASH during 
the reporting period (total cash received from the 
Australian Government for the Programmes)  1,945  1,825  4,223  4,074  544  545   -  -  48  -  
Net accrual adjustments  - 

Higher E
Repos

2007 
$'000 

 98 

ialis
Sche

20
$'

007
'000

 
 

 44 

2
$'

 -  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  -  -  -  
Revenue for the period  1,945  1,825  4,223  4,074  544  545   44  -  98  -  48  -  

         
Surplus /  (deficit) from the previous year  - 

    
 -  -  -  -  -   -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total revenue including accrued revenue  1,945  1,825  4,223  4,074  544  545  98  -  -  
Less expenses including accrued expenses  (1,945) 

 44  -   48 
 (1,825)  (4,223)  (4,074)  (544)  (545)   (19)  -  (87)  -  -  -  

Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting period  -  -  -  -  -  -   25  -  11  -  48  -  
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 Total 

 

 
Financial assistance received in CASH during 
the reporting period (total cash received from the 
Australian Government for the Programmes) 2  
Net accrual adjustments - 

men

20

t f

07 

nc

20

ia

06

l a

 

ss

-64- 

$'000 $'000 

 
 

6,90 6,444 
 - 

Revenue for the period   6,902  6,444 

   
Surplus /  (deficit) from th ar - e previous ye   - 
Total revenue including a e   
Less expenses including accrued expenses ) 

ccrued revenu  
 

6
(6

,902
,818

6,444 
 (6,444) 

Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting period   84  - 



Edith Cowan University 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

31 December 2007 
(continued) 

 
 50 Acquittal of Australian Gov nt f  assistance (continued) 
 

-65- 
Section 5 - ECU Financial Statements 

152 

50.5  Austra rch Co ants

(a)  Discovery 

  Projects Total 

 2007 2006 

 

000 $'000 $'000 

    
Financial assistance  in CASH durin
the reporting period ved from
Australian Governm ammes 26 6  265  286 
Net accrual adjustm (69

er

un

n

ci

me

l Gr

in

 

ancial

lian Resea

2007 
$'

20
$'0

06 
00 

 
 received

 (total cas
ent for the
ents 

g 
 th

) 
h re
 P

cei
rogr

e 
 
 

5  
) 

28
 73  (69)  73 

Revenue for the period  196  359  196  359 

    
Surplus /  (deficit) fr year 13

 
7 om the previous   93  137  93 

Total revenue including accrued revenue 2  333  452 
Less expenses including accrued expenses (204

 333  45
 )  (315)  (204)  (315) 

Surplus /  (deficit) fo  12r reporting period  9  137  129  137 
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(b)  Linkages 

 ther Total 

 2007 2006 2007 2006 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

  
 received in CASH dur

d (total cash received fro
Australian Government for the Programmes)  371  639  371  639  
Net accrual adjustments  45 

 Linkage - O

 

 
ce

  
Financial assistan
the reporting perio

ing 
m the 

 26  45  26  
 416  665  416  665 Revenue for the period  

 
us year 

 
Surplus /  (deficit) from the previo

 
 

  
284  239  284  239  

Total revenue including accrued revenue  700  904  700  904  
Less expenses including accrued expenses  (490)  (620)  (490)  (620)  
Surplus /  (deficit) for reporting period  210  284  210  284  
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Key Performance Indicator Report Certification 
We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and 
appropriate for assisting users to assess Edith Cowan University’s performance, and fairly represent 
the performance of Edith Cowan University for the year ending 31 December 2007. 
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Key Performance Indicator Report 

Introduction 
In December 2006 Edith Cowan University’s Council endorsed a new strategic directions document: 
ngaging Minds; Engaging Communities.  Towards 2020.  The document recognises four strategic 

rities, which are: 

• Engaging and Serving Our Communities; 

• Providing a Supportive and Stimulating Learning Community; 

• Developing Research Focus, Depth and Impact; and 

• Building Organisation Sustainability. 

Through Engaging Minds; Engaging Communities.  Towards 2020, Edith Cowan University (ECU) has 
articulated a commitment to develop valued citizens for the benefit of Western Australia and 
beyond, through teaching and research inspired by means of engagement and valued partnerships.   

This Key Performance Indicator Report provides an opportunity to demonstrate ECU’s performance 
in terms of the strategic priorities of Providing a Supportive and Stimulating Learning Community 
and of Developing Research Focus, Depth and Impact.  These strategic priorities serve as outcomes 
for which Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been assigned.  The KPIs are consistent with those 
used elsewhere with the higher education sector and focus on the University’s core business 
(teaching, learning and research), and core stakeholders (students). 

Where possible, each KPI highlights ECU’s performance over the last three to four years and 
provides comparisons to the overall pe formance of higher education sector universities in Australia 
(“National average”) and to public universities in Western Australia (“State average”).  The KPIs 
may be either a Key Effectiveness Indicator or a Key Efficiency Indicator.   

 

Strategic Priority 2: Providing a Supportive and Stimulating Learning Community  
This outcome has the following Key Effectiveness Indicators: 

1. Retention  

2. Course Satisfaction 

3. Quality of Teaching  

4. Graduate Employment 

5. Share of First Preferences 

This outcome also has the following Key Efficiency Indicator: 

6. Teaching–Related Expenditure per Student Load  

Strategic Priority 3: Developing Research Focus, Depth and Impact 
This outcome has the following Key Effectiveness Indicator: 

7. Research Income 

This outcome also has the following Key Efficiency Indicators: 

8. Higher Degree Research Completions 

9. Research Publications  

 
A Note About Targets 
ECU’s Council reviewed and streamlined the University Key Performance Indicators Framework 
during 2007 and a process to establish targets for KPIs and performance indicators is under 
development for implementation in 2008.  As indicated above, where applicable, National and State 
averages have been used for comparison purposes. 

E
prio

r
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Providing a Supportive and Stimulating Learning Community 
CU seeks to improve the quality of its teaching and to optimise student load through attracting and 

retaining students.  The University seeks to be responsive to student and employer needs by 
providing relevant programs, taught in ways that engage its students and also seeks to enhance the 
overall “student experience” at ECU. 

E

Key Effectiveness Indicators 

1. Retention 

2. Course Satisfaction 

3. Quality of Teaching   

4. Graduate Employment 

5. Share of First Preferences 

Key Efficiency Indicator 

6. Teaching-Related Expenditure per Student Load  

 
1. Retention 
ECU seeks to provide a learning community which appropriately supports its diverse student cohort, 
identifies students “at risk”, provide a comprehensive orientation and transition program and an 
enhanced “first year at university” experience for all students.  Retention is an indication of the 
effectiveness of these strategies.   

Retention as a measure is here defined as commencing students who continue into the next year of 
study, taking into account deferrals and completions. 

   

Table 1 – Retention (Inverse Attrition) Commencing Bachelor Pass Students 

 Year of Commencement 

  2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

ECU 85.0% 85.4% 79.1% 79.3% 79.6% 

National Average     80.9% 

Retention is defined as the percentage 
of students who commence a Bachelor 
Pass course in a given year and either 
complete, defer or are still enrolled in 
the same or an alternative course one 
year later.  

 
There has been a slight increase in retention in the last two years, following a drop in 2004 below 
the retention levels of 2002 and 2003.  Student retention is still just below the National average.  
This may reflect students choosing employment in a robust economy, in preference to remaining in 
higher education.  The improving retention for 2004 to 2006 may reflect the positive impact of 
ECU’s retention strategies in recent years. 

 

 

2. Course Satisfaction 
In order to provide a stimulating learning community, ECU seeks to provide high quality learning 
experiences for its students.  Course Satisfaction is used to indicate how satisfied students are with 
the education and services provided, given their expectations and experience of their course. 

Course Satisfaction is measured through the Course Experience Questionnaire (CEQ), a national 
survey of all students completing degrees, conducted approximately six months after their 
completion.   
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For the 2005 CEQ, 3663 graduates were surveyed, of whom 2014
response rate of 55 per cent.  

 responded to this item, giving a 

ate CEQ Overall Satisfaction 

 

Table 2 – Undergradu

Year of Completion   

2002 2003 2004 2005 20061 

ECU 89.7%  89.0% 88.9% 88.5% 

Nati lona  Average 89.7% 89.3% 89.7% 89.5%  

Stat v  

students who ‘broadly agree’ with the 
overall satisfaction statements from the 
published Course Experience 

estionnaire (CEQ). ‘Broadly agree’ 
uates to selection 3, 4 or 5 on a five-

point Likert scale. e A erage  90.7% 89.7% 90.4% 90.1% 

Course Satisfaction is defined as the 
percentage of Domestic Bachelor level 

Qu
eq

Not ble by Graduate Careers Australia in sufficient time to allow 
incl n

ed to this item, giving a 
sponse rate of 57 per cent.  

le 

e: 1. 2006 CEQ/ GDS data was not made availa
usio  in this Report. 

 

ECU graduates’ Overall Satisfaction levels, in terms of course experience, have been relatively 
stable over the period 2002 to 2005.  In 2005 for the first time, satisfaction was slightly above the 
National average. 

 

 

3. Quality of Teaching 
In order to provide a stimulating learning community, ECU seeks to provide high quality teaching.  
The CEQ Quality of Teaching measure is used to indicate how satisfied students are with the 
teaching experience during their course. 

For the 2005 CEQ, 3663 graduates were surveyed, of whom 2093 respond
re

 

Table 3 – Domestic Undergraduate CEQ Good Teaching Sca

Year of Completion   

2002 2003 2004 2005 20061 

ECU 84.2% 84.3% 86.6%   82.9% 

Nati 80.8% 81.7% 82.3%  onal Average 80.7% 

Stat % 83.5% 84.1%  

Quality of Teaching is defined as the 
percentage mean of Domestic Bachelor 
level students who ‘broadly agree’ with 
the six statements which make up the  
Good Teaching Scale from the Course 
Experience Questionnaire (CEQ), run as 
a national survey by the Graduate 
Careers Council of Australia.  ‘Broadly 
agree’ equates to selection 3, 4 or 5 on 
a five-point Likert scale. 

e Average 83.4% 83.3

Note: 1. 2006 CEQ/ GDS data was not made available by Graduate Careers Australia in sufficient time to allow 
incl

d 2002 to 2006.  

 

usion in this Report. 
 
Student ratings for Good Teaching at ECU have increased in each year for the perio
Performance in 2005 was better than the National average. 
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4. Graduate Employment 
ECU seeks to be responsive to student and employer needs by providing relevant programs, taught 
in ways that engage its students.  The extent to which graduates find employment is recognised by 
the sector as a measure of the quality of learning outcomes.  It therefore gives an indication of how 
well the University meets student and employer needs. 

Graduate employment outcom
Graduate Destination Survey (GDS). 

es in the year following completion of the course, is measured by the 

For the DS, 3663 graduates were surveyed, of whom 1997 responded to this item, giving 
a response rate of 55 per cent.  

 

Tab ss/Honours Graduates in Full-Time Employment 

2005 CEQ/ G

le 4 – Domestic Bachelor Pa

Year of Completion  

2002 2003 2004 2005 20061 

ECU 73.5% 74.0% 68.1% 73.4%  

National Average 78.5% 78.0% 79.2% 82.4%  

State Average 75.4% 75.3% 75.9% 80.2%  

DEEWR defines this indicator as the 
number of domestic graduates in full-
time employment expressed as a 
proportion of all domestic bachelor 
graduates available for full-time 
employment or seeking full-time work 
(including those who were working part-
time or casual while seeking full-time 
employment).  Domestic students are 
those with Australian citizenship and 
Permanent Residency only.  

Note: 1. 2006 CEQ/ GDS data was not made available by Graduate Careers Australia in sufficient time to allow 
inclusion in this Report. 
 

In 2005 there was a 5.3 percentage point improvement in ECU’s graduate employment rate, 
hough this is still below that for 2002 and 2003 and below the National average.  ECU’s 
rformance may reflect its student demographics and employment opportunities in businesses and 

his KPI is based on responses fr udents w re 
strictive measur arily reflec of E ud e 

oportion of part-time ts 00  23 per cent of enr

 University by potential students and the community. 

able 5 – Undergraduate Share of First Preferences  

alt
pe
industries in which ECU graduates seek employment. 

T om graduates who as st ere studying full-time.  Therefo
ent cohort, which includes a larg
olments were part-time. 

this is a re
pr

e, not necess
studen

tive CU st
.  In 2 7 some

 

 

5. Share of First Preferences  
ECU’s share of First Preferences through the Western Australian Tertiary Institutions Service Centre 
(TISC) is the most public expression of the level of demand for entry to the University within the 
broader competitive market in the State.  It reflects the composite achievements of many of ECU’s 
initiatives and the general perception of the

 

T

 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

ECU 27.9% 26.0% 26.1% 20.2% 19.4% 

Curtin 30.3% 31.3% 30.2% 32.4% 33.0% 

Murdoch 17.0% 16.8% 17.4% 16.3% 15.3% 

UWA 24.8% 25.9% 26.2% 31.1% 32.4% 

in the year shown, 
processed by TISC after 
the closure of all 

This is defined as each 

rses 

processing in the same 
year. 

WA University’s share 
of First Preference 
applications for 
undergraduate cou
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ECU’s share of first preference applications for undergraduate courses through TISC declined 
significantly between 2005 and 2007.  The absolute numbers of ECU first preferences declined from 
838 in 2006 to 3559 in 2007.   

 

6. Teaching-Related Expend
Key Efficiency Indic  in  to give a re o how

learning purposes.  

3

 

iture per Student Load  
This 
funds for teaching and 

ator is cluded  measu f  efficient the University uses its 

 

Table 6 – Teaching-Related Expenditure per Student Load 

 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Teaching-Related 184,537 197,346 210,833 222,541 228,321 
Expenditure ($’000)  

Total Load (EFTSL)1 15,889 16,170 15,693 15,747 15,254 

Teaching-Related 
Expenditure/Total Load ($) 

11,614 12,204 13,435 14,132 14,968 

Teaching-Related 13,358 13,635 14,436 14,550 14,968 

This is defined as 
teaching related 
expenditure expressed 

research-only 
expenditure.  

Expenditure/Total Load 
(2007 $ equiv)2 

per EFTSL.  Teaching 
related expenditure is 
total expenditure less 

Notes: 1. Load figures are as of 30th October with "March & August" plus preliminary "Post August" figures 
added together.  2. CPI based on December 2007 Qtr.   

 

Teaching-Related Expenditure per EFTSL increased in 2007 relative to 2006, in line with an 
increasing trend in the period 2003 to 2006.  While this may reflect the fact that most costs are 

xed and student numbers have fallen, this may also indicate the success of ECU’s budget 
and learning activities. 

fi
approach, which is to prioritise funding support for core teaching 
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Developing Research Focus, Depth and Impact 
ECU seeks to build its research enterprise and generate enhanced research outcomes in selected 
areas of excellence, particularly those with the potential for high social, economic, environmental 
and cultural impact. 

The University seeks to provide high quality research training that produces graduates with valued 
knowledge and skills and which leads to high rates of research higher degree completions.  

Key Effectiveness Indicator 

7. Research Income 

Key Efficiency Indicators 

9. Research Publications 

 

esearch Income
ild its h pr  te enhance  

d to indica o ev e rs y’s rese

 

8. Higher Degree Research Completions 

7. R  
ECU seeks to bu researc  enter ise and genera  d research outcomes.  Research

arch activity.   income is use te the verall l el of th  Unive it

Table 7 – Research Income by Category ($m) 

Category 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

1 - National Competitive Research Grants 1.547 1.506 2.271 1.948 2.025 

2 - Other Public Sector Research Funding  2.725 2.512 4.195 5.471 4.829 

3 - Industry and Other Funding for Research 1.155 1.354 1.797 3.058 3.069 

4 - Co-operative Research Centre Funding 0.057 

This is a 
measure of the 
level of external 
Research 
Funding 
obtained during 
a prescribed 

0.028 0.010 0.026 0.091 

Total 5.484 5.399 8.273 10.502 10.015 

year, in terms of 
DEEWR 
categories 1, 2, 
3 and 4. 

 
Levels of Research Funding can be strongly influenced by the receipt of large ARC (Australian 
esearch Council) grants.  The relatively small number of such grants may limit the capacity of the 
stitution to sustain research activity at a consistent level. 

• Other Public Sector Research Funding (Category 2) has increased by 77 per cent and has 
ent of all research income. 

• Industry and Fundin e
increase  21 pe to 31 arch in  

 Co-opera esearc re Fu Categ has in d by  still 
accounts s than  cent searc

R
in

Between 2002 and 2006: 

• Total research income increased from $5.5m to $10.0m, an increase of 83 per cent. 

• National Competitive Research Grants (Category 1) income increased by 31 per cent, but as 
a proportion of all research income, it has reduced from 28 per cent to 20 per cent. 

reduced marginally from 50 per cent to 48 per c

 Other 
d from

g for R
r cent 

search (Categ
per cent of all rese

ory 3) has increased by 
come.

166 per cent and has 

60 per cent, but• tive R h Cent nding ( ory 4) crease
 for les  1 per of all re h income. 

 

Section 6 – ECU Key Performance Indicators   
164 



Edith Cowan University Annual Report 2007 
Key Performance Indicators 

 

8. Higher Degree Research Completions 
ECU seeks to achieve high rates of research higher degree completions by providing high quality 
research training. 

 

Table 8 – Higher Degree by Research Completions by level, tota
FTE 

l number and per 10 Academic 

ECU Completions by Level 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Doctorate by Research 37 37 54 45 61 

Masters by Research 36 43 30 35 29 

      

N 3 2004 umber of Completions 2002 200 2005 2006 

ECU 73   80 84 80 90 

State Total 268 639 667 678 685 

National Total 5,842 7,103 6,321 6,470 6,820 

      

Completions per 1 2  20040 FTE 200 2003  2005 2006 

ECU 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 

Higher Degree by Research 
completions per year per 10 FTE 
‘teaching and research’ and 
‘research only’ academic staff at 
Level B and above.   Degrees 
included are Doctorate and Masters 
by Research. 

This is defined as the number of 

 

me. 

igher Degree completions are a priority as ECU seeks to help students complete in a timely way.  

 

9. Research Publications 
ECU seeks to achieve improved research publications output as part of its strategy of building high 
quality research.  The Research Publications measure is accepted as one valuable output measure of 
research activity and has the advantage of being assessed annually in a rigorous system audited by 
DEEWR.  

 

The University has developed a more focused approach to research supervision to help Higher 
Degree by Research students to complete within ti

H
Completions have been trending upwards over the period 2002 to 2006 and a large increase in 
Doctorate by Research completions was seen in 2006, offset to an extent by a decrease in Masters 
by Research completions. 
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Table 9 – Research and Development Publications per 10 Academic FTE 

  2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

A1 – Authored Research 0.21 0.10 0.20 0.11 0.14 

B - Book Chapter 0.65 1.36 0.99 0.99 0.89 

C1 - Articles in Scholarly Refereed 
Journal 

4.25 4.60 4.40 4.29 4.78 

E1 - Full Written Paper - Refereed 5.95 5.61 5.80 4.97  4.25 
Proceedings 

J1 – Major Original Creative Works 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Unweighted Publications 501.5 519.6 520.0 494.6 484.2 

Total Weighted Publications 539.8 538.4 554.0 516.0 510.6 

Ac aff FTE 453 451 457 477 482 ademic St

Weighted Publications 10 FTE 11.9 12.0 12.2 10.8 10.6 

 

E1and J1 per 10 FTE 

 only’ 
 at 

Level B and above, 
produced during a 
prescribed year 

This is the number of 
publications in DEEWR
categories A1, B, C1, 

‘teaching and 
research’ and 
‘research
academic staff

 

In 2006 there was a decline in the number of publications and an increase in the number of relevant 
Academic Staff which has resulted in a small drop in the weighted measure (per 10 Academic Staff 
TE) from 10.8 to 10.6. 

uality” publications as the University continues to 
ctivity and this has resulted in a decline in Category 

tions and an increase in Categor etw 00 00

F

ECU has placed increased emphasis on “high q
focus on high impact, high relevance research a
E1 publica y C1 b een 2 5 and 2 6. 
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